File No. 211050 Committee Item No. 1 Board Item No. 10						
COMMITTEE/BOARD OF SUPERVISORS						
	AGENDA PACKE	T CONTENTS LIST				
Committee	: Budget and Finance Co	mmittee Date November 3, 2021				

Committee.	Duaget and I mance Committee	Date November 3, 2021			
Board of Su	pervisors Meeting	Date November 9, 2021			
Cmte Boa	rd				
	Motion Resolution Ordinance Legislative Digest Budget and Legislative Analyst R Youth Commission Report Introduction Form Department/Agency Cover Letter MOU Grant Information Form Grant Budget Subcontract Budget Contract/Agreement Form 126 – Ethics Commission Award Letter Application Public Correspondence	•			
OTHER	(Use back side if additional space	is needed)			
	U.S. Housing and Urban Developm	nent Notice of Funding			
	Opportunity - FY 2021 Local Homelessness Coordinating 10/27/21	Board Letter of Support			
	Forms 126 List HSH Presentation 11/3/21				
Completed by: Brent Jalipa Date October 28, 2021 Completed by: Brent Jalipa Date November 5, 2021					

1	[Apply for Grant - United States Department of Housing and Urban Development - Continuum of Care Program - Not to Exceed \$59,300,000]
3	Resolution approving the 2021 grant application for the United States Department of
4	Housing and Urban Development Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to
5	exceed \$59,300,000; and fulfilling the Board of Supervisors review and approval
6	process for all annual or otherwise recurring grants of \$5,000,000 or more.
7	
8	WHEREAS, Under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
9	2021 Continuum of Care (CoC) grant application, the City and County of San Francisco (City)
10	and participating nonprofit entities are eligible to submit funding applications for funds not to
11	exceed \$61,185,000 to assist people experiencing homelessness; and
12	WHEREAS, The 2021 CoC Notice of Funding Opportunity (2021 NOFO) was released
13	on August 16, 2021, a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in
14	File No. 211050; and
15	WHEREAS, During the San Francisco 2019 CoC competition, San Francisco and its
16	nonprofits were awarded \$47,849,533 and San Francisco's community efforts to end
17	homelessness; and
18	WHEREAS, Congress cancelled the 2020 HUD CoC competition due to the impacts of
19	the COVID-19 pandemic, and San Francisco was awarded \$52,839,360 based on previous
20	allocations and scoring; and
21	WHEREAS, HUD requires submission of the 2021 CoC application by November 16,
22	2021, a copy of the application form is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File
23	No. 211050; and
24	
25	

1	WHEREAS, The San Francisco Local Homeless Coordinating Board (LHCB) serves as
2	the lead entity that oversees the CoC process and programs, including the creation of
3	program priorities, funding categories, application guidelines, and scoring tools; and
4	WHEREAS, HSH plans to submit the consolidated application on behalf of the LHCB
5	for a total amount not to exceed \$59,300,000 of which an amount greater than \$5,000,000
6	passes through the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH); and
7	WHEREAS, The LHCB has been meeting monthly to advise on the City's CoC
8	processes and programs, including receiving community input and participation in the
9	development of program priorities, application scoring criteria, and application guidelines and
10	process; and
11	WHEREAS, The LHCB, with community input and advice, approves the 2021
12	application process, scoring criteria, and funding priorities for the 2021 application which
13	include Permanent Supportive Housing, Rapid Re-Housing, and Supportive Services, as
14	demonstrated in the LHCB letter of support on file, a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of
15	the Board of Supervisors in File No. 211050; and
16	WHEREAS, Under San Francisco Ordinance No. 256-05, the appropriate City
17	department shall submit to the Board of Supervisors a resolution articulating its grant
18	application, as well as funding categories, for all annual grant applications of \$5,000,000 or
19	more; now, therefore, be it
20	RESOLVED, That the San Francisco LHCB and HSH are authorized to submit a 2021
21	CoC application for an amount not to exceed \$59,300,000.
22	
23	
24	
25	

1	RECOMMENDED:
2	
3	_/s/
4	Shireen McSpadden Executive Director
5	Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	

File Number:

211050

(Provided by Clerk of Board of Supervisors)

Grant Resolution Information Form

(Effective March 2005)

Purpose: Accompanies proposed Board of Supervisors resolution authorizing a Department to accept and expend grant funds.

TI	£ - 11	المصائدة مصادا	41		1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	e accompanying	
I DA	TOHOWING	describes	the drant	reterren	TO ID TO	accompanying	Leconition.

- 1. Grant Title: 2021 Continuum of Care Competition
- 2. Department: Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
- 3. Contact Person: Dylan Schneider

Telephone: 628.652.7742

- 4. Grant Approval Status (check one):
 - [] Approved by funding agency

[x] Not yet approved

- 5. Amount of Grant Funding Approved or Applied for: Not to exceed \$59,300,000
- 6a. Matching Funds Required: 25% required match, not to exceed \$14,825,000
 - b. Source(s) of matching funds (if applicable): General Fund
- 7a. Grant Source Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
- b. Grant Pass-Through Agency (if applicable): n/a
- 8. Proposed Grant Project Summary: Proposed Grant Expenditure Schedule
- 9. Grant Project Schedule, as allowed in approval documents, or as proposed:

Start-Date: 01/01/2022

End-Date: 06/01/2025

- 10a. Amount budgeted for contractual services: Not to exceed \$59,300,000
 - b. Will contractual services be put out to bid? No, competitive grant process has been completed.
 - c. If so, will contract services help to further the goals of the department's MBE/WBE requirements? n/a
 - d. Is this likely to be a one-time or ongoing request for contracting out? n/a
- 11a. Does the budget include indirect costs?

[]Yes

[x] No

- b1. If yes, how much? n/a
- b2. How was the amount calculated? n/a

 c. If no, why are indirect costs not included? [] Not allowed by granting agency [] To maximize use of grant funds on direct services [x] Other (please explain): The grant budget includes 50% of eligible administration funds to the City to administer the program; HSH does not claim indirect costs. 						
c2. If no indirect costs a	are included, what would have bee	n the indirect costs? n/a				
12. Any other significant g	rant requirements or comments: n	/a				
Disability Access Checkli	st*					
13. This Grant is intended f	or activities at (check all that appl	y):				
[X] Existing Site(s) [] Rehabilitated Site(s) [X] New Site(s)	[X] Existing Structure(s) [] Rehabilitated Structure(s) [X] New Structure(s)	[X] Existing Program(s) or Service(s) [X] Program(s) or Service(s)				
proposal and concluded th Disabilities Act and all other	at the project as proposed will be er Federal, State and local access	ffice on Disability have reviewed the in compliance with the Americans with laws and regulations and will allow the full nable hardship exceptions, as described				
Comments:						
Departmental or Mayor's O Date Reviewed: October 4,	ffice of Disability Reviewer: SOTT W. WA 2021	(Name) LTON HSH LIAISIN WITH MOD				
Department Approval: Gi	gi Whitley, HSH Deputy Director of A	dministration and Finance				

San Francisco Local Homeless Coordinating Board								
	2021 Continuum of Care-Budget							
Unit Size	SRO		Studio 1-Bedroom		1-Bedroom	2-Bedroom		
Number of units		821		222		103		122
FY2021 FMR	\$	1,763	\$	2,350	\$	2,923	\$	3,553
FY2022 FMR	\$	1,586	\$	2,115	\$	2,631	\$	3,198
FY2022 FMR - Adjusted	\$	2,027	\$	2,468	\$	3,069	\$	3,731
Rental Assistance Totals	\$	19,968,773	\$	6,573,420	\$	3,793,469	\$	5,461,672

Project Type	Amount		
Rental Assistance	\$ 42,375,019		
Leasing	\$ 5,464,355		
HMIS	\$ 750,621		
Supportive Services Only	\$ 4,428,661		
Total	\$ 53,018,656		

CoC Source		Amount		
CoC bonus	\$	2,579,468		
DV bonus	\$	2,411,770		
Planning Grant	\$	1,250,000		
Total	\$	6,241,238		

Total FY2021 NOFO with contingency \$ 59,259,894

٠				
	3	-Bedroom	4-	Bedroom
I		98		7
l	\$	4,567	\$	4,970
l	\$	4,111	\$	4,473
l	\$	4,795	\$	5,219
Ī	\$	5,639,332	\$	438,354
•			•	

Before Starting the CoC Application

You must submit all three of the following parts in order for us to consider your Consolidated Application complete:

- 1. the CoC Application,
- 2. the CoC Priority Listing, and
- 3. all the CoC's project applications that were either approved and ranked, or rejected.

As the Collaborative Applicant, you are responsible for reviewing the following:

- 1. The FY 2021 CoC Program Competition Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for specific application and program requirements.
- 2. The FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions which provide additional information and guidance for completing the application.
- 3. All information provided to ensure it is correct and current.
- 4. Responses provided by project applicants in their Project Applications.
- 5. The application to ensure all documentation, including attachment are provided.

Your CoC Must Approve the Consolidated Application before You Submit It

- 24 CFR 578.9 requires you to compile and submit the CoC Consolidated Application for the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition on behalf of your CoC.
- 24 CFR 578.9(b) requires you to obtain approval from your CoC before you submit the Consolidated Application into e-snaps.

Answering Multi-Part Narrative Questions

Many questions require you to address multiple elements in a single text box. Number your responses to correspond with multi-element questions using the same numbers in the question. This will help you organize your responses to ensure they are complete and help us to review and score your responses.

Attachments

Questions requiring attachments to receive points state, "You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen." Only upload documents responsive to the questions posed-including other material slows down the review process, which ultimately slows down the funding process. Include a cover page with the attachment name.

- Attachments must match the questions they are associated with-if we do not award points for evidence you upload and associate with the wrong question, this is not a valid reason for you to

appeal HÚD's funding determination.

- We must be able to read the date and time on attachments requiring system-generated dates and times, (e.g., a screenshot displaying the time and date of the public posting using your desktop calendar; screenshot of a webpage that indicates date and time).

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 1	09/30/2021

1A. Continuum of Care (CoC) Identification

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition

- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFR part 578

1A-1. CoC Name and Number: CA-501 - San Francisco CoC

1A-2. Collaborative Applicant Name: City and County of San Francisco

1A-3. CoC Designation: CA

1A-4. HMIS Lead: City and County of San Francisco

1B. Coordination and Engagement–Inclusive Structure and Participation

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:
- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program

- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFK part 578

1B-1.	Inclusive Structure and Participation-Participation in Coordinated Entry.
	NOFO Sections VII.B.1.a.(1), VII.B.1.e., VII.B.1.n., and VII.B.1.p.
	In the chart below for the period from May 1, 2020 to April 30, 2021:
1.	select yes or no in the chart below if the entity listed participates in CoC meetings, voted-including selecting CoC Board members, and participated in your CoC's coordinated entry system; or
	select Nonexistent if the organization does not exist in your CoC's geographic area:

	Organization/Person	Participated in CoC Meetings	Voted, Including Electing of CoC Board Members	Participated in CoC's Coordinated Entry System
1.	Affordable Housing Developer(s)			
2.	Agencies serving survivors of human trafficking			
3.	CDBG/HOME/ESG Entitlement Jurisdiction			
4.	CoC-Funded Victim Service Providers			
5.	CoC-Funded Youth Homeless Organizations			
6.	Disability Advocates			
7.	Disability Service Organizations			
8.	Domestic Violence Advocates			
9.	EMS/Crisis Response Team(s)			
10.	Homeless or Formerly Homeless Persons			
11.	Hospital(s)			
12.	Indian Tribes and Tribally Designated Housing Entities (TDHEs) (Tribal Organizations)			
13.	Law Enforcement			
14.	Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender (LGBT) Advocates			
15.	LGBT Service Organizations			
16.	Local Government Staff/Officials			
17.	Local Jail(s)			
18.	Mental Health Service Organizations			

FY2021 CoC Application Page 3 09/30/2021
--

CA-501

		i	
19.	Mental Illness Advocates		
20.	Non-CoC Funded Youth Homeless Organizations		
21.	Non-CoC-Funded Victim Service Providers		
22.	Organizations led by and serving Black, Brown, Indigenous and other People of Color		
23.	Organizations led by and serving LGBT persons		
24.	Organizations led by and serving people with disabilities		
25.	Other homeless subpopulation advocates		
26.	Public Housing Authorities		
27.	School Administrators/Homeless Liaisons		
28.	Street Outreach Team(s)		
29.	Substance Abuse Advocates		
30.	Substance Abuse Service Organizations		
31.	Youth Advocates		
32.	Youth Service Providers		
	Other:(limit 50 characters)		
33.			
34.			
	I .		

You must select a response for elements 1 through 32 in question 1B-1.

1B-2.	Open Invitation for New Members.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.a.(2)
	Describe in the field below how your CoC:
1.	communicated the invitation process annually to solicit new members to join the CoC;
2.	ensured effective communication with individuals with disabilities, including the availability of accessible electronic formats;
3.	conducted outreach to ensure persons experiencing homelessness or formerly homeless persons are encouraged to join your CoC; and
4.	invited organizations serving culturally specific communities experiencing homelessness in the geographic area to address equity (e.g., Black, Latino, Indigenous, persons with disabilities).
	(limit 2 000 charactors)

(limit 2,000 characters)

1B-3.	CoC's Strategy to Solicit/Consider Opinions on Preventing and Ending Homelessness.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.a.(3)
	Describe in the field helow how your CoC.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC: solicited and considered opinions from a broad array of organizations and individuals that have
	solicited and considered opinions from a broad array of organizations and individuals that have knowledge of homelessness, or an interest in preventing and ending homelessness;
	communicated information during public meetings or other forums your CoC uses to solicit public information; and
3.	took into consideration information gathered in public meetings or forums to address improvements or new approaches to preventing and ending homelessness.

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 4	09/30/2021
------------------------	--------	------------

1B-4	Public Notification for Proposals from Organizations Not Previously Funded.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.a.(4)
	Describe in the field below how your CoC notified the public:
1.	that your CoC's local competition was open and accepting project applications;
2.	that your CoC will consider project applications from organizations that have not previously received CoC Program funding;
3.	about how project applicants must submit their project applications;
4.	about how your CoC would determine which project applications it would submit to HUD for funding; and
5.	how your CoC effectively communicated with individuals with disabilities, including making information accessible in electronic formats.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C. Coordination and Engagement–Coordination with Federal, State, Local, Private, and Other Organiza

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition
- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload
- 24 CFŘ part 578

1C-1.	Coordination with Federal, State, Local, Private, and Other Organizations.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.b.
	In the chart below:
1.	select yes or no for entities listed that are included in your CoC's coordination, planning, and operations of projects that serve individuals, families, unaccompanied youth, persons who are fleeing domestic violence who are experiencing homelessness, or those at risk of homelessness; or
2.	select Nonexistent if the organization does not exist within your CoC's geographic area.

	Entities or Organizations Your CoC Coordinates with for Planning or Operations of Projects	Coordinates with Planning or Operations of Projects
1.	Funding Collaboratives	
2.	Head Start Program	
3.	Housing and services programs funded through Local Government	
4.	Housing and services programs funded through other Federal Resources (non-CoC)	
5.	Housing and services programs funded through private entities, including Foundations	
6.	Housing and services programs funded through State Government	
7.	Housing and services programs funded through U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)	
8.	Housing and services programs funded through U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ)	
9.	Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)	
10.	Indian Tribes and Tribally Designated Housing Entities (TDHEs) (Tribal Organizations)	
11.	Organizations led by and serving Black, Brown, Indigenous and other People of Color	
12.	Organizations led by and serving LGBT persons	
13.	Organizations led by and serving people with disabilities	
14.	Private Foundations	
15.	Public Housing Authorities	
16.	Runaway and Homeless Youth (RHY)	
17.	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)	
	Other:(limit 50 characters)	,

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 6	09/30/2021
------------------------	--------	------------

18.

You must select a response for elements 1 through 17 in question 1C-1.

1C-2.	CoC Consultation with ESG Program Recipients.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.b.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC:
1.	consulted with ESG Program recipients in planning and allocating ESG and ESG-CV funds;
2.	participated in evaluating and reporting performance of ESG Program recipients and subrecipients;
	provided Point-in-Time (PIT) count and Housing Inventory Count (HIC) data to the Consolidated Plan jurisdictions within its geographic area; and
	provided information to Consolidated Plan Jurisdictions within your CoC's geographic area so it could be addressed in Consolidated Plan update.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-3.	Ensuring Families are not Separated.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.c.	

Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate how your CoC ensures emergency shelter, transitional housing, and permanent housing (PSH and RRH) do not deny admission or separate family members regardless of each family member's self-reported gender:

1.	Conducted mandatory training for all CoC- and ESG-funded service providers to ensure families are not separated.	
2.	Conducted optional training for all CoC- and ESG-funded service providers to ensure families are not separated.	
3.	Worked with ESG recipient(s) to adopt uniform anti-discrimination policies for all subrecipients.	
4.	Worked with ESG recipient(s) to identify both CoC- and ESG-funded facilities within your CoC's geographic area that might be out of compliance and took steps to work directly with those facilities to bring them into compliance.	
5.	Sought assistance from HUD by submitting AAQs or requesting technical assistance to resolve noncompliance of service providers.	
6.	Other. (limit 150 characters)	

You must select a response for elements 1 through 5 in question 1C-3.

C-4.	CoC Collaboration Related to Children and Youth-SEAs, L	EAs, Local Liaisons & State Coord	inators.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.d.		
	Describe in the field below:		
1.	how your CoC collaborates with youth education providers	s;	
2.	your CoC's formal partnerships with youth education prov	viders;	
3.	how your CoC collaborates with State Education Agency (SEA) and Local Education Agency	(LEA);
4.	your CoC's formal partnerships with SEAs and LEAs;		
5.	how your CoC collaborates with school districts; and		
	FY2021 CoC Application	Page 7	09/30/2021

6. your CoC's formal partnerships with school districts.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-4a. CoC Collaboration Related to Children and Youth–Educational Services–Informing Individuals and Families Experiencing Homelessness about Eligibility.

NOFO Section VII.B.1.d.

Describe in the field below written policies and procedures your CoC adopted to inform individuals and families who become homeless of their eligibility for educational services.

(limit 2,000 characters)

CoC Collaboration Related to Children and Youth–Educational Services–Written/Formal Agreements or Partnerships with Early Childhood Services Providers.	
NOFO Section VII.B.1.d.	

Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate whether your CoC has written formal agreements or partnerships with the listed providers of early childhood services:

		MOU/MOA	Other Formal Agreement
1.	Birth to 3 years		
2.	Child Care and Development Fund		
3.	Early Childhood Providers		
4.	Early Head Start		
5.	Federal Home Visiting Program–(including Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home and Visiting or MIECHV)		
6.	Head Start		
7.	Healthy Start		
8.	Public Pre-K		
9.	Tribal Home Visiting Program		
	Other (limit 150 characters)		
10.			

You must select a response for elements 1 through 9 in question 1C-4b.

Addressing Needs of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking Survivors-Annual Training-Best Practices.	
NOFO Section VII.B.1.e.	

Describe in the field below how your CoC coordinates to provide training for:

- 1. Project staff that addresses safety and best practices (e.g., trauma-informed, victim-centered) on safety and planning protocols in serving survivors of domestic violence and indicate the frequency of the training in your response (e.g., monthly, semi-annually); and
- 2. Coordinated Entry staff that addresses safety and best practices (e.g., trauma informed care) on safety and planning protocols in serving survivors of domestic violence and indicate the frequency of the training in your response (e.g., monthly, semi-annually).

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 8	09/30/2021
------------------------	--------	------------

1C-5a.	Addressing Needs of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking Survivors-Using De-identified Aggregate Data.	
	NOFO Section VII R 1 a	

Describe in the field below how your CoC uses de-identified aggregate data from a comparable database to assess the special needs related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking survivors.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-5b.	Addressing Needs of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking Survivors–Coordinated Assessment–Safety, Planning, and Confidentiality Protocols.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.e.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC's coordinated entry system protocols incorporate trauma- informed, victim-centered approaches while maximizing client choice for housing and services that:
1.	prioritize safety;
2.	use emergency transfer plan; and
3.	ensure confidentiality.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-6.	Addressing the Needs of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender–Anti-Discrimination Policy and Training.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.f.	
	Did your CoC implement a written CoC-wide anti-discrimination policy ensuring that LGBT individuals and families receive supportive services, shelter, and housing free from discrimination?	
	2. Did your CoC conduct annual CoC-wide training with providers on how to effectively implement the Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity (Equal Access Final Rule)?	
	3. Did your CoC conduct annual CoC-wide training with providers on how to effectively implement Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs in Accordance with an Individual's Gender Identity (Gender Identity Final Rule)?	

You must select a response for elements 1 through 3 in question 1C-6.

1C-7.	1C-7. Public Housing Agencies within Your CoC's Geographic Area-New Admissions-General/Limited Preference-Moving On Strategy. You Must Upload an Attachment(s) to the 4B. Attachments Screen.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.	

Enter information in the chart below for the two largest PHAs highlighted in gray on the CoC-PHA Crosswalk Report at https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/FY-2020-CoC-PHA-Crosswalk-Report.pdf or the two PHAs your CoC has a working relationship with–if there is only one PHA in your CoC's geographic area, provide information on the one:

Public Housing Agency Name	Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher Program During FY 2020 who were		General	PHA have a or Limited neless	Does the PHA have a Preference for current PSH program
FY2021 CoC Application		Page 9		0	9/30/2021

Applicant: San Francisco Collaborative Applicant Project: CA-501 CoC Registration FY 2021

experiencing homelessness at entry	Preference?	participants no longer needing intensive supportive services, e.g., Moving On?

You must enter information for at least 1 row in question 1C-7.

1C-7a.	Written Policies on Homeless Admission Preferences with PHAs.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.
	Describe in the field below:
	steps your CoC has taken, with the two largest PHAs within your CoC's geographic area or the two PHAs your CoC has working relationships with, to adopt a homeless admission preference–if your CoC only has one PHA within its geographic area, you may respond for the one; or
	state that your CoC has not worked with the PHAs in its geographic area to adopt a homeless admission preference.
	(limit 2 000 charactors)

(IIMIT 2,000 characters)

1C-7b. Moving On Strategy with Affordable Housing Providers.		
	Not Scored–For Information Only	

Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate affordable housing providers in your CoC's jurisdiction that your recipients use to move program participants to other subsidized housing:

1.	Multifamily assisted housing owners	
2.	РНА	
3.	Low Income Tax Credit (LIHTC) developments	
4.	Local low-income housing programs	
	Other (limit 150 characters)	
5.		

You must select a response for elements 1 through 4 in question 1C-7b.

1C-7c.	Including PHA-Funded Units in Your CoC's Coordinated Entry System.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.	

Does your CoC include PHA-funded units in the CoC's coordinated entry process?

You must select a response for question 1C-7c.

1C-7c.1.	Method for Including PHA-Funded Units in Your CoC's Coordinated Entry System.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.	

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 10	09/30/2021	
------------------------	---------	------------	--

	If you selected yes in question 1C-7c., describe in the field below:	
1.	how your CoC includes the units in its Coordinated Entry process; and	
2.	whether your CoC's practices are formalized in written agreements with the PHA, e.g., MOUs.	

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-7d.	Submitting CoC and PHA Joint Applications for Funding for People Experiencing Homelessness.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.	

Did your CoC coordinate with a PHA(s) to submit a joint application(s) for funding of projects serving families experiencing homelessness (e.g., applications for mainstream vouchers, Family Unification Program (FUP), other non-federal programs)?

You must select a response for question 1C-7d.

1C-7d.1.	CoC and PHA Joint Application–Experience–Benefits.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.	
		_
	If you selected yes to question 1C-7d, describe in the field below:	
1.	the type of joint project applied for;	
2.	whether the application was approved; and	
3.	how your CoC and families experiencing homelessness benefited from the coordination.	

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-7e.	C-7e. Coordinating with PHA(s) to Apply for or Implement HCV Dedicated to Homelessness Including American Rescue Plan Vouchers.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.g.	

Did your CoC coordinate with any PHA to apply for or implement funding provided for Housing Choice Vouchers dedicated to homelessness, including vouchers provided through the American Rescue Plan?

You must select a response for question 1C-7e.

1C-7e.1	Coordinating with PHA(s) to Administer Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) Program-List of PHAs with MOUs.	
	Not Scored–For Information Only	

Did your CoC enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with any PHA to administer the EHV Program?

If you select yes, you must use the list feature below to enter the name of every PHA your CoC has entered into a MOU with to administer the Emergency Housing Voucher Program.

You must select a response for question 1C-7e.1.

PHA	
	This list contains no items

1C. Coordination and Engagement–Coordination with Federal, State, Local, Private, and Other Organiza

1C-8.	Discharge Planning Coordination.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.h.	
	Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate whether your CoC actively coordinates with the systems of care listed to ensure persons who have resided in them longer than 90 days are not discharged directly to the streets, emergency shelters, or other homeless assistance programs.	
1. Foster C	are	
2. Health C		
3. Mental F		
4. Correcti	onal Facilities	
	You must select a response for elements 1 through 4 in question 10	
1C-9.	Housing First-Lowering Barriers to Entry.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.i.	
1.	Enter the total number of new and renewal CoC Program-funded PSH, RRH, SSO non-coordinated entry, Safe-Haven, and Transitional Housing projects your CoC is applying for in FY 2021 CoC Program Competition.	
2.	Enter the total number of new and renewal CoC Program-funded PSH, RRH, SSO non-coordinated entry, Safe-Haven, and Transitional Housing projects your CoC is applying for in FY 2021 CoC Program Competition that have adopted the Housing First approach.	
3.	This number is a calculation of the percentage of new and renewal PSH, RRH, Safe-Haven, SSO non-Coordinated Entry projects the CoC has ranked in its CoC Priority Listing in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition that reported that they are lowering barriers to entry and prioritizing rapid placement and stabilization to permanent housing.	0%
	You must enter a value for elements 1 and 2 in question 1C-9.	
1C-9a.	Housing First-Project Evaluation.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.i.	
	Describe in the field below how your CoC regularly evaluates projects to ensure those that commit to using a Housing First approach are prioritizing rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing and are not requiring service participation or preconditions of program participants.	
	(limit 2,000 characters)	

	nt: San Francisco Collaborative Applicant			CA-501
Project:	CA-501 CoC Registration FY 2021	COC_REG_2	2021_	181860
1C-9b	. Housing First–Veterans.			
	Not Scored–For Information Only			
	r CoC have sufficient resources to ensure each Veteran experiencing homelessness is assisted to qu permanent housing using a Housing First approach?	uickly		
	You must select a response for question 1C-9b.			
1C-10	. Street Outreach-Scope.			
10 10	NOFO Section VII.B.1.j.			
	production and the second seco			
	Describe in the field below:			
1	your CoC's street outreach efforts, including the methods it uses to ensure all persons experiencin unsheltered homelessness are identified and engaged;	ng		
2	whether your CoC's Street Outreach covers 100 percent of the CoC's geographic area;			
3	how often your CoC conducts street outreach; and			
4	. how your CoC tailored its street outreach to persons experiencing homelessness who are least like	elv to		
	request assistance.			
	1 -			
	(limit 2,000 characters)	., .		
	1 -	.,,.		
1C-11	(limit 2,000 characters)			
1C-11	(limit 2,000 characters)			
1C-11	(limit 2,000 characters) . Criminalization of Homelessness.			
1C-11	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the			
1C-11	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k.			
	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area:			
1	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the			
1 2	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers			
1 2 3	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement			
1 2 3	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement Engaged/educated local business leaders			
1 2 3 4	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement Engaged/educated local business leaders Implemented communitywide plans			
1 2 3 4	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement Engaged/educated local business leaders Implemented communitywide plans			
1 2 3 4	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement Engaged/educated local business leaders Implemented communitywide plans Other:(limit 500 characters)			
1 2 3 4	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement Engaged/educated local business leaders Implemented communitywide plans Other:(limit 500 characters)			
1 2 3 4	(limit 2,000 characters) Criminalization of Homelessness. NOFO Section VII.B.1.k. Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate strategies your CoC implemented to prevent the criminalization of homelessness in your CoC's geographic area: Engaged/educated local policymakers Engaged/educated law enforcement Engaged/educated local business leaders Implemented communitywide plans Other:(limit 500 characters)			

Enter the total number of RRH beds available to serve all populations as reported in the HIC-only enter bed data for projects that have an inventory type of "Current."						iter							
			_			-							

You must enter a value for both years in question 1C-12.

FY2021 CoC Application Page 14 09/30/2021

Applicant: San Francisco Collaborative Applicant **Project:** CA-501 CoC Registration FY 2021

1C-13.	Mainstream Benefits and Other Assistance–Healthcare–Enrollment/Effective Utilization.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.m.	

Indicate in the chart below whether your CoC assists persons experiencing homelessness with enrolling in health insurance and effectively using Medicaid and other benefits.

	Type of Health Care	 Assist with Utilization of Benefits?
1.	Public Health Care Benefits (State or Federal benefits, Medicaid, Indian Health Services)	
2.	Private Insurers	
3.	Nonprofit, Philanthropic	
4.	Other (limit 150 characters)	

You must select a response for elements 1 through 3 in question 1C-13.

1C-13a.	Mainstream Benefits and Other Assistance-Information and Training.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.m
	Describe in the field below how your CoC provides information and training to CoC Program-funded projects by:
1.	systemically providing up to date information on mainstream resources available for program participants (e.g., Food Stamps, SSI, TANF, substance abuse programs) within your CoC's geographic area;
2.	communicating information about available mainstream resources and other assistance and how often your CoC communicates this information;
3.	working with projects to collaborate with healthcare organizations to assist program participants with enrolling in health insurance; and
4.	providing assistance with the effective use of Medicaid and other benefits.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-14.	Centralized or Coordinated Entry System-Assessment Tool. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.n.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC's coordinated entry system:
1.	covers 100 percent of your CoC's geographic area;
2.	reaches people who are least likely to apply for homeless assistance in the absence of special outreach;
3.	prioritizes people most in need of assistance; and
4.	ensures people most in need of assistance receive assistance in a timely manner.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-	1C-15. Promoting Racial Equity in Homelessness–Assessing Racial Disparities.						
	FY2021 CoC Application	Page 15	09/30/2021				

Applicant: San Francisco Collaborative Applicant		CA-501
Project: CA-501 CoC Registration FY 2021	COC_	REG_2021_181860
NOFO Section VII.B.1.o.		
Did your CoC conduct an assessment of whether disparities in the provision or outcome of homeless assis exists within the last 3 years?	stance	

You must select a response for question 1C-15.

1C-15a.	Racial Disparities Assessment Results.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.o.	
	Selectives or no in the chart below to indicate the findings from your CoC's most recent racial	

disparities assessment.

assistance.

People of different races or ethnicities are more likely to receive homeless assistance.
 People of different races or ethnicities are less likely to receive homeless assistance.
 People of different races or ethnicities are more likely to receive a positive outcome from homeless assistance.
 People of different races or ethnicities are less likely to receive a positive outcome from homeless assistance.
 There are no racial or ethnic disparities in the provision or outcome of homeless assistance.
 The results are inconclusive for racial or ethnic disparities in the provision or outcome of homeless

You must select a response for elements 1 through 6 in question 1C-15a.

1C-15b.	Strategies to Address Racial Disparities.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.o.	
		_
	Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate the strategies your CoC is using to address any racial disparities.	

1.	The CoC's board and decisionmaking bodies are representative of the population served in the CoC.	
2.	The CoC has identified steps it will take to help the CoC board and decisionmaking bodies better reflect the population served in the CoC.	
3.	The CoC is expanding outreach in geographic areas with higher concentrations of underrepresented groups.	
4.	The CoC has communication, such as flyers, websites, or other materials, inclusive of underrepresented groups.	
5.	The CoC is training staff working in the homeless services sector to better understand racism and the intersection of racism and homelessness.	
6.	The CoC is establishing professional development opportunities to identify and invest in emerging leaders of different races and ethnicities in the homelessness sector.	
7.	The CoC has staff, committees, or other resources charged with analyzing and addressing racial disparities related to homelessness.	
8.	The CoC is educating organizations, stakeholders, boards of directors for local and national nonprofit organizations working on homelessness on the topic of creating greater racial and ethnic diversity.	
9.	The CoC reviewed coordinated entry processes to understand their impact on people of different races and ethnicities experiencing homelessness.	

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 16	09/30/2021
------------------------	---------	------------

,		The CoC is collecting data to better understand the pattern of program use for people of different races and ethnicities in its homeless services system.	
		The CoC is conducting additional research to understand the scope and needs of different races or ethnicities experiencing homelessness.	
		Other:(limit 500 characters)	
	42		

CA-501

You must select a response for elements 1 through 11 in question 1C-15b.

1C-15c. Promoting Racial Equity in Homelessness Beyond Areas Identified in Racial Disparity Assessment. NOFO Section VII.B.1.o.

Describe in the field below the steps your CoC and homeless providers have taken to improve racial equity in the provision and outcomes of assistance beyond just those areas identified in the racial disparity assessment.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1C-16. Persons with Lived Experience-Active CoC Participation. NOFO Section VII.B.1.p.

Enter in the chart below the number of people with lived experience who currently participate in your CoC under the five categories listed:

	Level of Active Participation	Number of People with Lived Experience Within the Last 7 Years or Current Program Participant	Number of People with Lived Experience Coming from Unsheltered Situations
1.	Included and provide input that is incorporated in the local planning process.		
2.	Review and recommend revisions to local policies addressing homelessness related to coordinated entry, services, and housing.		
3.	Participate on CoC committees, subcommittees, or workgroups.		
4.	Included in the decisionmaking processes related to addressing homelessness.		
5.	Included in the development or revision of your CoC's local competition rating factors.		

You must enter a value of '0' or more for elements 1 through 5 in both columns in question 1C-16.

1C-17.	Promoting Volunteerism and Community Service.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.r.	

Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate steps your CoC has taken to promote and support community engagement among people experiencing homelessness in the CoC's geographic area:

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 17	09/30/2021
1 12021 000 Application	i ago ir	03/30/2021

1.	The CoC trains provider organization staff on connecting program participants and people experiencing homelessness with education and job training opportunities.	
2.	The CoC trains provider organization staff on facilitating informal employment opportunities for program participants and people experiencing homelessness (e.g., babysitting, housekeeping, food delivery, data entry).	
3.	The CoC works with organizations to create volunteer opportunities for program participants.	
4.	The CoC works with community organizations to create opportunities for civic participation for people experiencing homelessness (e.g., townhall forums, meeting with public officials).	
5.	Provider organizations within the CoC have incentives for employment and/or volunteerism.	
6.	Other:(limit 500 characters)	

You must select a response for elements 1 through 5 in question 1C-17.

1D. Addressing COVID-19 in the CoC's Geographic Area

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition
- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFK part 578

1D-1.	Safety Protocols Implemented to Address Immediate Needs of People Experiencing Unsheltered, Congregate Emergency Shelter, Transitional Housing Homelessness.
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.q.
	Describe in the field below protocols your CoC implemented during the COVID-19 pandemic to address immediate safety needs for individuals and families living in:
1.	unsheltered situations;
2.	congregate emergency shelters; and
3.	transitional housing.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1D-2.	Improving Readiness for Future Public Health Emergencies.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.q.	

Describe in the field below how your CoC improved readiness for future public health emergencies.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1D-3. CoC Coordination to Distribute ESG Cares Act (ESG-CV) Funds.

	· ,
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.q
	Describe in the field below how your CoC coordinated with ESG-CV recipients to distribute funds to address:
1.	safety measures;
2.	housing assistance;
3.	eviction prevention;
4.	healthcare supplies; and
5.	sanitary supplies.

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 19	09/30/2021
------------------------	---------	------------

1D-4. CoC Coordination with Mainstream Health.

NOFO Section VII.B.1.q.

Describe in the field below how your CoC coordinated with mainstream health (e.g., local and state health agencies, hospitals) during the COVID-19 pandemic to:

- 1. decrease the spread of COVID-19; and
- 2. ensure safety measures were implemented (e.g., social distancing, hand washing/sanitizing, masks).

(limit 2,000 characters)

1D-5. Communicating Information to Homeless Service Providers.

NOFO Section VII.B.1.q.

Describe in the field below how your CoC communicated information to homeless service providers during the COVID-19 pandemic on:

- 1. safety measures;
- 2. changing local restrictions; and
- 3. vaccine implementation.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1D-6. Identifying Eligible Persons Experiencing Homelessness for COVID-19 Vaccination.

NOFO Section VII.B.1.q.

Describe in the field below how your CoC identified eligible individuals and families experiencing homelessness for COVID-19 vaccination based on local protocol.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1D-7. Addressing Possible Increases in Domestic Violence.

NOFO Section VII.B.1.e.

Describe in the field below how your CoC addressed possible increases in domestic violence calls for assistance due to requirements to stay at home, increased unemployment, etc. during the COVID-19 pandemic.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1D-8. Adjusting Centralized or Coordinated Entry System.

NOFO Section VII.B.1.n.

Describe in the field below how your CoC adjusted its coordinated entry system to account for rapid changes related to the onset and continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic.

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 20	09/30/2021
------------------------	---------	------------

(limit 2,000 characters)

1E. Project Capacity, Review, and Ranking-Local Competition

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition
- FÝ 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload
- 24 CFŘ part 578

1E-	I. Announcement of 30-Day Local Competition Deadline–Advance Public Notice of How Your CoC Would Review, Rank, and Select Projects. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.a. and 2.g.	

Enter the date your CoC published the 30-day submission deadline for project applications for your CoC's local competition.	
Enter the date your CoC publicly posted its local scoring and rating criteria, including point values, in advance of the local review and ranking process.	

You must enter dates for elements 1 and 2 in question 1E-1.

Project Review and Ranking Process Your CoC Used in Its Local Competition. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen. We use the response to this question as a factor when determining your CoC's eligibility for bonus funds and for other NOFO criteria listed below.	

NOFO Section VII.B.2.a., 2.b., 2.c., and 2.d.

Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate how your CoC ranked and selected project applications during your local competition:

1.	Established total points available for each project application type.	
2.	At least 33 percent of the total points were based on objective criteria for the project application (e.g., cost effectiveness, timely draws, utilization rate, match, leverage), performance data, type of population served (e.g., DV, youth, Veterans, chronic homelessness), or type of housing proposed (e.g., PSH, RRH).	
3.	3. At least 20 percent of the total points were based on system performance criteria for the project application (e.g., exits to permanent housing destinations, retention of permanent housing, length of time homeless, returns to homelessness).	
4.	4. Used data from a comparable database to score projects submitted by victim service providers.	
5.	5. Used objective criteria to evaluate how projects submitted by victim service providers improved safety for the population they serve.	
6.	Used a specific method for evaluating projects based on the CoC's analysis of rapid returns to permanent housing.	

You must select a response for elements 1 through 6 in question 1E-2.

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 22	09/30/2021
------------------------	---------	------------

1E-2a.	Project Review and Ranking Process-Addressing Severity of Needs and Vulnerabilities.
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.d.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC reviewed, scored, and selected projects based on:
1.	the specific severity of needs and vulnerabilities your CoC considered when ranking and selecting projects; and
2.	considerations your CoC gave to projects that provide housing and services to the hardest to serve populations that could result in lower performance levels but are projects your CoC needs in its geographic area.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1E-3.	Promoting Racial Equity in the Local Review and Ranking Process.
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.e.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC:
1.	obtained input and included persons of different races, particularly those over-represented in the local homelessness population, when determining the rating factors used to review project applications;
2.	included persons of different races, particularly those over-represented in the local homelessness population, in the review, selection, and ranking process;
3.	rated and ranked projects based on the degree to which their program participants mirror the homeless population demographics (e.g., considers how a project promotes racial equity where individuals and families of different races are over-represented).

(limit 2,000 characters)

1E-4.	Reallocation–Reviewing Performance of Existing Projects. We use the response to this question as a factor when determining your CoC's eligibility for bonus funds and for other NOFO criterion below.
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.f.
	Describe in the field below:
1.	your CoC's reallocation process, including how your CoC determined which projects are candidates for reallocation because they are low performing or less needed;
2.	whether your CoC identified any projects through this process during your local competition this year;
3.	whether your CoC reallocated any low performing or less needed projects during its local competition this year;
4.	why your CoC did not reallocate low performing or less needed projects during its local competition this year, if applicable; and
5.	how your CoC communicated the reallocation process to project applicants.

(limit 2,000 characters)

1E-4a.	Reallocation Between FY 2016 and FY 2021. We use the response to this question as a factor when determining your CoC's eligibility for bonus funds and for other NOFO criterion below.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.f.	

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 23	09/30/2021
1 12021 000 Application	1 agc 20	03/30/2021

Did your CoC cumulatively reallocate at least 20 percent of its ARD between FY 2016 and FY 2021?

You must select a response for question 1E-4a.

1E-5.	Projects Rejected/Reduced-Public Posting. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen if You Select Yes.				
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.g.				
		•			
1.	Did your CoC reject or reduce any project application(s)?				
	If you selected yes, enter the date your CoC notified applicants that their project applications were being rejected or reduced, in writing, outside of e-snaps.				
•	Vou must salect a response for element 1—if you select Ves you must				

You must select a response for element 1-if you select Yes, you must enter a date in element 2 in question 1E-5.

1E-5a.	Projects Accepted-Public Posting. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.2.g.	
	late your CoC notified project applicants that their project applications were accepted and ranked on the enewal Priority Listings in writing, outside of e-snaps.	

You must enter a date in question 1E-5a.

Web Posting of CoC-Approved Consolidated Application. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen.	
NOFO Section VII.B.2.g.	

Enter the date your CoC's Consolidated Application was posted on the CoC's website or affiliate's website-which	!
included:	!
1. the CoC Application;	1
2. Priority Listings: and	!
3. all projects accepted, ranked where required, or rejected.	1
o. all projects accepted, railined where required, or rejected.	

You must enter a date in question 1E-6.

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 24	09/30/2021

2A. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Implementation

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition
- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFK part 578

2A-1.	HMIS Vendor.			
	Not Scored–For Information Only			
inter the r	name of the HMIS Vendor your CoC is currently using.			
	You must enter a response	onse in question 2A-1.		
2A-2.	HMIS Implementation Coverage Area.			
	Not Scored–For Information Only			
elect fron	You must select a respo	onse for question 2A-2.		
	You must select a response	onse for question 2A-2.		
Select from 2A-3.	You must select a response	onse for question 2A-2.		
	You must select a response	onse for question 2A-2.		
2A-3.	You must select a response	onse for question 2A-2.		
2A-3.	You must select a response HIC Data Submission in HDX. NOFO Section VII.B.3.a.			
2A-3.	You must select a responsible of the Police			
2A-3.	You must select a responsible of the Police			
2A-3.	You must select a responsible of the Police	ite in question 2A-3.	nd service	
2A-3. Enter the c	You must select a responsible of the property	Ite in question 2A-3.		

2. submit de-identified aggregated system performance measures data for each project in the comparable database to your CoC and HMIS lead.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2A-5.	Bed Coverage Rate-Using HIC, HMIS Data-CoC Merger Bonus Points.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.3.c. and VII.B.7.	

Enter 2021 HIC and HMIS data in the chart below by project type:

Project Type	Total Beds 2021 HIC	Total Beds in HIC Dedicated for DV	Total Beds in HMIS	HMIS Bed Coverage Rate
1. Emergency Shelter (ES) beds				0.00%
2. Safe Haven (SH) beds				0.00%
3. Transitional Housing (TH) beds				0.00%
4. Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) beds				0.00%
5. Permanent Supportive Housing				0.00%
6. Other Permanent Housing (OPH)				0.00%

You must enter a value for elements 1 through 6 in all three columns. If the project type does not exist in your CoC, enter '0' in all three columns for that project type.

2A-5a.	A-5a. Partial Credit for Bed Coverage Rates at or Below 84.99 for Any Project Type in Question 2A-5.			
NOFO Section VII.B.3.c.				
	For each project type with a bed coverage rate that is at or below 84.99 percent in question 2A-5, describe:			
1.	steps your CoC will take over the next 12 months to increase the bed coverage rate to at least 85 percent for that project type; and			
	how your CoC will implement the steps described to increase bed coverage to at least 85 percent.			

(limit 2,000 characters)

2A-5b.	Bed Coverage Rate in Comparable Databases.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.3.c.	

Enter the percentage of beds covered in comparable databases in your CoC's geographic area.

You must enter a value in question 2A-5b.

2A-5b.1. Partial Credit for Bed Coverage Rates at or Below 84.99 for Question 2A-5b.	
NOFO Section VII.B.3.c.	

If the bed coverage rate entered in question 2A-5b. is 84.99 percent or less, describe in the field below:

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 26	09/30/2021
------------------------	---------	------------

	steps your CoC will take over the next 12 months to increase the bed coverage rate to at least 85 percent; and
2.	how your CoC will implement the steps described to increase bed coverage to at least 85 percent.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2A-6.	Longitudinal System Analysis (LSA) Submission in HDX 2.0.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.3.d.	

Did your CoC submit LSA data to HUD in HDX 2.0 by January 15, 2021, 8 p.m. EST?	
---	--

You must select a response for question 2A-6.

2B. Continuum of Care (CoC) Point-in-Time (PIT) Count

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition
- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFK part 578

2B-1.	Sheltered and Unsheltered PIT Count–Commitment for Calendar Year 2022	
	NOFO Section VII.B.4.b.	
oes your	CoC commit to conducting a sheltered and unsheltered PIT count in Calendar Year 2022?	
	You must select a response for question 2B-1.	
	rou must select a response for question 2B 1.	
	Tou must select a response for question 25 T.	
	Tou must select a response for question 25 1.	
	Tou must select a response for question 25 1.	
2B-2.	Unsheltered Youth PIT Count–Commitment for Calendar Year 2022.	
	· ·	
	Unsheltered Youth PIT Count–Commitment for Calendar Year 2022.	
oes vour	Unsheltered Youth PIT Count–Commitment for Calendar Year 2022.	

You must select a response for question 2B-2.

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 28	09/30/2021	
------------------------	---------	------------	--

2C. System Performance

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:
- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program

- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions-essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

 - 24 CFR part 578

2C-1.	Reduction in the Number of First Time Homeless-Risk Factors.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.b.
	Describe in the field below:
	how your CoC determined which risk factors your CoC uses to identify persons becoming homeless for the first time;
2.	how your CoC addresses individuals and families at risk of becoming homeless; and
3.	provide the name of the organization or position title that is responsible for overseeing your CoC's strategy to reduce the number of individuals and families experiencing homelessness for the first time or to end homelessness for individuals and families.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2C-2.	Length of Time Homeless-Strategy to Reduce.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.c.
	Describe in the field below:
1.	your CoC's strategy to reduce the length of time individuals and persons in families remain homeless;
2.	how your CoC identifies and houses individuals and persons in families with the longest lengths of time homeless; and
	provide the name of the organization or position title that is responsible for overseeing your CoC's strategy to reduce the length of time individuals and families remain homeless.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2C-3.	Exits to Permanent Housing Destinations/Retention of Permanent Housing.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.d.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC will increase the rate that individuals and persons in families residing in:
1.	emergency shelter, safe havens, transitional housing, and rapid rehousing exit to permanent housing destinations; and
2.	permanent housing projects retain their permanent housing or exit to permanent housing destinations.

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application Page 29 09/30/2021

2C-4.	Returns to Homelessness-CoC's Strategy to Reduce Rate.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.e.
	Describe in the field below:
1.	how your CoC identifies individuals and families who return to homelessness;
2.	your CoC's strategy to reduce the rate of additional returns to homelessness; and
3.	provide the name of the organization or position title that is responsible for overseeing your CoC's strategy to reduce the rate individuals and persons in families return to homelessness.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2C-5.	Increasing Employment Cash Income-Strategy.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.f.
	Describe in the field below:
1.	your CoC's strategy to increase employment income;
2.	how your CoC works with mainstream employment organizations to help individuals and families increase their cash income; and
3.	provide the organization name or position title that is responsible for overseeing your CoC's strategy to increase income from employment.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2C-5a.	Increasing Employment Cash Income–Workforce Development–Education–Training.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.f.
	Describe in the field below how your CoC:
1	promoted partnerships and access to employment opportunities with private employers and private employment organizations, such as holding job fairs, outreach to employers, and partnering with staffing agencies; and
2	is working with public and private organizations to provide meaningful education and training, on-the-job training, internships, and employment opportunities for program participants.

(limit 2,000 characters)

2C-5b.	Increasing Non-employment Cash Income.
	NOFO Section VII.B.5.f.
	Describe in the field below:
1.	your CoC's strategy to increase non-employment cash income;
2.	your CoC's strategy to increase access to non-employment cash sources; and
3.	provide the organization name or position title that is responsible for overseeing your CoC's strategy to increase non-employment cash income.

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 30	09/30/2021	ı
1 12021 000 1 ppiloation	i ago oo	00/00/2021	

3A. Coordination with Housing and Healthcare Bonus Points

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program

- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFK part 578

NOFO Section VII.B.6.b.

FY2021 CoC Application

3A-1.	New PH-PSH/PH-RRH Project–Leveraging Housing Resources.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.6.a.	
		1
Is your Co which are homelessr	C applying for a new PSH or RRH project(s) that uses housing subsidies or subsidized housing units not funded through the CoC or ESG Programs to help individuals and families experiencing ness?	
	You must select a response for question 3A-1.	
3A-1a.		
	4B. Attachments Screen.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.6.a.	
		1
	Select yes or no in the chart below to indicate the organization(s) that provided the subsidies or subsidized housing units for the proposed new PH-PSH or PH-RRH project(s).	
		1
1.	Private organizations	
2.	State or local government	
3.	Public Housing Agencies, including use of a set aside or limited preference	
4.	Faith-based organizations	
5.	Federal programs other than the CoC or ESG Programs	
	You must select a response for elements 1 through 5 in question 3A	1a.
3A-2.	New PSH/RRH Project-Leveraging Healthcare Resources.	

Page 31

09/30/2021

Is your CoC applying for a new PSH or RRH project that uses healthcare resources to help individuals and families experiencing homelessness?

You must select a response for question 3A-2.

3A-2a.	Formal Written Agreements-Value of Commitment-Project Restrictions. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen.	
NOFO Section VII.B.6.b.		
	Did your CoC obtain a formal written agreement that includes: (a) the project name; (b) value of the commitment; and (c) specific dates that healthcare resources will be provided (e.g., 1-year, term of grant, etc.)?	
2.	Is project eligibility for program participants in the new PH-PSH or PH-RRH project based on CoC Program fair housing requirements and not restricted by the health care service provider?	

You must select a response for elements 1 and 2 in question 3A-2a.

3A-3.	Leveraging Housing Resources-Leveraging Healthcare Resources-List of Projects.	
	NOFO Sections VII.B.6.a. and VII.B.6.b.	
		•

If you selected yes to question 3A-1. or 3A-2., use the list feature icon to enter information on each project you intend for HUD to evaluate to determine if they meet the bonus points criteria.

Project Name	Project Type	Rank Number	Leverage Type
This list contains no items			

3B. New Projects With Rehabilitation/New Construction Costs

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition

- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFK part 578

3B-1.	Rehabilitation/New Construction Costs-New Projects.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.r.	

Is your CoC requesting funding for any new project application requesting \$200,000 or more in funding for housing rehabilitation or new construction?

You must select a response for question 3B-1.

3B-2.	Rehabilitation/New Construction Costs-New Projects.	
	NOFO Section VII.B.1.s.	
	If you answered yes to question 3B-1, describe in the field below actions CoC Program-funded project applicants will take to comply with:	
1.	Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u); and	
2.	HUD's implementing rules at 24 CFR part 75 to provide employment and training opportunities for low- and very-low-income persons, as well as contracting and other economic opportunities for businesses that provide economic opportunities to low- and very-low-income persons.	

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 33	09/30/2021
------------------------	---------	------------

3C. Serving Persons Experiencing Homelessness as Defined by Other Federal Statutes

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:

- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program Competition
- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions—essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload

- 24 CFŘ part 578

	Designating SSO/TH/Joint TH and PH-RRH Component Projects to Serving Persons Experiencing Homelessness as Defined by Other Federal Statutes.	
	NOFO Section VII.C.	

Is your CoC requesting to designate one or more of its SSO, TH, or Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects to serve families with children or youth experiencing homelessness as defined by other Federal statutes?

You must select a response for question 3C-1.

	Serving Persons Experiencing Homelessness as Defined by Other Federal Statutes. You Must Upload an Attachment to the 4B. Attachments Screen.	
	NOFO Section VII.C.	

If you answered yes to question 3C-1, describe in the field below:

- 1. how serving this population is of equal or greater priority, which means that it is equally or more cost effective in meeting the overall goals and objectives of the plan submitted under Section 427(b)(1)(B) of the Act, especially with respect to children and unaccompanied youth than serving the homeless as defined in paragraphs (1), (2), and (4) of the definition of homeless in 24 CFR 578.3; and
- 2. how your CoC will meet requirements described in Section 427(b)(1)(F) of the Act.

(limit 2,000 characters)

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 34	09/30/2021
1 12021 000 1 (ppilodilo)	ı agoo.	00/00/2021

4A. DV Bonus Application

To help you complete the CoC Application, HUD published resources at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/competition, including:
- Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Program

- FY 2021 CoC Application Detailed Instructions-essential in helping you maximize your CoC Application score by giving specific guidance on how to respond to many questions and providing specific information about attachments you must upload - 24 CFR part 578

4A-1.	New DV Bonus Project Applications.	
	NOFO Section II.B.11.e.	

Did your CoC submit one or more new project applications for DV Bonus Funding?

You must select a response for question 4A-1.

Applicant Name	
	This list contains no items

4B. Attachments Screen For All Application Questions

We prefer that you use PDF files, though other file types are supported. Please only use zip files if necessary.

Attachments must match the questions they are associated with.

Only upload documents responsive to the questions posed–including other material slows down the review process, which ultimately slows down the funding process.

We must be able to read the date and time on attachments requiring system-generated dates and times, (e.g., a screenshot displaying the time and date of the public posting using your desktop calendar; screenshot of a webpage that indicates date and time).

Document Type	Required?	Document Description	Date Attached
1C-14. CE Assessment Tool	Yes		
1C-7. PHA Homeless Preference	No		
1C-7. PHA Moving On Preference	No		
1E-1. Local Competition Announcement	Yes		
1E-2. Project Review and Selection Process	Yes		
1E-5. Public Posting–Projects Rejected-Reduced	Yes		
1E-5a. Public Posting–Projects Accepted	Yes		
1E-6. Web Posting–CoC- Approved Consolidated Application	Yes		
3A-1a. Housing Leveraging Commitments	No		
3A-2a. Healthcare Formal Agreements	No		
3C-2. Project List for Other Federal Statutes	No		

			٦.
FY2021 CoC Application	Page 36	09/30/2021	

Attachment Details

Document Description:

Attachment Details

Document Description:

FY2021 CoC Application	Page 37	09/30/2021	
------------------------	---------	------------	--

Attachment Details

Document Description:

FY2021 CoC Application Page 38 U9/30/2021

Submission Summary

Ensure that the Project Priority List is complete prior to submitting.

Page	Last Updated
1A. CoC Identification	09/30/2021
1B. Inclusive Structure	Please Complete
1C. Coordination	Please Complete
1C. Coordination continued	Please Complete
1D. Addressing COVID-19	Please Complete
1E. Project Review/Ranking	Please Complete
2A. HMIS Implementation	Please Complete
2B. Point-in-Time (PIT) Count	Please Complete
2C. System Performance	Please Complete
3A. Housing/Healthcare Bonus Points	Please Complete
3B. Rehabilitation/New Construction Costs	Please Complete

Page 39

09/30/2021

FY2021 CoC Application

3C. Serving Homeless Under Other Federal Please Complete

Statutes

4A. DV Bonus Application Please Complete

4B. Attachments Screen Please Complete

Submission Summary No Input Required



U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Community Planning and Development

Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Continuum of Care Competition and Noncompetitive Award of Youth Homeless Demonstration Program Renewal and Replacement Grants FR-6500-N-25 11/16/2021

Table of Contents

OVERVIEW	1
I. Funding Opportunity Description and Program Overview	1
II. HUD's Homeless Policy Priorities and Program Highlights	9
III. Continuum of Care Program Requirements	17
IV. Award Information	28
V. Eligibility Information	28
VI. APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION	50
VII. Application Review Information.	58
VIII. Project Review and Selection Process	80
IX. Award Administration Information	82
X. Appeals	86
XI. Agency Contacts	91
XII. Other Information	91

OVERVIEW

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issues this Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) to invite applications from eligible applicants for the program and purpose described within this NOFO. Prospective applicants should carefully read all instructions in all sections to avoid sending an incomplete or ineligible application. HUD funding is highly competitive. Failure to respond accurately to any submission requirement could result in an incomplete or noncompetitive proposal.

During the selection process HUD is prohibited from disclosing 1) information regarding any applicant's relative standing, 2) the amount of assistance requested by an applicant, and 3) any information contained in the application. Prior to the application deadline, HUD may not disclose the identity of any applicant or the number of applicants that have applied for assistance.

For Further Information regarding this NOFO - Please direct specific program requirements of this NOFO to the office contact identified in Section XI.

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement. The information collection requirements in this notice have been approved by OMB under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (44 U.S.C. 3501-3520). In accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act, HUD may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless the collection displays a valid OMB control number. Each NOFO will identify its applicable OMB control number

OMB Approval Number(s):

2506-0112

I. Funding Opportunity Description and Program Overview

A. Program Description. The Continuum of Care (CoC) Program (24 CFR part 578) is designed to promote a community-wide commitment to the goal of ending homelessness; to provide funding for efforts by nonprofit providers, states, Indian Tribes or tribally designated housing entities (as defined in section 4 of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act of 1996 (25 U.S.C. 4103) (TDHEs)), and local governments to quickly rehouse homeless individuals, families, persons fleeing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, and youth while minimizing the trauma and dislocation caused by homelessness; to promote access to and effective utilization of mainstream programs by homeless individuals and families; and to optimize self-sufficiency among those experiencing homelessness.

The goal of the Youth Homelessness Demonstration Program (YHDP) is to support the development and implementation of a coordinated community approach to preventing and ending youth homelessness and sharing that experience with and mobilizing communities around the country toward the same end. The population to be served by the demonstration program is youth experiencing homelessness, including unaccompanied and pregnant or parenting youth.

- **B. Authority**. The CoC Program is authorized by subtitle C of title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, (42 U.S.C. 11381–11389) (the Act), and the CoC Program rule found in 24 CFR part 578 (the Rule). The Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 funds were authorized by the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020 (Public Law 116-94, approved December 20, 2019). The FY 2021 funds were authorized by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 116-260, approved December 27, 2020). The renewal and replacement of YHDP grants is authorized by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021.
- **C. Deadline.** The deadline for submitting applications to HUD for the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition is 8:00 PM EST on November 16, 2021. Applicants must complete and submit their applications in *e-snaps* at https://esnaps.hud.gov/. See Sections VI.E and F of this NOFO for application submission and timely receipt requirements.
- **D.** Available Funds. Approximately \$2,656,000,000 is available in this FY 2021 CoC Program NOFO, including approximately \$77,000,000, available for non-competitive YHDP renewal and replacement expiring grants, and up to \$102,000,000 available for Domestic Violence (DV) Bonus projects (of which up to \$50,000,000 is carried over from the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020), described in Section II.B.5 of this NOFO. HUD may add to the total amount with available funds that have been carried over or recaptured from previous fiscal years. All requirements in the FY 2021 application process, including requirements for the entire CoC Consolidated Application and the total amount of funds available, are included in this NOFO. HUD will continue to require Collaborative Applicants to rank all projects, except YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and Unified Funding Agency (UFA) Costs in two tiers as described in Sections II.B.11.a and b of this NOFO.
- **E. Summary of the Application Process.** The FY 2021 CoC Program Competition is administered under the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition NOFO and Rule. The FY 2021 YHDP non-competitive renewal and replacement of expiring YHDP grants is administered under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 which permits expiring YHDP projects to renew or

replace non-competitively through the CoC Program. See Section II.B.7 of this NOFO for the requirements that apply to YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects. Applicants should review and follow the steps as outlined below to ensure applications are complete and submitted timely. Documents referenced in this section can be found on the CoC Program page of HUD's website: https://www.hud.gov/program offices/comm planning/coc.

1. CoC Registration.

Collaborative Applicants were required to complete the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration in accordance with Notice CPD-18-03: Continuum of Care Registration. If a Collaborative Applicant did not complete the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration, HUD moved the previous year's registration forward with no changes.

2. CoC Project Review and Ranking.

Project applications submitted to the CoC for inclusion on the FY 2021 CoC Priority Listing as part of the CoC Consolidated Application must be reviewed and either accepted and ranked, approved, or rejected by the CoC. All project applications approved by the CoC must be listed on the CoC Priority Listing in rank order, except project applications for YHDP renewal or replacement, CoC planning and UFA Costs projects which are not ranked. Higher ranked projects will be assigned to Tier 1 and lower ranked projects will be assigned to Tier 2 as described in Sections II.B.11.a and b of this NOFO. The purpose of this two-tiered approach is for CoCs to notify HUD which projects are prioritized for funding based on local needs and gaps.

- 3. CoC Consolidated Application Submission. Collaborative Applicants, including any Collaborative Applicant designated by HUD as a UFA, are responsible for submitting the CoC Consolidated Application in *e-snaps* on behalf of the CoC. The CoC Consolidated Application is made up of the following three parts:
 - a. FY 2021 CoC Application. The Collaborative Applicant must provide information about the CoC planning body, governance structure, overall performance, and the strategic planning process. This part of the application is scored and will determine the order in which CoCs are funded.
 - b. FY 2021 Project Application. Project applications must be completed by project applicants for all renewal, new, CoC planning, UFA Costs, and YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement including the population(s) and subpopulation(s) they will serve, the type of housing and services that will be provided, and the budget activities that are being requested. Collaborative Applicants applying for CoC planning and UFA Costs (if designated as a UFA by HUD) must provide a description of the activities that will be carried out with CoC Program grant funds. For more information on project applications, see Section V of this NOFO. Additionally, all project applicants must ensure their organization has a Code of Conduct that complies with the requirements of 2 CFR part 200 and is included on HUD's website. If the organization's Code of Conduct does not appear on HUD's website, the project applicant must attach its Code of Conduct that includes all required information to its Project Applicant Profile in e-snaps.
 - c. FY 2021 CoC Priority Listing. The CoC Priority Listing includes:

- (1) The reallocation forms for CoCs to indicate which eligible renewal projects, if any, will be reduced or eliminated through the reallocation process.
- (2) Six separate project listing forms:
 - (a) two project listings require that all project applications are ranked with unique number, New (reallocated, CoC Bonus, and DV Bonus) and Renewal, in order of priority and identify any project applications rejected by the CoC; and (b) four project listings for non-ranked project applications, YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and UFA Costs (if applicable); and, Collaborative Applicants must ensure only one project application for CoC planning, and if the CoC's Collaborative Applicant is designated as a UFA by HUD, one UFA Costs project application is submitted by the CoC.
- (3) Form HUD-2991, Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan, which must be signed by the authorizing jurisdiction(s) and dated between August 17, 2021 and November 16, 2021. Additionally, applicants that propose to claim a reservation or trust land geographic area and to locate a project on a reservation or trust land must include a tribal resolution from the tribe authorizing the applicant to do so. Tribes do not need to include a tribal resolution to claim their own reservation or trust land or to site a project on their own reservation or trust land. A tribal resolution is the formal manner in which the tribal government expresses its legislative will in accordance with its organic documents. In the absence of such organic documents, a written expression adopted pursuant to tribal practices will be acceptable.

Collaborative Applicants will also be required to certify there is a demonstrated need for all ranked permanent housing renewal projects and these projects comply with program requirements and appropriate standards of housing quality and habitability on the Renewal Project Listing. For more information on the CoC Priority Listing, see Section VI.E.3 of this NOFO.

F. Eligible Applicants.

- 1. Collaborative Applicants. Only those CoCs with a valid registration for FY 2021 will have access to the FY 2021 CoC Consolidated Application, which includes the CoC Application, CoC Priority Listing, and the project application(s). CoCs should not attempt to change Collaborative Applicants during the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition without HUD's prior approval unless HUD replaces the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant under the authority of Section 402(c) of the Act. HUD will approve Collaborative Applicant changes outside the annual CoC Program Registration process under the following circumstances:
 - a. the Collaborative Applicant made an error when entering the Collaborative Applicant name in the CoC Applicant Profile;
 - b. the Collaborative Applicant designated by the CoC is no longer in business;
 - c. the CoC selected a new Collaborative Applicant; or
 - d. a new Collaborative Applicant was selected by HUD as a remedial action under Section 402(c) of the Act.

In cases where the CoC needs to change the Collaborative Applicant approved during the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process, the CoC must notify the local HUD CPD field office, in writing, stating the reason for the Collaborative Applicant change. The notice to

HUD must provide documentation of the CoC's approval of the change (e.g., a copy of the meeting minutes to include the date and attendees).

- 2. Project Applicants. Eligible project applicants for the CoC Program are identified in Section V.A of this NOFO. For-profit entities are ineligible, and applications submitted from these entities will not be reviewed.
- **G.** Amendments to FY 2021 CoC Program Registration. A Collaborative Applicant that intends to apply for a project in a formula area that is not a metropolitan city, urban county, town, village, or other nonentitlement area and is not currently included in their CoC's geographic area may add the formula area to the CoC's geographic area by sending an email to HUD at CoCNOFO@hud.gov with the following information:
 - 1. The name of the CoC; and
 - 2. The name of the tribe(s) assigned to the formula area(s) that the Collaborative Applicant is seeking to add.

The message must be submitted to HUD by October 22, 2021. The formula area must be either contiguous to the CoC's existing geographic area or the formula area must overlap with the CoC's existing geographic area. HUD will review the request and respond to the Collaborative Applicant indicating whether the formula area indicated is eligible to be included in the CoC's geographic area. Because the PPRN formula does not assign values to formula areas that are not metropolitan cities, urban counties, towns, villages, or other nonentitlement areas, there will be no changes to the CoC's PPRN. Collaborative Applicants can find a list of formula areas on the CoC Program Competition page on HUD's website. The addition of a formula area to the CoC's geographic area will only affect this year's CoC Program Competition. If a CoC wants to include the formula area to its geographic area for future CoC Program Competitions, the Collaborative Applicant must include the formula area in the next CoC Registration process.

- **H. Local Competition Deadlines.** 24 CFR 578.9 requires CoCs to design, operate, and follow a collaborative process for the development of an application in response to a NOFO issued by HUD. As part of this collaborative process, CoCs should implement internal competition deadlines and notification processes to ensure transparency and fairness at the local level. The implementation of deadlines that meet the standards outlined in Section VII.B.2.g of this NOFO for FY 2021 project applications will be part of the scoring criteria.
- I. CoC Review of Project Applications. HUD expects each CoC to implement a thorough review and oversight process at the local level for both new and renewal project applications submitted to HUD in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition. It has been HUD's experience that many project applications contain information resulting in conditions on the grant; or for more serious infractions, a project application being rejected. Deficient project applications prolong the review process for HUD, which results in delayed funding announcements, lost funding for CoCs due to rejected projects, and delays in funding to house and assist individuals and families experiencing homelessness. CoCs are expected to closely review the information provided in each project application, including YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement projects, to ensure:

- 1. all proposed program participants will be eligible for the program component type selected, including YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement projects;
- 2.the information provided in the project application and proposed activities are:
 - a. eligible and consistent with program requirements in the Rule; or
 - b. eligible YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement projects (see Sections II.B.7 and V.
 - B.3.g of this NOFO);
- 3. each project narrative is fully responsive to the question being asked and that it meets all the criteria for that question as required by this NOFO;
- 4. the data provided in various parts of the project application are consistent; and
- 5. all required attachments correspond to the list of attachments in *e-snaps* that must contain accurate and complete information that are dated between August 17, 2021 and November 16, 2021.
- **J. FY 2021 CoC Program Competition NOFO.** CoCs and applicants should read this NOFO in its entirety in conjunction with the Rule to ensure a comprehensive understanding of and compliance with all CoC Program requirements. This NOFO frequently references citations from the Rule.
 - 1. CoCs should consider the policy priorities established in this NOFO in conjunction with local priorities to determine the ranking of new and renewal project application requests. See Section II of this NOFO for more information on HUD's homelessness policy priorities and program highlights.
 - 2. HUD will conduct threshold reviews of project applicants, subrecipients, and project applications for all CoC Consolidated Applications submitted by the application submission deadline as described in Section VIII.
 - 3. HUD may issue more than one conditional funding announcement, including for those instances where a CoC has been affected by a disaster and for which HUD has extended the deadline for application submission.
 - 4. HUD will score the FY 2021 CoC Application portion of the Consolidated Application in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section VII.B of this NOFO.
 - 5. CoC planning and UFA Costs project applications are not ranked and will be selected provided they pass project eligibility and project quality threshold review.
 - 6.YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement project applications are not ranked and will be selected for funding provided they pass project eligibility and project quality threshold review, and for YHDP renewals, project renewal threshold; as explained in Section V.C.3.c of this NOFO. YHDP replacement project applications will not be rejected during quality threshold review; however, HUD may need to work with the YHDP replacement recipients to correct or revise information submitted after the final FY 2021 award announcement.
 - 7. New DV Bonus project applications passing project eligibility and project quality threshold may be selected:

a. with DV Bonus funds based on the CoC Application score and the responses to the domestic violence specific bonus questions in the CoC Application (Section II.B.11.e of this NOFO) which will remove the DV Bonus project application from the Tier 1 and Tier 2 ranking process; or

b. without DV Bonus funds as a new project where the project application will retain its ranked position in Tier 1 or Tier 2 and may be selected as outlined in Sections II.B.11. a or b of this NOFO.

- 8. Using the Tier 1 and Tier 2 ranking process in Sections II.B.11.a and b, HUD select:
 - a. new project applications, created through reallocation or CoC Bonus, and renewal project applications passing project eligibility, project quality threshold, and if applicable, project renewal threshold, based on ranked position in Tier 1 (Section II.B.11.a of this NOFO); and
 - b. new project applications, created through reallocation or CoC Bonus, and renewal project applications passing project eligibility, project quality threshold, and if applicable, project renewal threshold in Tier 2 based on the CoC Application score and the project application score outlined in Section II.B.11.b of this NOFO.

K. Changes from Previous NOFO.

1. The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 116-260, approved December 27, 2020) amended title IV section 435 of the Act to allow Indian Tribes and Tribally Designated Housing Entities (TDHE) to be Collaborative Applicants, eligible entities, or subrecipients of the CoC Program in addition to amending title IV section 401 to add the terms "Formula Area" and "Indian Tribe." These amendments mean that not only may Tribes and TDHEs apply for grants through other CoCs, but that formula areas, as that term is defined in the Indian Housing Block Grant program at 24 CFR 1000.302, are eligible to be added to the geographic areas of existing CoCs or may be included in newly formed CoCs. HUD has chosen to implement integration of Tribes and TDHEs into the CoC program in stages because tribal consultation is not yet complete. For the FY 2021 competition, Tribes and TDHEs will be eligible to apply for projects through existing CoCs only. Projects sited on trust land or reservations may be eligible if applicants obtain a certification that the projects are consistent with an approved Consolidated Plan. If a Collaborative Applicant is submitting an application for a project sited on trust land or reservations, they should follow the steps described in I.G. of this NOFO to update their CoC Geographic Area. HUD plans to publish PPRNs in FY 2022 for all formula areas and make formula areas available to be claimed by CoCs during the next Registration Process. Additionally, applicants that propose to claim a reservation or trust land geographic area and to locate a project on a reservation or trust land must include a tribal resolution from the tribe authorizing the applicant to do so. Tribes do not need to include a tribal resolution to claim their own reservation or trust land or to site a project on their own reservation or trust land. A tribal resolution is the formal manner in which the tribal government expresses its legislative will in accordance with its organic documents. In the absence of such organic documents, a written expression adopted pursuant to tribal practices will be acceptable. Beginning in the FY 2022 Competition, HUD will publish PPRNs for all formula areas and make formula areas available to be claimed by continuums CoCs during the FY 2022 CoC Program Registration process.

- 2. Using the Housing First model to prioritize rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing without service participation requirements or preconditions is returning in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition.
- 3. As required by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 116-260, approved December 27, 2020), HUD will incentivize CoCs that create projects that coordinate with housing providers and healthcare organizations to provide permanent housing and rapid rehousing services.
- 4. HUD increased the number of points in Section VII.B.1.g of this NOFO related to CoC coordination with Public Housing Agencies (PHAs) to:
 - a. add PHA-funded units to CoC coordinated entry;
 - b. apply for or implement funding provided for Housing Choice Vouchers dedicated to homelessness, including vouchers provided through the American Rescue Plan of 2021 (Pub. L. 117-2) (the "American Rescue Plan");
 - c. prepare and submit joint applications for funding specifically for individuals and families experiencing homelessness: and
 - d. established admission preferences for households experiencing homelessness.
- 5. HUD revised its evaluation of racial disparity from the FY 2019 CoC Program NOFO to place focus on racial equity and increased the number of points in Section VII.B.1.0 of this NOFO related to whether people of different races or ethnicities are less likely to receive homeless assistance or positive outcomes, whether racial or ethnic disparities are present, and whether CoCs and homeless providers identified barriers that led to these disparities and have taken steps to eliminate these barriers to improve racial equity. Additionally, points were added to Section VII.B.2.e of this NOFO to determine if CoCs are promoting racial equity related to the local CoC competition related to rating factors; review, selection, and rank process; and rating and ranking projects based on the degree to which program participants mirror homeless population demographics.
- 6. A new category has been added to Section VII.B of this NOFO to promote inclusion in the local planning process of current and former homeless persons with lived experience to:
 - a. address homelessness;
 - b. determine how local policies may need to be revised and updated;
 - c. participate in CoC meetings and on committees as stakeholders;
 - d. provide input for decisions; and
 - e. provide input related to the local competition process.
- 7. Determining the impact of COVID-19 as CoCs faced challenges due to the outbreak of COVID-19 affecting individuals and families experiencing homelessness in congregate and non-congregate shelter or housing as well as increased risks for individuals and families experiencing unsheltered homelessness. Points were added to Section VII.B of this NOFO related to how CoCs addressed challenges resulting from the outbreak of COVID-19 affecting individuals and families experiencing homelessness, including increased calls due to domestic violence, the need for additional assistance related to mainstream benefits and other assistance, and changes needed to the CoC's coordinated entry system.

- 8. Points are being awarded for coordination with Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) regarding CARES Act funding and distribution with the CoC's geographic area and use of these funds to address homelessness and COVID-19.
- 9. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, most communities could not conduct an unsheltered count in 2021 that is comparable to previous counts. For this year, HUD has determined that the sheltered count is a better reflection of overall changes of homelessness and is not evaluating unsheltered data in this year's NOFO. HUD plans to measure sheltered and unsheltered populations in 2022.

II. HUD's Homeless Policy Priorities and Program Highlights

- **A. Policy Priorities.** This section provides additional context regarding the selection criteria found in Section VII.B of this NOFO and is included here to help applicants better understand how the selection criteria support the goal of ending homelessness:
 - 1. Ending homelessness for all persons. To end homelessness, CoCs should identify, engage, and effectively serve all persons experiencing homelessness. CoCs should measure their performance based on local data that consider the challenges faced by all subpopulations experiencing homelessness in the geographic area (e.g., veterans, youth, families, or those experiencing chronic homelessness). CoCs should partner with housing, health care, and supportive services providers to expand housing options, such as permanent supportive housing, housing subsidies, and rapid rehousing. Additionally, CoCs should use local data to determine the characteristics of individuals and families with the highest needs and longest experiences of homelessness to develop housing and supportive services tailored to their needs.
 - 2. Use a Housing First approach. Housing First prioritizes rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing and does not have service participation requirements or preconditions. CoC Program funded projects should help individuals and families move quickly into permanent housing, and the CoC should measure and help projects reduce the length of time people experience homelessness. Additionally, CoCs should engage landlords and property owners to identify an inventory of housing available for rapid rehousing and permanent supportive housing participants, remove barriers to entry, and adopt client-centered service methods. HUD encourages CoCs to assess how well Housing First approaches are being implemented in their communities.
 - 3. Reducing Unsheltered Homelessness. In recent years, the number of people experiencing unsheltered homelessness has risen significantly, including a rising number of encampments in many communities across the country. People living unsheltered have extremely high rates of physical and mental illness and substance use disorders. CoCs should identify permanent housing options for people who are unsheltered.
 - 4. *Improving System Performance*. CoCs should be using system performance measures (e.g., average length of homeless episodes, rates of return to homelessness, rates of exit to permanent housing destinations) to determine how effectively they are serving people experiencing homelessness. Additionally, CoCs should use their Coordinated Entry process

to promote participant choice, coordinate homeless assistance and mainstream housing, and services to ensure people experiencing homelessness receive assistance quickly, and make homelessness assistance open, inclusive, and transparent. CoCs should review all projects eligible for renewal in FY 2021 to determine their effectiveness in serving people experiencing homelessness, including cost-effectiveness. CoCs should also look for opportunities to implement continuous quality improvement and other process improvement strategies. HUD recognizes the effects of COVID-19 on CoC performance and data quality and, compared to previous CoC NOFOs, reduces the points available for rating factors related to system performance. However, HUD plans to significantly increase the points available for system performance rating factors in the FY 2022 and subsequent CoC NOFOs.

- 5. Partnering with Housing, Health, and Service Agencies. Using cost performance and outcome data, CoCs should improve how all available resources are utilized to end homelessness. This is especially important as the CARES Act and American Rescue Plan have provided significant new resources to help end homelessness. HUD encourages CoCs to maximize the use of mainstream and other community-based resources when serving persons experiencing homelessness and should:
 - a. work closely with public and private healthcare organizations and assist program participants to obtain medical insurance to address healthcare needs; b. partner closely with PHAs and state and local housing organizations to utilize coordinated entry, develop housing units, and provide housing subsidies to people experiencing homelessness. These partnerships can also help CoC Program participants exit permanent supportive housing through Housing Choice Vouchers and other available housing options. CoCs and PHAs should especially work together to implement targeted programs such as Emergency Housing Vouchers, HUD-VASH, Mainstream Vouchers, Family Unification Program Vouchers, and other housing voucher programs targeted to people experiencing homelessness. CoCs should coordinate with their state and local housing agencies on the utilization of new HOME program resources provided through the Homelessness Assistance and Supportive Services Program that was created through the American Rescue Plan;
 - c. partner with local workforce development centers to improve employment opportunities; and
 - d. work with tribal organizations to ensure that tribal members can access CoC-funded assistance when a CoC's geographic area borders a tribal area.
- 6. Racial Equity. In nearly every community, Black, Indigenous, and other people of color are substantially overrepresented in the homeless population. HUD is emphasizing system and program changes to address racial equity within CoCs. CoCs should review local policies, procedures, and processes to determine where and how to address racial disparities affecting individuals and families experiencing homelessness.
- 7. Persons with Lived Experience. HUD is encouraging CoCs to include in the local planning process people who are currently experiencing or have formerly experienced homelessness to address homelessness. People with lived experience should determine how local policies may need to be revised and updated, participate in CoC meetings and committees as stakeholders, provide input on decisions, and provide input related to the local competition process (e.g.,

how rating factors are determined). CoCs should seek opportunities to hire people with lived experience.

- **B.** CoC Program Implementation. The following list highlights important information that applicants should consider as they are preparing the FY 2021 CoC Application and project applications(s). This is not an exhaustive list of considerations or requirements; therefore, all applicants should carefully review the Rule for comprehensive information.
 - 1. Performance-Based Decisions. Consistent with the requirements of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, and the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020:
 - a. Requests for new project applications are not allowed, other than through reallocation unless the CoC evaluates and competitively ranks projects based on how they improve system performance as outlined in Section VII.B.2.b of this NOFO; and b. HUD will prioritize funding for CoCs that have demonstrated the capacity to reallocate funding from lower to higher performing projects.
 - 2. Indian Tribes or Tribally Designated Housing Entities (TDHE). The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 amended title IV of the Act by adding section 435 so designated Indian Tribe or TDHEs (as defined in section 4 of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act of 1996 (25 U.S.C. 4103) may:
 - a. be a Collaborative Applicant, eligible project applicant, or subrecipient; or b. receive grant amounts from another entity that receives a grant directly from HUD.

In FY 2021, Indian Tribes or TDHEs are eligible to apply for CoC Program funds as a project applicant or sub-recipient; and if approved by the CoC, may be designated as a Collaborative Applicant.

- 3. Transition Grants. See Section III.B.2.z of this NOFO for a definition of the transition grant and process.
- 4. Coordination with Housing and Healthcare. The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 directs HUD to provide incentives to create projects that coordinate with housing providers and healthcare organizations to provide permanent supportive housing and rapid rehousing services. In the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition, CoCs may receive up to 10 bonus points on the CoC Application if the CoC Priority Listing includes new project applications created through reallocation or the CoC Bonus that utilizes housing vouchers and healthcare provided through an array of healthcare services providers. See Section VII.B.6 of this NOFO for additional details.
- 5. Domestic Violence (DV) Bonus. The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 provides up to \$52 million for "rapid re-housing projects and supportive service projects providing coordinated entry, and for eligible activities that the Secretary determines to be critical in order to assist survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking." Additionally, up to \$50 million is added to the amount from the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020 as HUD did not conduct an FY 2020 CoC Program Competition, but instead only awarded eligible renewal projects. Therefore, the total amount of DV Bonus funding is \$102 million which will be used for new DV-specific project

applications where 100 percent of the participants are or will be survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. See Section II.B.11.e of this NOFO for additional information.

- 6. Consolidation Project. Project applicants can consolidate two but no more than ten eligible renewal projects during the application process. The projects being combined during a grant consolidation will continue uninterrupted. To be eligible for consolidation, the projects must have the same recipient and be for the same component; and will only be funded in this Competition with FY 2021 funds (meaning no funds recaptured from prior years will be awarded to the project). See Section V.B.4.a.(7) of this NOFO for additional information.
- 7. Youth Homeless Demonstration Program (YHDP). Consistent with the requirements of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, funding for the CoC Program may be used to competitively or non-competitively renew or replace grants for YHDP projects. HUD has decided to non-competitively renew or replace expiring YHDP grants; however, these project applications will be reviewed for compliance with project eligibility, project quality, and if applicable, project renewal thresholds. See Sections II.B.11.d, II.B.11.f, and V.B.4.a.(5) of this NOFO for additional information.

While YHDP projects can use the consolidation process as outlined in Section II.B.6 and V.B.4.a.(7) of this NOFO these projects cannot consolidate with a non-YHDP projects. YHDP projects cannot use the expansion (Section III.B.2.j) or reallocation processes (Section III.B.2.w) outlined of this NOFO.

All YHDP renewal and replacement projects are subject to the following provisions of the Rule, as may be amended from time to time, except where they conflict with the NOFO requirements, with the special YHDP activities identified in Section V.B.4.a.(5) of this NOFO, or the requirement that grant funds may only be used to serve homeless youth, age 24 and younger: 24 CFR 578.3, 578.15, 578.23(a), 578.25, 578.27, 578.29, 578.37, 578.43, 578.45, 578.47, 578.49, 578.51, 578.53, 578.55, 578.57, 578.59, 578.61, 578.63, 578.73(c), 578.75, 578.77, 578.79, 578.81, 578.83, 578.85, 578.87, 578.89, 578.89, 578.91, 578.93, 578.95, 578.97, 578.99, 578.103(a)(3) - (18) and (b) - (e), 578.107 and 578.109. The requirements of 2 CFR 200.306, as may be amended from time to time, with the exception of 200.306(b)(5) apply.

- 8. Adjustments for Ineligible Projects. If an ineligible renewal project is submitted in this Competition or used in the reallocation process, or an ineligible YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement project is submitted, HUD will remove the ineligible project when calculating the final ARD amount for the CoC. To be eligible for renewal in FY 2021, a project must have an executed grant agreement by December 31, 2021, and have an expiration date in Calendar Year (CY) 2022 (between January 1, 2022, and December 31, 2022).
- 9. HMIS. As directed by Congress, HUD must provide an annual estimate of all individuals and families experiencing homelessness nationwide and within the territories. Therefore, all CoCs must have an HMIS that has the capacity to collect unduplicated counts of individuals

and families experiencing homelessness and provide information to project subrecipients and applicants for needs analysis and funding priorities. Additionally, CoC and Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program recipients must participate in the local HMIS; unless a recipient is a victim service provider or legal service provider, in which case it must use a comparable database and provide de-identified information to the CoC. For many communities, the inclusion of ESG recipients and subrecipients and other HUD federal partners (e.g., the Department of Health and Human Services and Department of Veterans Affairs) that require their programs to use the CoC's HMIS, results in an increase in users that the HMIS must be able to accommodate. HUD expects communities to be able to use the HMIS information as well as aggregate data from comparable databases to review performance for the entire CoC geographic area, not just at the project level. The HMIS Lead should continue to consider any unique needs that the HMIS might be required to address to accommodate emergency shelter, street outreach, homelessness prevention, and other federal programs.

10. Review of CoC Rankings. CoCs will be required to rank all new reallocated, CoC Bonus, DV Bonus, and renewal project applications submitted by project applicants in *e-snaps*, except YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC Planning, and UFA Costs (if applicable) projects.

11. HUD Funding Process. HUD will continue the Tier 1 and Tier 2 funding selection process. CoCs and applicants should ensure there is a thorough understanding of the information provided in this NOFO. For CoC Collaborative Applicants designated as a UFA, HUD will use the selection process described in Section II.B.11 of this NOFO. HUD will establish each CoC's Tier 1 and Tier 2 amounts based on the total amount of funds requested by eligible renewal project applications on the Renewal Project Listing combined with the eligible renewal project amount(s) that were reallocated as listed on the reallocation forms in the CoC Priority Listing. HUD will post a report that lists the available amounts for each CoC's PPRN, estimated ARD, Tier 1, CoC planning, CoC Bonus, and DV Bonus on HUD's website. The Grant Inventory Worksheets (GIWs) are also posted on HUD's website. Section VIII of this NOFO provides additional information regarding project selection.

a. Tier 1. Tier 1 is equal to 100 percent of the CoC's Annual Renewal Demand (ARD) as described in Section III.B.2.a of this NOFO minus the Annual Renewal Amounts (ARAs) of YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects. Project applications in Tier 1 will be conditionally selected from the highest scoring CoC to the lowest scoring CoC, provided the project applications pass both project eligibility and project quality threshold review, and if applicable, project renewal threshold. Any type of new or renewal project application can be placed in Tier 1, except YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and if applicable, UFA Costs projects as these projects are not ranked. If a DV Bonus project ranked in Tier 1 is selected with DV Bonus funds, the project will be removed from this tier and the projects below it will move up one rank position. However, if a new DV Bonus project is not selected with DV Bonus funds, the project will retain its ranked position (see Section II.B.11.e of this NOFO). In the event insufficient funding is available to award all Tier 1 projects, Tier 1 will be reduced proportionately, which could result in some Tier 1 projects falling into Tier 2. Therefore, CoCs should carefully determine the priority and ranking for all project applications in

Tier 1 as well as Tier 2, which is described below.

b. Tier 2. Tier 2 is the difference between Tier 1 and the maximum amount of renewal, reallocation, and CoC Bonus funds that a CoC can apply for, but does not include YHDP renewal or YHDP replacement projects, CoC planning projects, and if applicable, UFA Costs projects, or projects selected with DV Bonus funds. If a DV Bonus project ranked in Tier 2 is selected with DV Bonus funds, the project will be removed from this tier and the projects below it will move up one rank position. However, if a new DV Bonus project is not selected with DV Bonus funds, the project will retain its ranked position (see Section II.B.11.e of this NOFO). Project applications placed in Tier 2 will be assessed for project eligibility and project quality threshold requirements, and if applicable, project renewal threshold requirements, and funding will be determined using the CoC Application score as well as the factors listed in Section II.B.11 of this NOFO.

HUD will award a point value to each new and renewal project application that is in Tier 2 using a 100-point scale:

- (1) CoC Score. Up to 50 points in direct proportion to the score received on the CoC Application; e.g., if a CoC received 81.5 out of 163 points on the CoC Application, the project application would receive 25 out of 50 points for this criterion.

 (2) CoC Project Ranking. Up to 40 points for the CoC's ranking of the project application(s). To consider the CoCs ranking of projects, point values will be assigned directly related to the CoCs' ranking of project applications. The calculation of point values will be 50 times the quantity (1-x) where x is the ratio of the cumulative funding requests for all projects or portions of projects ranked higher by the CoC in Tier 2 plus one half of the funding of the project of interest to the total amount of funding available in Tier 2. For example, if a CoC is eligible to apply for projects totaling \$500,000 in Tier 2 and applies for 5 projects ranked in Tier 2 of \$100,000 each: the highest-ranked project would receive 45 points, and then the subsequently ranked projects would receive 36 points, and then the subsequently ranked projects would receive 28, 20, 12, and 4 points.
- (3) Commitment to Housing First. Up to 10 points based on the project application's commitment to follow a housing first approach as defined in Section III.B.2.0 of this NOFO. Dedicated HMIS projects and centralized or coordinated assessment system SSO projects will automatically receive 10 points.
- c. Projects Straddling Tiers. If a project application straddles the Tier 1 and Tier 2 funding line, HUD will conditionally select the project up to the amount of funding that falls within Tier 1. Using the CoC score and other factors described in Section II.B.11 of this NOFO, HUD may fund the Tier 2 portion of the project. If HUD does not fund the Tier 2 portion of the project, HUD may award the project at the reduced amount, provided the project is still feasible with the reduced funding (e.g., is able to continue serving homeless program participants effectively).
- d. Renewal and Replacement YHDP, CoC Planning, and UFA Costs Projects. As previously stated, YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and UFA Costs projects are not ranked; therefore, these project applications will not be included in Tier 1 or Tier 2. YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and UFA Costs projects that pass project

eligibility, project quality, and if applicable, renewal project threshold will be conditionally selected using CoC scores from the highest scoring CoC to the lowest scoring CoC. CoCs may only submit one project application for CoC planning costs and, if applicable, one project application for UFA Costs. The project applicant for CoC planning and UFA Costs must be the Collaborative Applicant that is listed on the CoC Applicant Profile in *e-snaps*.

- *e. DV Bonus*. For new projects the CoC indicates it would like considered as part of the DV Bonus, HUD will award a point value to each project application combining both the CoC Application score and responses to the domestic violence bonus specific questions in the CoC Application using the following 100-point scale:
 - (1) Rapid Rehousing and Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects:
 - (a) CoC Score. Up to 50 points in direct proportion to the score received on the CoC Application.
 - (b) Need for the Project. Up to 25 points based on the extent the CoC quantifies the need for the project in its portfolio, the extent of need, and how the project will fill that gap.
 - (c) Quality of the Project Applicant. Up to 25 points based on the previous performance of the applicant in serving survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and their ability to house survivors and meet safety outcomes.

Rapid Rehousing and Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects must follow a housing-first approach.

- (2) SSO Projects for Coordinated Entry to implement policies, procedures, and practices that equip the CoC's coordinated entry to better meet the needs of people experiencing homelessness who are survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking (e.g., to implement policies and procedures that are trauma-informed, client-centered or to better coordinate referrals between the CoC's coordinated entry and the victim service providers coordinated entry system where they are different):
 - (a) CoC Score. Up to 50 points in direct proportion to the score received on the CoC Application.
 - (b) Need for the Project. Up to 50 points based on the extent to which the CoC demonstrates the need for a coordinated entry system that better meets the needs of survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and how the project will fill this need.

Only one SSO-CE project can be submitted per CoC; however, there is no limit on the number of PH-RRH and Joint TH and PH-RRH projects provided that each application is for at least \$50,000. A project applicant may also apply to expand an existing renewal project, including one that was previously awarded with DV Bonus funding, in accordance with Section III.B.2.k of this NOFO, however, only the new project application for the expansion will be considered for DV Bonus funds through this process. DV Bonus funding may be used to expand an existing renewal project that is not dedicated to serving survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking who meet the definition of homeless in paragraph (4) of 24 CFR 578.3 so long as the DV Bonus funds for expansion are solely for additional units, beds, or services

dedicated to persons eligible to be served with DV Bonus funding.

CoCs are required to rank all new DV Bonus project applications on the New Project Listing of the CoC Priority Listing with a unique rank number and the corresponding renewal project application must be on the Renewal Project Listing with a unique rank number. A new DV Bonus project that expands an existing renewal project will only be selected if the renewal project is conditionally selected in Tier 1 or 2. If the renewal project application is selected for conditional award with CoC Program funds and the new DV Bonus expansion project is approved for selection, HUD will only select the new DV Bonus project with DV Bonus funds and HUD will remove the new DV Bonus project from the New Project Listing and all other project applications ranked below the new DV Bonus project will move up one rank position.

HUD will conditionally select no more than \$102,000,000 in new DV Bonus eligible projects. To be eligible to receive a new DV Bonus project, a CoC must demonstrate it ranks projects based on how they improve system performance as outlined in Section VII.B.2.b of this NOFO. Additionally, to be eligible to receive a DV Bonus project for PH-RRH or Joint TH and PH-RRH component, all projects funded through the DV Bonus must adopt a housing first approach

f. Participant Eligibility. Projects funded through this NOFO must have the following eligibility criteria for program participants. References to paragraphs of the definition of homeless refer to the paragraphs listed under the definition of "homeless" in 24 CFR 578.3. All projects must participate in coordinated entry, and the selection of program participants must be consistent with the CoC's coordinated entry process. As provided by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, youth aged 24 and under must not be required to provide third-party documentation that they meet the homeless definition in 24 CFR 578.3 as a condition for receiving services funded under this NOFO. Additionally, any youth-serving provider funded under this NOFO may serve unaccompanied youth aged 24 and under (or families headed by youth aged 24 and under) who are living in unsafe situations. HUD interprets "youth-serving provider" as a private nonprofit organization whose primary mission is to provide services to youth aged 24 and under and families headed by youth aged 24 and under. HUD interprets "living in unsafe situations" as having an unsafe primary nighttime residence and no safe alternative to that residence. These youth-related requirements supersede any conflicting requirements under this NOFO or the Rule.

(1) Renewal Projects

- (a) PH-PSH renewal projects must serve one of the following:
 - (i) program participants who are eligible for assistance under the project's current grant agreement;
 - (ii) persons eligible to be served by DedicatedPLUS projects as described in Section III.B.2.g of this NOFO where all units funded by this project must be used to serve program participants who meet the qualifications for DedicatedPLUS;

Or

- (iii) persons experiencing chronic homelessness at the time they initially enrolled in the project.
- (b) PH-RRH, Joint TH and PH-RRH component, TH, and SSO projects may serve persons who qualify as homeless under paragraphs (1), (2), or (4) of 24 CFR 578.3. Additionally, these projects may serve persons who qualify as homeless under paragraph (3) of 24 CFR 578.3 if the CoC is approved to serve persons in paragraph (3).
- (c) Renewal projects originally awarded under a previous year's DV Bonus must continue to serve survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking.
- (d) YHDP renewal projects must serve youth experiencing homelessness, including unaccompanied, pregnant and parenting youth, where no member of the household is older than 24.

(2) New Projects

- (a) New PH-PSH projects must serve one of the following:
 - (i) persons eligible to be served by DedicatedPLUS projects as described in Section III.B.2.g of this NOFO in which case all units funded by the project must be used to serve program participants who meet the qualifications for DedicatedPLUS; or
 - (ii) persons experiencing chronic homelessness at the time they initially enroll in the project.
- (b) New PH-RRH, Joint TH and PH-RRH, and Coordinated SSO projects may serve persons who qualify as homeless under paragraphs (1), (2), or (4) of 24 CFR 578.3. Additionally, these projects may serve persons who qualify as homeless under paragraph (3) of 24 CFR 578.3 if the CoC is approved to serve persons in paragraph (3).
- (c) New DV Bonus projects (RRH, Joint TH and PH-RRH, and Coordinated Entry SSO) must serve survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- (3) YHDP Replacement Projects. YHDP replacement projects must serve youth aged 24 or younger, including unaccompanied and pregnant or parenting youth, including as necessary to reunite youth aged 24 or younger with family members, who meet the definition of homeless under paragraphs (1), (2) or (4) of 24 CFR 578.3.

III. Continuum of Care Program Requirements

A. Standard HUD Definitions

- 1. **Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH),** see 24 CFR 578.93(c) for specific Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing requirements that apply to the CoC program.
- 2. **Assistance Listings (formerly CFDA)** means a unique number assigned to identify a Federal Assistance Listing, formerly known as the CFDA Number.
- 3. **Deficiency** is information missing or omitted within a submitted application. Examples of deficiencies include missing documents, information on a form, or some other type of

unsatisfied information requirement (e.g., an unsigned form, unchecked box.). Depending on specific criteria, deficiencies may be either curable or non-curable.

- *Curable deficiency* Applicants may correct a curable deficiency with timely action. To be curable the deficiency must:
 - o not be a threshold requirement, except for documentation of applicant eligibility:
 - o not influence how an applicant is ranked or scored versus other applicants; and
 - o be remedied within the time frame specified in the notice of deficiency.
- *Non-curable deficiency* is a deficiency that, if corrected, would change an applicant's score or rank versus other applicants. Non-curable deficiencies may result in an application being marked ineligible, or otherwise adversely affect an application's score and final determination. An applicant cannot correct a non-curable deficiency after the submission deadline.
- 4. **DUNS Number** is the nine-digit Dun & Bradstreet Data Universal Number System (DUNS) identification number assigned to a business or organization by Dun & Bradstreet and provides a means of identifying business entities on a location-specific basis. OMB removed duplicate recipients based on recipient DUNS numbers from Dun and Bradstreet (D&B). At this time, all Federal financial assistance recipients, including CoC recipients, are required to register for DUNS numbers.
- 5. **Eligibility** requirements are mandatory requirements for an application to be eligible for funding.
- 6. **Federal award,** the Federal financial assistance received directly from a Federal awarding agency or indirectly from a recipient, to a subrecipient, as described in 2 CFR §200.101; or the grant agreement setting forth the terms and conditions.
- 7. **System for Award Management (SAM)** is the Federal Repository into which an entity must provide information required for the conduct of business as a recipient. Registration with SAM is required for submission of applications via esnaps. You can access the website at https://www.sam.gov/SAM/. There is no cost to use SAM.
- 8. **Threshold Requirements** are eligibility and quality requirements that must be met for an application to be reviewed. Threshold requirements are not curable, except for documentation of applicant eligibility, and are listed in Section V of this NOFO. Similarly, there are eligibility requirements under Section V.
- 9. **Unique Entity Identifier** means the identifier required for SAM registration to uniquely identify business entities.

Regulatory citations are provided below so applicants can refer to specific areas of the Rule. Projects awarded CoC Program funds are subject to the program regulation as it may be amended from time to time, however, YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects and awards are subject to CoC Program regulations except as otherwise provided in this NOFO (see Section II.B.7).

B. Definitions and Concepts. The definitions and concepts contained in this section include

terms that are important for all applicants to understand to complete all parts of the FY 2021 CoC Consolidated Application in *e-snaps* on behalf of the CoC.

- **1. Definitions from 24 CFR 578.3.** The following terms are defined in 24 CFR 578.3. Applicants must refer to the Rule for the definitions contained in this section.
 - a. Annual Renewal Amount (ARA)
 - b. Applicant
 - c. Centralized or Coordinated Assessment System
 - d. Chronically Homeless
 - e. Collaborative Applicant
 - f. Continuum of Care
 - g. Consolidated Plan
 - h. High Performing Community (HPC)
 - i. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)
 - j. Homeless Management Information Lead (HMIS Lead)
 - k. Homeless
 - l. Permanent Housing
 - m. Permanent Supportive Housing
 - n. Private Nonprofit Organization
 - o. Program Participant
 - p. Project
 - q. Recipient
 - r. Subrecipient
 - s. Transitional Housing
 - t. Unified Funding Agency
- **2.** CoC Program NOFO Concepts. The following terms are not found in 24 CFR 578.3 but may be found in other areas of the Rule or are used in this NOFO to define concepts that pertain specifically to the FY 2021 CoC Consolidated Application.
 - a. Annual Renewal Demand (ARD) (24 CFR 578.17(b)(2)). The total amount of all the CoC's projects that will be eligible for renewal in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition, before any required adjustments to funding for leasing, rental assistance, and operating Budget Line Items (BLIs) based on FMR changes. The ARD will be calculated by combining the total amount of funds requested by eligible renewal projects from eligible:
 - (1) renewal projects approved and ranked on the Renewal Project Listing;
 - (2) renewal project amount(s) that were reallocated as recorded on the reduced or eliminated reallocation forms of the CoC Priority Listing;
 - (3) renewal YHDP projects on the YHDP Renewal Project Listing; and
 - (4) replacement YHDP projects on the YHDP Replacement Project Listing as these projects are eligible for funding as renewal YHDP projects but have chosen to submit the application as a YHDP replacement project with the amount of funding that is eligible for renewal.
 - b. Beds Dedicated to Chronically Homeless Individuals and Families. A permanent supportive housing bed that is dedicated specifically for use by chronically homeless

individuals and families within a CoC's geographic area, as reported in the CoC's HIC and the FY 2021 permanent housing project applications. When a program participant exits the project, the bed must be filled by another chronically homeless participant unless there are no chronically homeless persons located within the CoC's geographic area. This concept only applies to permanent supportive housing projects.

- c. CoC Bonus Project. Collaborative Applicants may include new project applications of up to 5 percent of its CoC Final Pro Rata Need (FPRN). New projects created through the CoC Bonus must meet the project eligibility and project quality threshold requirements established by HUD in Sections V.C.3.b and c of this NOFO. To be eligible to receive a CoC Bonus project, a Collaborative Applicant must demonstrate its CoC ranks projects based on how they improve system performance as outlined in Section VII.B.2.b of this NOFO.
- d. CoC Merger. The CoC merger is a process where two or more CoCs voluntarily agree to merge the entire geographic areas of all CoCs into one larger CoC. HUD strongly encourages CoCs that struggle with capacity to merge with a neighboring CoC or Balance of State CoC during each fiscal year's CoC Program Registration process. To encourage CoC mergers and mitigate the potential adverse scoring implications that may occur when a high performing CoC merges with one or more lower-performing CoC(s), HUD will award up to 15 bonus points to CoCs that first registered as a merged CoC during the FY 2020 or FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process. The minimum number of points awarded will be 5 with the maximum points awarded up to 15. To be eligible for these points, the merged CoC must include all the geographic areas previously included in two or more CoCs that received funding in the FY 2020 CoC Program Non-competitive process. Points will be awarded as follows:
 - (1) 5 bonus points to CoCs that merged; and
 - (2) 10 bonus points to CoCs where one or more of the merging CoCs had a CoC Application score of 140 points or lower in either the FY 2018 or FY 2019 CoC Program Competitions.
- e. Consolidated Plan Certification. The standard form, Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan (form HUD-2991), in which a state or local official certifies that the proposed activities or projects are consistent with the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan and, if the project applicant is a state or unit of local government, that the jurisdiction is following its Consolidated Plan per the requirement of 24 CFR part 91. All project applications submitted and listed on the CoC Project Listings by the Collaborative Applicant must be included in the certification either by submitting one correctly signed and dated HUD-2991 from the appropriate jurisdiction that includes an attachment listing of all submitted project applications, or a single signed and dated HUD-2991 for each individual project application from the appropriate jurisdiction.
- f. Consolidation. The process by which two or more projects eligible for renewal in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition apply for funding and are combined into a single renewal project upon award. See Sections II.B.6, and V.B.4.a.(7) of this NOFO for additional information.

- g. DedicatedPLUS Project. A permanent supportive housing project where 100 percent of the beds are dedicated to serve individuals, households with children, and unaccompanied youth (including pregnant and parenting youth) that at intake meet one of the following categories:
 - (1) experiencing chronic homelessness as defined in 24 CFR 578.3;
 - (2) residing in a transitional housing project that will be eliminated and meets the definition of chronically homeless in effect at the time in which the individual or family entered the transitional housing project;
 - (3) residing in a place not meant for human habitation, emergency shelter, or Safe Haven and had been admitted and enrolled in a permanent housing project within the last year but were unable to maintain a housing placement and met the definition of chronic homeless as defined by 24 CFR 578.3 prior to entering the project;
 - (4) residing in transitional housing funded by a Joint TH and PH-RRH component project and who were experiencing chronic homelessness as defined at 24 CFR 578.3:
 - (5) residing and has resided in a place not meant for human habitation, Safe Haven, or emergency shelter for at least 12 months in the last three years, but has not done so on four separate occasions and the individual or head of household meet the definition of 'homeless individual with a disability; or
 - (6) receiving assistance through a Department of Veterans Affairs (VA)-funded homeless assistance program and met one of the above criteria at initial intake to the VA's homeless assistance system.

A renewal project where 100 percent of the beds were dedicated to chronically homeless individuals and families, as described in Section III.B.2.b, under the grant that is being renewed may either become a DedicatedPLUS project or may continue to dedicate 100 percent of its beds to chronically homeless individuals and families. If a renewal project that has 100 percent of its beds dedicated to chronically homeless individuals and families elects to become a DedicatedPLUS project, the project will be required to adhere to all fair housing requirements at 24 CFR 578.93.

Projects that were awarded as DedicatedPLUS in a previous CoC Program Competition are required to include households with children to qualify as a DedicatedPLUS project in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition.

- h. DV Bonus. A new project that is dedicated to survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking who qualify under paragraph (4) of the definition of homeless at 24 CFR 578.3. New DV Bonus projects are subject to the limitation on new projects in Section II.B.1.a of this NOFO, and a CoC may apply for up to 15 percent of its Preliminary Pro Rata Need (PPRN) to create a new DV Bonus project(s); however, this amount is limited to a:
 - (1) a minimum of \$50,000 if 15 percent of the CoC's PPRN is less than \$50,000; or
 - (2) maximum of \$5 million if 15 percent of the CoC's PPRN is more than \$5 million.

See Sections II.B.5 and II.B.11.e of this NOFO for project application requirements and how DV Bonus projects will be reviewed and selected.

- *i. Eligible Renewal Project.* A project that will be under grant agreement by December 31, 2021 and will have an expiration date in CY 2022(between January 1, 2022, and December 31, 2022).
- *j. Expansion.* The process by which a renewal project applicant submits a new project application to expand its current operations by adding units, beds, persons served, services provided to existing program participants, or in the case of HMIS, increase the current HMIS activities within the CoC's geographic area. For the new expansion project to be selected for a conditional award the renewal project application must also be selected for conditional award. DV Bonus funds can only be used to expand an existing renewal project if the expansion project is dedicated to survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking who qualify under paragraph (4) of the definition of homeless at 24 CFR 578.3; however, as explained in II.B.11.e, only the new project application for the expansion will be considered for DV Bonus funds. For projects that are expanding their current CoC Program-funded project, project applicants will be required to submit:
 - (1) the renewal project application that will be expanded; and
 - (2) a new project application with the expansion information.

YHDP projects cannot use the expansion process.

k. Final Pro Rata Need (FPRN) (24 CFR 578.17(b)(3)). The higher of PPRN or ARD for the Continuum of Care is the FPRN, which is the base for the maximum award amount for projects within the CoC.

l. Formula Area. Defined in the Indian Housing Block Grant Program at <u>24 CFR</u> <u>1000.302</u>.

m. Homelessness and Human Trafficking. HUD is clarifying that persons who are fleeing or attempting to flee human trafficking may qualify as homeless under paragraph (4) of the homeless definition at 24 CFR 578.3; and, therefore, the individuals may be eligible for certain forms of homeless assistance under the CoC Program, subject to other restrictions that may apply. HUD considers human trafficking, including sex trafficking, to be "other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or family member" under paragraph (4) of the definition of homeless at 24 CFR 578.3.

n. Host Home and Kinship Care. Host Home and Kinship Care is limited to YHDP renewal and replacement grants. Applicable to YHDP replacement projects only, a model of housing where a family agrees to permit a youth program participant to reside with them. Recognizing the addition of another person in the home may increase costs to the family, HUD will consider YHDP replacement project applications that propose to house youth with families and subsidize the additional costs attributable to housing homeless

youth. The residence is in a community-based setting and the family may be related to youth program participants with a time-limited or unlimited length of stay.

- o. Housing First. A model of housing assistance that prioritizes rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing that does not have service participation requirements or preconditions (such as sobriety or a minimum income threshold). Transitional housing and supportive service only projects are considered using a Housing First model for the purposes of this NOFO if they operate with low barriers, work to quickly move people into permanent housing, do not require participation in supportive services, and, for transitional housing projects, do not require preconditions for moving into the transitional housing (e.g., sobriety or minimum income threshold). Additional information regarding Housing First is in Section II.A.2 of this NOFO.
- p. Housing Inventory Count (HIC). A complete listing of the CoC's HUD and non-HUD funded beds dedicated to individuals and families experiencing homelessness in the CoC's geographic area.
- q. Joint TH and PH-RRH Component Project. The Joint TH and PH-RRH component project combines two existing program components—transitional housing and permanent housing-rapid rehousing—in a single project to serve individuals and families experiencing homelessness. HUD will require the recipient to adopt a Housing First approach (see Sections II.A.2 and III.B.2.0 of this NOFO) across the entire project and program participants may only receive up to 24-months of total assistance. For more information about Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects, see Section V.C.3.c of this NOFO.

If funded, HUD will limit eligible costs as follows, in addition to other limitations found in the Rule:

- (1) leasing of a structure or units, and operating costs to provide transitional housing;
- (2) short- or medium-term tenant-based rental assistance on behalf of program participants to pay for the rapid rehousing portion of the project;
- (3) supportive services;
- (4) HMIS; and
- (5) project administrative costs.

When a program participant is enrolled in a Joint TH and PH-RRH component project, the recipient or subrecipient must be able to provide both components, including the units supported by the transitional housing component and the tenant-based rental assistance and services provided through the PH-RRH component, to all participants. A program participant may choose to receive only the TH unit or the assistance provided through the PH-RRH component, but the recipient or subrecipient must make both types of assistance available. Additionally, if CoC Program funds are not being requested for both TH and PH-RRH units, the project application must describe and include the number of TH and PH-RRH units that will be utilized by the project from another funding source, if selected for conditional award, and provide details in the project description of how TH and PH-RRH assistance will be provided.

- r. Non-Dedicated Permanent Supportive Housing Beds. Permanent supportive housing beds within a CoC's geographic area that are not currently classified as dedicated for use by chronically homeless individuals and families or as DedicatedPLUS.
- s. *Persons with Lived Experience*. Persons with first-hand knowledge of homelessness who can share their perspective on how social, economic, and political situations affect homelessness. Provides insight, training, and voice from persons who have or are experiencing homelessness regarding the current homeless system through discussion, recommendation, and participation.
- t. Preliminary Pro Rata Need (PPRN). The amount of funds a CoC could receive based upon the geographic areas claimed by the CoC and reviewed by HUD during the CoC Program Registration process. To determine the amount of funding available for each geographic area, HUD will use the formula set forth at 24 CFR 578.17(a). Each year, HUD publishes the PPRN for each jurisdiction on HUD's website. A CoC's PPRN is determined by adding the published PPRN of each metropolitan city, urban county, and other county located within the HUD-approved CoC geographic area.
- u. Racial Disparities. Promote equity throughout the CoC's homeless response system for Black, Indigenous, Hispanic (non-white), and LGBTQ who are disproportionally more likely to experience homelessness than their white, straight, and gender conforming counterparts. Efforts to prevent and end homelessness must appropriately address any racial inequities to achieve positive outcomes for all persons experiencing homelessness (e.g., receiving necessary services and housing to exit homelessness).
- v. Rapid Rehousing. A type of permanent housing meeting the requirements of 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1)(ii).
- w. Reallocation. Reallocation is a process used by CoCs to shift funds in whole or part from existing eligible renewal projects to create one or more new projects without decreasing the CoC's ARD. New projects created through reallocation must meet the requirements set forth in Section II.B.1 of this NOFO and the project eligibility and project quality thresholds established by HUD in Sections V.C.3.b and c of this NOFO. CoCs may only reallocate eligible renewal projects that have previously been renewed under the CoC Program. To create a Transition Grant (see Section III.B.2.z of this NOFO), the CoC must wholly eliminate one or more projects and use those funds to create the single, new transition grant. YHDP projects cannot be reallocated.

To receive funding for a new project, the Collaborative Applicant must demonstrate all project applications are evaluated and ranked based on the degree to which they improve the CoC's system performance.

x. Shared Housing. Shared housing is limited to YHDP renewal and replacement grants. A housing option for youth program participants who are not part of a household but are interested in sharing a housing unit with a roommate unrelated to the program

participant. Each youth program participant must have their own lease where the rent is calculated on the youth's income, not the income of the entire unit. Grant funds can be used to rent a portion of the unit for their bedroom (or portion of if sharing with another person) plus a portion of shared living spaces (e.g., living room, kitchen).

- y. Solo Applicants. Per the Act, "A solo applicant may submit an application to the Secretary for a grant under subsection (a) and be awarded such grant on the same basis as such grants are awarded to other applicants based on the criteria described in section 427 [42 USC 11386a], but only if the Secretary determines that the solo applicant has attempted to participate in the continuum of care process but was not permitted to participate in a reasonable manner. The Secretary may award such grants directly to such applicants in a manner determined to be appropriate by the Secretary." A solo applicant must submit a solo applicant project application in e-snaps prior to the application deadline of 8:00 PM EST on November 16, 2021. Additionally, for HUD to consider its solo application, a solo applicant must also meet all the requirements outlined in Section X.C of this NOFO.
- z. Transition Grant. A grant to fund a new project to transition an eligible renewal project being eliminated through reallocation from one program component to another eligible new component over a 1-year period. The new transition project must meet the following requirements:
 - (1) no more than 50 percent of each transition grant may be used for costs of eligible activities of the program component originally funded;
 - (2) transition grants in this Competition are eligible for renewal in subsequent fiscal years for eligible activities of the new component;
 - (3) to be eligible to receive a transition grant, the current recipient must have the consent of its Continuum of Care; and
 - (4) the new project application must meet project eligibility and project quality thresholds established by HUD in Sections V.C.3.b and c of this NOFO.

All remaining funds must be used for eligible activities awarded under the new component for the project. Transition grants conditionally awarded in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition will have one year to fully transition from the original component to the new component during the normal operating year (e.g., April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2023) once the grant agreement is executed. The project's operating start date will be the day after the end of the previous grant term for the expiring component, i.e., the transition grant will have the same operating year as the expiring component project. For transition grants reallocated from more than one project, the operating start date of the transition grant will be the day after the end of the earliest expiring grant term. The grant term may be extended consistent with 2 CFR 200.308 and 2 CFR 200.309. By the end of the operating year for which FY 2021 funds were awarded, the transition grant must be fully operating under the new component and will be eligible to apply for renewal in the next CoC Program Competition under the component to which it transitioned.

For a new project to be considered a transition grant, the new project applicant must be

the recipient listed on the current grant agreement for the eligible renewal grant(s) being eliminated and must include the grant number(s) of the project(s) being eliminated to create the new project and attach a copy of the most recently awarded project application. As HUD did not conduct an FY 2020 CoC Program Competition, most projects will attach a copy of the FY 2019 CoC Program Competition project application. To meet the requirements HUD will consider the following as CoC consent for the transition grant:

- the project application identifies the project as a transition project, and
- the CoC ranks the new transition grant project on the New Project Listing in the FY 2021 CoC Priority Listing.

If HUD determines a new project submitted as a transition grant does not qualify, but meets all other new project requirements, HUD may award the project as a new non-transition grant project. If this occurs, the recipient will not be permitted to expend any FY 2020 funds until the new project grant agreement is executed by the local HUD field office.

- **C. Establishing and Operating the CoC.** 24 CFR 578.5 and 24 CFR 578.7 detail the requirements for the establishment of a CoC and its responsibilities.
- **D.** CoC Geographic Area. 24 CFR 578.5 require representatives from relevant organizations within a geographic area to establish a CoC to carry out the duties within the geographic area. The boundaries of identified CoC geographic areas cannot overlap, and any overlapping geographies are considered Competing CoCs. HUD follows the process at 24 CFR 578.35(d) to determine which CoC HUD will fund in the case of CoC geographic areas that overlap. For the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition, there are no Competing CoCs.
- **E. Planning Duties of the CoC.** Planning duties for CoCs are detailed in 24 CFR 578.7.
- **F. Centralized or Coordinated Assessment System.** The definition of Centralized or Coordinated Assessment is found at 24 CFR 578.3. 24 CFR 578.7(a)(8) details the responsibilities of the CoC to establish and operate this required system. In addition to the definition and responsibilities established in the Rule, HUD posted on its website, CPD-17-01: Notice Establishing Additional Requirements for a Continuum of Care Centralized or Coordinated Assessment System, establishing the requirements related to the development and use of a centralized or coordinated entry assessment system. These systems help communities assess the needs of program participants and effectively match individuals and families experiencing homelessness with the most appropriate resources available to address their supportive service and housing needs. CoCs may use planning costs to design and plan for the implementation of a centralized or coordinated assessment system; however, once the system is established and operating, it must be operated with other funds, including CoC Program funds.
- **G. CoC Program Components.** 24 CFR 578.37 states CoC funds may be used to create and operate projects under five program components: PH (including PSH and RRH); TH; SSO; HMIS; and in some cases, homelessness prevention. Only designated HPCs may carry out homelessness prevention activities through the CoC Program. Although CoCs were able to apply for HPC designation during the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process, HUD did not

receive any requests for HPC designation; therefore, no CoCs may request funds for homelessness prevention. The only components that will be funded in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition are:

- 1. PH (PSH and RRH);
- 2. TH:
- 3. SSO; and
- 4. HMIS.

Additionally, Collaborative Applicants may apply for projects that include the TH and PH-RRH component in a single project, a Joint TH and PH-RRH component project.

- **H. Collaborative Applicant.** HUD will only review CoC Consolidated Applications submitted by the Collaborative Applicant that is designated by the CoC. The Collaborative Applicant is required to compile all parts of the CoC Consolidated Application, including the FY 2021 CoC Application, the FY 2021 CoC Priority Listing, and all project applications requesting FY 2021 funds the CoC has ranked for funding within the geographic area (24 CFR 578.9(a)(3)). Additionally, the Collaborative Applicant is the only entity that may apply to HUD for CoC planning costs and if designated as a UFA by HUD, for UFA Costs (24 CFR 578.3).
- **I.** Compliance with Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Rule. Provides various protections to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking under the CoC Program and other HUD programs. The grants awarded under this NOFO must comply with the VAWA Rule as provided in 24 CFR 578.99(j). Among other obligations to comply, each CoC must have an established emergency transfer plan (24 CFR 578.7(d)) and make related updates to the written standards for administering CoC program assistance under 24 CFR 578.7(a)(9)(ii), (iii) and (v).
- **J. CoC Maximum Award and FMR Adjustments.** The process for determining a CoC's maximum award amount is detailed in 24 CFR 578.17(b). HUD is required to adjust awards for leasing, operating, and rental assistance BLIs based on changes to the Fair Market Rents (FMR). All adjustments for each fiscal year appropriation will be made prior to award announcement. HUD will make these adjustments as follows:
 - 1. Funds awarded for rental assistance will be adjusted in one of two ways:
 - a. Funds awarded for rental assistance in all new and renewal projects requesting the FMR will be adjusted by applying the FMR in effect at the time of application submission to HUD, including instances where the FMR for a specific area has decreased from the previous year.
 - b. Funds awarded for rental assistance for renewal projects that request less than FMR, that is, a per-unit amount based on the actual rent costs per unit, will be increased based on the average increase in FMR amounts within the CoC's geographic area, weighted for population density. If the FMR for a specific area decreased from the previous year, project applicants will not receive an award that exceeds the FMR after adjustment. If the FMR for the project applicant's entire area decreased from the previous year, the project will be awarded the lesser amount of the per-unit amount requested by the project applicant, based on the actual rent costs per unit, or the FMR after adjustment.

2. Funds awarded for operating and leasing in permanent housing projects will be increased based on the average increase in FMR amounts within the CoC's geographic area, weighted for population density. Because leasing and operating costs do not decrease relative to rent amounts for specific units (e.g., operating costs for 10 units that have rents of \$500 are likely the same as for 10 units that have rents that are \$450) adjustments to leasing and operating BLIs will not include decreases if FMRs decrease in the geographic area. The operating and leasing BLIs in these projects will remain the same as in the most recent grant agreement or grant agreement amendment.

IV. Award Information

A. Available Funds

Funding of approximately \$2,656,000,000 is available through this NOFO. Additional funds may become available for award under this NOFO, because of HUD's efforts to recapture funds, use carryover funds, or because of the availability of additional appropriated funds. Use of these funds is subject to statutory constraints. All awards are subject to the funding restrictions contained in this NOFO.

HUD will continue to require Collaborative Applicants to rank all projects (new reallocation, CoC Bonus, DV Bonus, and renewal) other than YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and if applicable, UFA Costs projects in two tiers. Tier 1 is equal to of the combined ARD amounts as described in Section III.B.2.a of this NOFO. Tier 2 is the difference between Tier 1 and the maximum amount of CoC renewal, reallocation, and CoC bonus funds that a CoC can apply for, but does not include YHDP renewal, YHDP replacement, CoC planning, and if applicable, UFA Costs projects, or projects selected with DV Bonus funds. CoC Planning and UFA Cost projects will be reviewed separately from these tiers. YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects are being non-competitively awarded separately from the tiers. The \$102,000,000 in available DV Bonus funding is also being awarded separately from the tiers as described in II.B.11.e. for new projects (including the new projects that are part of an expansion) that CoCs indicate they would like considered for the available DV Bonus funding.

B. Lead-Based Paint Requirements. When providing housing assistance funding for purchase, lease, support services, operation, or work that may disturb painted surfaces, of pre-1978 housing, you must comply with the lead-based paint evaluation and hazard reduction requirements of HUD's lead-based paint rules (Lead Disclosure; and Lead Safe Housing (24 CFR part 35)), and the EPA's lead-based paint rules (e.g., Repair, Renovation and Painting; Pre-Renovation Education; and Lead Training and Certification (40 CFR part 745)).

When providing education or counseling on buying or renting housing that may include pre-1978 housing, applicants must inform clients of their rights under the Lead Disclosure Rule (24 CFR part 35, subpart A,), and, if the focus of the education or counseling is on rental or purchase of HUD-assisted pre-1978 housing, the Lead Safe Housing Rule (subparts B, R, and as applicable, F-M).

V. Eligibility Information

A. Eligible Applicants

HUD does not award grants to individuals. HUD will also not evaluate applications from ineligible applicants.

- 1. **SAM Registration Requirement.** Applicants must be registered with https://www.sam.gov/SAM before submitting their application. In addition, Applicants must maintain an active SAM registration with current information while they have an active Federal award or an application or plan under consideration by HUD.
- 2. **DUNS Number Requirement.** Applicants must provide a valid DUNS number, registered and active at https://www.sam.gov/SAM, in the application. DUNS numbers may be obtained for free from Dun & Bradstreet.

B. Rules and Regulations Applicable to HUD NOFOs

Applicants must comply with these rules to apply.

1. Eligibility Requirements for Applicants of HUD's Grant Programs.

Evidence of the following issues may prevent an award from being granted to otherwise successful project applicants. Detailed information on each requirement is posted on

HUD's Funding Opportunities Page">Funding Opportunities Page.

- Outstanding Delinquent Federal Debt
- Debarments and/or Suspensions
- Pre-selection Review of Performance
- Sufficiency of Financial Management System
- False Statements
- Mandatory Disclosure Requirement
- Conducting Business in Accordance with Ethical Standards/Code of Conduct
- Prohibition Against Lobbying Activities
- Equal Participation of Faith-Based Organizations in HUD Programs and Activities
- **2. Resolution of Civil Rights Matters.** Outstanding civil rights matters must be resolved before the application submission deadline. Project applicants, who after review are confirmed to have civil rights matters unresolved at the application submission deadline, will be deemed ineligible. Their applications will receive no further review, will not be rated and ranked, and will not receive funding.
 - a. Project applicants having any of the charges, cause determinations, lawsuits, or letters of findings referenced in subparagraphs (1) (5) that have not been resolved to HUD's satisfaction before or on the application submission deadline date are ineligible for funding. Such matters include:
 - i. Charges from HUD concerning a systemic violation of the Fair Housing Act or receipt of a cause determination from a substantially equivalent state or local fair housing agency concerning a systemic violation of a substantially equivalent state or local fair housing law proscribing discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, or familial status;
 - ii. Status as a defendant in a Fair Housing Act lawsuit filed by the Department of Justice alleging a pattern or practice of discrimination or denial of rights to a group of persons raising an issue of general public importance under 42 U.S.C. 3614(a);
 - iii. Status as a defendant in any other lawsuit filed or joined by the Department of Justice, or in which the Department of Justice has intervened, or filed an amicus brief or statement of interest, alleging a pattern or practice or systemic violation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of

- 1973, Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, the Americans with Disabilities Act or a claim under the False Claims Act related to fair housing, non-discrimination, or civil rights generally including an alleged failure to affirmatively further fair housing;
- iv. Receipt of a letter of findings identifying systemic non-compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974; or the Americans with Disabilities Act; or
- v. Receipt of a cause determination from a substantially equivalent state or local fair housing agency concerning a systemic violation of provisions of a state or local law prohibiting discrimination in housing based on sexual orientation, gender identity, or lawful source of income.
- b. HUD will determine if actions to resolve the charge, cause determination, lawsuit, or letter of findings taken before the application submission deadline date will resolve the matter. Examples of actions that may be sufficient to resolve the matter include, but are not limited to:
 - i. Current compliance with voluntary compliance agreement signed by all parties;
 - ii. Current compliance with a HUD-approved conciliation agreement signed by all the parties;
 - iii. Current compliance with conciliation agreement signed by all parties and approved by the state governmental or local administrative agency with jurisdiction over the matter;
 - iv. Current compliance with a consent order or consent decree;
 - v. Current compliance with a final judicial ruling or administrative ruling or decision; or
 - vi. Dismissal of charges.

3. Program Specific Requirements.

- a. Participative Planning and Implementation. Applicants must identify the steps they will take to ensure that traditionally marginalized populations (such as racial and ethnic minorities and persons with disabilities) will be able to meaningfully participate in the planning process. The applicant must identify the specific populations that it will include, identify community organizations that represent these populations, and describe how these populations will be included in the planning process. For capital investment projects, grantees should commit to and demonstrate plans to employ low-income and very low-income persons and/or utilize Section 3 businesses at levels beyond those required by Section 3. In seeking public participation, applicants and recipients must ensure that all communications are provided in a manner that is effective for persons with hearing, visual, and other communication-related disabilities consistent with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and, as applicable, the Americans with Disabilities Act. In addition, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d and Executive Order 13166 require that grantees take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to services, programs, and activities by persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP persons).
- b. Eligible Project Applicants (McKinney-Vento Act, 24 CFR 578.15, 24 CFR
- 5.100). Eligible project applicants for the CoC Program Competition are found at 24 CFR

578.15 and in the Act and include nonprofit organizations, states, local governments, instrumentalities of state and local governments, Indian Tribes and TDHE (as defined in section 4 of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act of 1996 (25 U.S.C. 4103) (TDHEs)). Public housing agencies, as such term is defined in 24 CFR 5.100, are eligible without limitation or exclusion. For-profit entities are ineligible to apply for grants or to be subrecipients of grant funds.

c. Renewal Projects. Awards made under the CoC Program and YHDP are eligible for renewal with FY 2021 funds if they are currently in operation and have an executed grant agreement that is dated no later than December 31, 2021 and expire in CY 2022 (the period from January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022). Projects renewed under the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition NOFO are renewable as set forth in 24 CFR 578.33 to continue ongoing leasing, operating, supportive services, rental assistance, HMIS, and project administrative costs. YHDP is being administered under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 which permits YHDP projects to be renewed or replaced non-competitively through the CoC Program. Except as otherwise provided in Section II.B.7 of this NOFO, all YHDP projects and awards will be governed by the requirements of the Rule. Grant agreements for FY 2020 funds must be executed by December 31, 2021 to be eligible for renewal. If a project application is not executed by December 31, 2021, HUD will withdraw any funds conditionally awarded for FY 2021.

Projects that were eligible under predecessor programs, specifically Safe Haven projects, will continue to be eligible under the CoC Program and will continue to be eligible for renewal of leasing, operating, supportive services, rental assistance, HMIS, and project administrative costs under 24 CFR 578.33(d)(1) so long as the project continues to serve the same population and the same number of program participants or units in the same type of housing as identified in their most recently amended grant agreement signed before August 31, 2012. No new Safe Haven projects will be funded; however, existing Safe Haven projects may be renewed to continue to carry out activities that are eligible costs under Subpart D of the Rule.

- (1) The total request for each renewing project, including non-competitive YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects, may not exceed a project's ARA. Additionally, where two or more eligible projects are being consolidated through the project application, the total ARA of the consolidation project must be equal to or less than the sum of the original renewal projects. Because funds for acquisition, new construction, and rehabilitation may not be renewed, grants being renewed whose original expiring award included those funds may only renew leasing, supportive services, rental assistance, operating, and HMIS costs and may not exceed 10 percent in administrative costs. For information on ARA, see Section III.B.1.a of this NOFO.
- (3) HUD will recapture grant funds remaining unspent at the end of the previous grant period when it renews a grant.
- (4) HUD encourages the consolidation of eligible renewal grants as provided in Section II.B.6 of this NOFO. This does not apply to CoCs that are designated by HUD as a UFA, since UFAs will enter into a single renewal grant agreement with HUD for the CoC's entire geographic area.
- d. Renewal and Replacement Grant Terms.

- (1) Except as provided in d.(2) below, all CoC Program renewal, YHDP renewal, and YHDP replacement project applications are limited to a 1-year grant term and one year of funding. The grant term may be extended consistent with 2 CFR 200.308 and 2 CFR 200.309.
- (2) Any renewal permanent housing project that receives project-based rental assistance or operating costs may request up to a 15-year grant term; however, project applicants may only request one year of funding. The grant term may be extended consistent with 2 CFR 200.308 and 2 CFR 200.309. Project applicants must apply for the additional funds as a renewal project application prior to the anniversary of the first expenditure of grant funds by which date the grant funds should have been expended or, if the date upon which funds must be expended has been extended by HUD, the date upon which the extension ends. CoC Program funds are not guaranteed past the 1-year of renewal funding if conditionally awarded.

e. New Projects.

- (1) CoCs may submit new projects created through reallocation, CoC Bonus, or a combination of reallocation and CoC Bonus, new DV Bonus projects, CoC planning project, and if applicable, UFA Costs project.
- (2) To expend funds within statutorily required deadlines, applicants funded for sponsor-based and project-based rental assistance must execute the grant agreement and begin providing rental assistance within 2 years. However, HUD strongly encourages all rental assistance to begin within 12 months of award. Applicants that are unable to begin rental assistance within the 12-month period should consult with the local HUD CPD field office.
- (3) HUD will review project subrecipient eligibility as part of the project quality threshold review process. Project applicants are required to submit documentation of the subrecipient's eligibility with the project application.
- (4) Any youth-serving provider funded under this NOFO may serve unaccompanied youth aged 24 and under (or families headed by youth aged 24 and under) who have an unsafe primary nighttime residence and no safe alternative to that residence.
- f. New Project Grant Terms. The initial grant term for new project applications may be 1-year, 2-years, 3-years, 4-years, 5-years, or 15-years. The grant term may be extended consistent with 2 CFR 200.308 and 2 CFR 200.309. However, the following exceptions apply:
 - (1) HUD will allow new projects to request 1 year of funding with a longer initial grant term not to exceed 18 months. HUD has determined that most new projects requesting 1 year of funding normally take approximately 3 to 6 months to begin fully operating the new project (e.g., hiring staff, developing partnerships with landowners if leasing or renting). Therefore, a new project requesting 1 year of funding may request a grant term of 12 months to 18 months that will allow for the additional start-up process. Any new projects requesting capital costs (i.e., new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation) are not eligible for 1-year requests. If 1-year of funding is requested for new projects with capital costs, HUD will increase the grant term to 3-years and the new project will be required to spend the funds requested over a 3-year period, assuming the project is conditionally selected for award.

- (2) Any new expansion project that is submitted to expand an eligible renewal CoC Program-funded project may only request a 1-year grant term, regardless of the project type.
- (3) Any new project that requests tenant-based rental assistance may request a 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year, or 5-year grant term.
- (4) Any new project that requests leasing costs-either leasing costs only or leasing costs plus other costs (e.g., supportive services, HMIS) may only request up to a 3-year grant term.
- (5) Any new project that requests project-based rental assistance or sponsor-based rental assistance, or operating costs may request up to a 15-year grant term; however, the project applicant may only request up to 5 years of funds. Funding for the remainder of the term is subject to availability. Applicants must apply for additional funds through a renewal project application in the competition held in the calendar year prior to the anniversary of the first expenditure of grant funds, or if the grant term has been extended by HUD, the date upon which the extension ends. CoC Program funds are not guaranteed past the initial 5-year grant term, if conditionally awarded.
- (6) Any new project that requests operating costs, supportive services only, HMIS, and project administrative costs may request 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year, or 5-year grant terms with funding for the same number of years.
- (7) Any new project that requests new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation must request a minimum of a 3-year grant term and may request up to a 5-year grant term. Any new projects requesting capital costs (i.e., new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation) are not eligible for 1-year requests. If 1-year of funding is requested for new projects with capital costs, HUD will increase the grant term to 3-years and the new project will be required to spend the funds requested over a 3-year period, assuming the project is conditionally selected for award.
- (8) If an applicant requests funds for new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation in addition to requesting funds for operating, supportive services, or HMIS, the funding will be for the 3-years to 5-years requested, and the grant term will be 3-years to 5-years plus the time necessary to acquire the property, complete construction, and begin operating the project. HUD will require recordation of a HUD-approved use and repayment covenant (a form can be obtained from the local HUD CPD field office) for all grants of funds for new construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation. (24 CFR 578.81).
- (9) All new CoC planning or UFA Costs project applications are limited to 1-year grant terms and 1-year of funding.
 - (a) The maximum amount available for CoC planning project applications is 3 percent of FPRN or \$1,250,000; whichever is less.
 - (b) The maximum amount available for UFA Costs, only available for UFA designated Collaborative Applicants, is 3 percent of FPRN or \$1,250,000; whichever is less.
- (10) Any new project that is requesting consideration under the DV Bonus (see Sections II.B.5 and III.B.2.h of this NOFO) may only request 1-year of funding, but may request a longer initial grant term not to exceed 18 months regardless of project application type. (11) New YHDP projects submitted to replace current renewal YHDP activities may only request 1-year of funding.

- g. YHDP Replacement Grant Terms. All YHDP replacement project applications are limited to a 1-year grant terms with 1-year of funding and the funding for these projects is based on the 1-year renewal amount of the current YHDP project being replaced. The grant term may be extended consistent with 2 CFR 200.308 and 2 CFR 200.309. Additionally, YHDP replacement projects cannot request capital costs (i.e., new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation).
- h. Match. 24 CFR 578.73 provides the information regarding match requirements. Project applicants that intend to use program income as a match must provide an estimate of how much program income will be used for the match. YHDP renewal or replacement projects will not be required to meet the 25 percent match requirement if the applicant is able to demonstrate it has taken reasonable steps to maximize resources available for youth experiencing homelessness.
- *i. Eligible Costs.* 24 CFR 578.37 through 578.63 identify the eligible costs for which funding may be requested under the CoC Program. Costs for renewing eligible YHDP renewal projects are eligible costs and may be requested under this NOFO. For YHDP replacement projects, eligible costs under the CoC program and costs for eligible YHDP replacement activities described in V.B.4.a.(5) may be requested under this NOFO. HUD will reject any requests for ineligible costs, except as otherwise provided in this NOFO.
- *j. Indirect Costs.* Normal indirect cost rules under 2 CFR part 200 apply. Project applicants that intend to charge indirect costs to the award must clearly state in the project application(s) the rate and distribution base the recipient intends to use, and if applicable, the rate and distribution base to be used by any sub-recipient(s). If the rate is a Federally negotiated indirect cost rate, the project application must include the corresponding negotiated indirect cost rate agreement signed by the cognizant agency. A government department or agency unit that receives no more than \$35 million in direct federal funding per year and has developed and maintains an indirect cost rate proposal and supporting documentation in accordance with 2 CFR part 200, appendix VII, may use the rate and distribution base specified in that indirect cost rate proposal, unless the cognizant agency requires the proposal to be submitted for negotiation.

For each applicant or intended sub-recipient that meets the conditions for the de minimis rate under 2 CFR 200.414(f) and will use that rate to charge indirect costs, the project application must clearly state the intended use of the de minimis rate of 10 percent of Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC). As described in 2 CFR 200.403, costs must be consistently charged as either indirect or direct costs but may not be double charged or inconsistently charged as both. Once an organization elects to use the de minimis rate, the organization must apply this methodology consistently for all Federal awards until the organization chooses to negotiate for a rate, which the organization may apply to do at any time. Documentation of the decision to use the de minimis rate must be retained on file for audit.

4. Criteria for Applicants.

a. Project Applications. The following types of project applications will be eligible for completion and submission under this NOFO. Ineligible project applications will not be reviewed.

- (1) CoC planning projects. All Collaborative Applicants are eligible and encouraged to apply for CoC planning funds which may be used as described in 24 CFR 578.39. CoC planning project applications must be submitted by the Collaborative Applicant, which must match the organization listed as the Collaborative Applicant in the CoC Applicant Profile in *e-snaps*. This project is not ranked in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition and will not affect a CoC's available amount for new and renewal project applications as it is not included in the CoC's ARD calculation.
- (2) UFA Costs projects. Only those Collaborative Applicants approved for UFA designation by HUD are eligible to apply for UFA Costs project funds as described in 24 CFR 578.41. The UFA Costs project application must be submitted by the Collaborative Applicant, which must match the organization listed as the Collaborative Applicant Profile in *e-snaps*. This project is not ranked in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition and will not affect a CoC's available amount for new and renewal project applications as it is not included in the CoC's ARD calculation.
- (3) New Projects Created Through Reallocation or CoC Bonus processes:
 - (a) Permanent housing-permanent supportive housing (PH-PSH) projects.
 - (b) Permanent housing-rapid rehousing (PH-RRH) projects.
 - (c) Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects.
 - (d) Dedicated HMIS project for the costs at 24 CFR 578.37(a)(4) that can only be carried out by the HMIS Lead, which is the recipient or subrecipient of an HMIS grant and is listed on the HMIS Lead form in the CoC Applicant Profile in *e-snaps*. Additionally, if the CoC has organizations within its geographic area that are victim service providers, the HMIS Lead, or subrecipient, may request HMIS funds for a comparable database. Victim service providers may also request HMIS funds in their project application budgets to enter data into a comparable database.
 - (e) Supportive services only coordinated entry (SSO-CE) project to develop or operate a centralized or coordinated assessment system.

Prior to completing a new project created through the reallocation process or Bonus processes, project applicants should consult with the CoC to determine which of these options will be available in the local CoC competition.

Because new project applications may be created through the reallocation or CoC Bonus processes, if HUD determines that a project applicant or a CoC incorrectly classified one or more new projects as reallocation or CoC Bonus, HUD may reclassify the project(s) as either reallocation or CoC Bonus if the CoC exceeded either its reallocation or CoC Bonus amount. For example, if a project applicant or the CoC classified a new project application as reallocation but did not reallocate funds in whole or part from an eligible renewal project, and there are CoC Bonus funds available, HUD may reclassify the new project application as CoC Bonus during its review. If a project applicant uses both reallocation and CoC Bonus amounts to create a single new project but did not have enough available from either source, HUD will reduce the project to the amount available, if any.

A new project may only use reallocated funds from eligible renewal project(s) that have

previously been renewed under the CoC Program and hold a current grant agreement.

- (4) New Projects for DV Bonus. New projects that want to be considered for the DV Bonus, may be:
 - (a) Permanent Housing-Rapid re-housing projects dedicated to serving survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking that are defined as homeless (24 CFR 578.3);
 - (b) Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects defined in Section III.B.2.q of this NOFO dedicated to serving survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking who are defined as homeless (24 CFR 578.3); or
 - (c) Supportive services only-coordinated entry project to implement policies, procedures, and practices that equip the CoC's coordinated entry to better meet the needs of survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- (5) Replacement YHDP Project. The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 permits the renewal or replacement of YHDP projects under the CoC Program; therefore, a renewing YHDP project may choose to replace its current program project with a new project which may include activities ineligible under the CoC Program, or portions of its current program design, to conduct activities that are ineligible with CoC Program funds provided the replacement project demonstrates it will directly address youth homelessness.

If an eligible YHDP renewal project applicant wants to submit a YHDP replacement project application in lieu of submitting a renewal project application, it must include the grant number from the YHDP renewal project being replaced in the YHDP replacement project application. The CoC's Collaborative Applicant is responsible for ensuring that only a renewal YHDP or replacement YHDP project application is submitted through the CoC Priority Listing. If the Collaborative Applicant submits both a renewal and replacement YHDP project application for the same project, HUD will only select the renewal YHDP project application.

If a renewing YHDP project chooses to replace some or all current activities, it must submit a YHDP replacement project application and it will be reviewed by HUD to ensure that the activities requested are eligible and do not exceed the ARA of the renewal project that is being replaced; however, the replacement YHDP project will not be rejected (unless a renewal YHDP project application has been submitted for the same project being replaced). If needed, HUD will work with replacement YHDP recipients to correct or revise information submitted after the final FY 2021 award announcement prior to executing the grant agreement.

- (a) HUD will only fund YHDP replacement projects as described below:
 - (i) Permanent Housing, including PH-PSH and PH-RRH projects.
 - (ii) Joint TH and PH-RRH Component.
 - (iii) Transitional Housing (TH) or Crisis Residential Transitional Housing which is a form of transitional housing that is short-term, low-barrier, utilizes a congregate living setting, and provides access to the following supportive

services in particular: family engagement and unification, case management, emergency triage services and other supportive services whose purpose is to move youth rapidly into stable housing.

- (iv) SSO, including, but not limited to, projects dedicated to coordinated entry, housing search and placement services, case management, drop-in centers which are a physical location that offers a variety of services to individuals and families experiencing homelessness that can be funded through the drop-in center grant or through another grant, legal services, or street outreach.
- (v) SSO-CE.
- (vi) HMIS.
- (vii) Host Homes and Kinship Care, A model in which a family agrees to permit a youth to reside with them. Recognizing that the addition of another person in the home may increase costs to the family, HUD will entertain applications that propose to house youth with families and to subsidize the additional costs attributable to housing the youth. The residence is in a community-based setting. The family could be related to the youth and the length of stay may be timelimited or without time limits.

YHDP replacement projects may be used to subsidize the increased costs to the family that are attributable to housing the youth. An example of eligible costs would be additional food or transportation costs, which are eligible supportive services under 24 CFR 578.53(e)(7) or 24 CFR 578.53(e)(15). Records must be kept related to this determination by the recipient for HUD review upon request. (viii) Shared Housing, A model of housing assistance where rental assistance is provided for a youth to reside with a family. The youth leases from the property owner and shares the unit with the family. The unit may be a house or an apartment. Under this NOFO "immediate family member" is defined to mean parents, grandparents, siblings, and legal guardians.

- (aa) rental assistance cannot be provided to a youth to reside in a unit occupied by its owner or occupied by a person with any interest in the unit if the youth is an immediate family member.
- (bb) rental assistance may be provided to a youth in a shared housing unit leased by a family if both the family and the youth are unrelated to the property owner or landlord. Both the family and the youth would have a lease for the entire unit. The youth may be an immediate family member of the family.

CoC funds may be used to provide replacement YHDP projects with tenant-based rental assistance for a youth to reside with a family. All CoC requirements that apply to rental assistance would apply to rental assistance provided in shared housing. These requirements include the following:

- (cc)There must be a rental assistance agreement between the recipient or the subrecipient and the owner;
- (dd) The housing meets CoC housing quality standards, or habitability standards if permitted under this NOFO;
- (ee) The rental assistance is provided in accordance with applicable written

standards:

- (ff) Rental assistance is not provided to a program participant who is receiving project-based rental assistance or operating assistance, through other public sources; and
- (gg) The shared housing must meet the rent reasonableness standards.

FMR will be adjusted to the youth's pro-rata share of the FMR for the shared housing unit size. For example, in the case of a single youth who will occupy one bedroom in a 4-bedroom house, the FMR used would be the youth's pro-rata share of the 4-bedroom FMR (i.e., ½ of the 4-bedroom FMR).

The inclusion of TH and SSO (non-coordinated entry) are only available to replacement YHDP project applications, no other project applicant is allowed to submit new project applications with these components; and if received, will be rejected.

- (b) YHDP replacement projects may also choose to submit applications for the following special YHDP activities in addition to activities eligible under the CoC program. The following options would not meet CoC program requirements but may be used to carry out YHDP projects. The following activities, which are ineligible under the CoC Program, may also be included in a YHDP replacement project and award:
 - (i) Housing projects may have leases for a minimum term of 1 month under rental assistance budget line items.
 - (ii) May use leasing, sponsor-based rental assistance, and project-based rental assistance in Rapid Rehousing projects.
 - (iii) In addition to the eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.59(a), may use project administration funds to support costs associated with involving youth with lived experience in project implementation, execution, and improvement.
 - (iv) May use project administrative funds to attend conferences and trainings that are not HUD-sponsored or HUD-approved, provided that the subject matter is relevant to youth homelessness.
 - (v) May employ youth who are receiving services, including housing, from the recipient organization. Recipients that utilize this special YHDP activity must maintain documentation that discloses the nature of work that the youth does, and that the youth is not in a position that creates a conflict of interest.
 - (vi) May use habitability standards in 24 CFR 476.403(c) rather than Housing Quality Standards in 24 CFR 578.75 for short or medium term (up to 24 months) housing assistance. Recipients implementing this special YHDP activity must keep documentation of which standards are applied to the units and proof that the units complied with standards before assistance is provided for every unit funded.
 - (vii) May provide moving expenses more than one-time to a program participant.
 - (vii) Recipients may provide payments of up to \$500 per month for families that provide housing under a host home and kinship care model in order to offset the increased costs associated with having youth housed in the unit.
 - (ix) May be used for the following if they are necessary to assist program

participants to obtain and maintain housing. Recipients and subrecipients must maintain records establishing how it was determined paying the costs was necessary for the program participant to obtain and retain housing and must also conduct an annual assessment of the needs of the program participants and adjust costs accordingly:

- (aa) Security deposits for units in an amount not to exceed 2 months of rent.
- (bb) The costs to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant, which may be paid while the youth continues to reside in the unit. The total costs paid for damage per program participant may not exceed the cost of two-months' rent.
- (cc) The costs of providing household cleaning supplies to clients.
- (dd) Housing start-up expenses for program participants, including furniture, pots and pans, linens, toiletries, and other household goods, not to exceed \$300 in value per program participant.
- (ee) The one-time cost of purchasing a cellular phone and service for program participant use, provided access to a cellular phone is necessary to obtain or maintain housing and the costs of the phone and services are reasonable per 2 CFR 200.404.
- (ff) The cost of internet in a program participant's unit and the costs of the service is reasonable per 2 CFR 200.404.
- (gg) Payment of rental arrears consisting of a one-time payment for up to 6 months of rent in arrears, including any late fees on those arrears.
- (hh) Payment of utility arrears of up to 6 months per service.
- (ii) Up to three months of utilities for a program participant, based on the utility costs schedule for the unit size and location.
- (jj) In addition to transportation costs eligible in 24 CFR 578.53(e)(15), a recipient may pay gas and mileage costs for a program participant's personal vehicle for trips to and from medical care, employment, childcare, or other services eligible under this section.
- (kk) Legal fees, including court fees, bail bonds, and required courses and equipment.
- (ll) Program participant's past driving fines and fees that are blocking a young person from being able to obtain or renew a driver's license and impacting their ability to obtain or maintain housing. Additionally, recipients may pay for program participants costs for insurance and registration for personal vehicles, if the personal vehicle is necessary to reach medical care, employment, childcare, or other services eligible under this section.
- (x) May provide up to 36 months of Rapid Rehousing rental assistance to a program participant if the recipient demonstrates (1) the method it will use to determine which youth need rental assistance beyond 24 months and (2) the services and resources that will be offered to ensure youth are able to sustain their housing at the end of the 36 months of assistance.
- (xi) May continue providing supportive services to program participants for up to 24 months after the program participant exits homelessness, transitional housing or after the end of housing assistance if the recipient demonstrates: 1) the

proposed length of extended services to be provided; 2) the method it will use to determine whether services are still necessary; and 3) how those services will result in self-sufficiency and ensure stable housing for the program participant. (xii) May continue providing supportive services to program participants for up to 36 months after the program participant exits homelessness, if the services are in connection with housing assistance, such as the Foster Youth to Independence initiative, or if the recipient can demonstrate that extended supportive services ensures continuity of case workers for program participants.

- (xiii) Rental assistance may be combined with leasing or operating funds in the same building, provided that the recipient submits a project plan that includes safeguards to ensure that no part of the project would receive a double subsidy. (xiv) May provide payments of up to \$1000 per month for families that provide housing under a host home and kinship care model, provided that the recipient can show that the additional cost is necessary to recruit hosts to the program. (xv) In addition to the specific activities authorized above or in 24 CFR part 578, other innovative activities to reduce youth homelessness may be carried out in a YHDP replacement project, provided that the recipient can demonstrate that the activity meets the following criteria:
 - (aa) The activity is approved by both the Youth Action Board (YAB) which is a group of at least 3 youth with voting power on policy decisions of the CoC, particularly on policies that relate to preventing and ending youth homelessness. Each YAB member must be age 24 or younger, and at least two-thirds of the YAB members must have lived experience of homelessness and should be representative of the youth and young adult population experiencing homelessness in the community, and must be a formal committee within the CoC, and the Continuum of Care, as evidenced by letters of support from each organization;
 - (bb) That activity will be testing or likely to achieve a positive outcome in at least one of the four core outcomes for youth experiencing homelessness (stable housing, permanent connections, education/employment, and well-being);
 - (cc) The activity is cost effective; and
 - (dd) The activity is not in conflict with fair housing, civil rights, or environmental regulations.
- (6) Expansion Project. HUD will allow project applicants to apply for a new expansion project (see Section III.B.2.k of this NOFO) through reallocation, CoC Bonus, and DV Bonus processes to expand existing projects will increase the number of units, persons served, services provided to existing program participants, or to add additional activities to HMIS and SSO-Coordinated Entry projects. If the new expansion project will expand an existing eligible CoC Program renewal project HUD will not fund capital costs (i.e., new constructions, rehabilitation, or acquisition) and will only allow 1-year funding requests. YHDP projects cannot use the expansion process.
 - (a) Project applicants intending to submit new project applications for the purposes of expanding an eligible renewal in the CoC Program must:

- (i) enter the grant number of the project that is eligible for renewal the project applicant requests to expand on the new project application;
- (ii) indicate how the new project application will expand units, beds, services, persons served, or services provided to existing program participants, or in the case of HMIS or SSO-Coordinated Entry projects, how the current activities will be expanded for the CoC's geographic area; and
- (iii) ensure the funding request for the expansion grant is within the funding parameters allowed under reallocation, CoC Bonus, or DV Bonus available amounts.
- (b) Project applicants may expand an existing renewal project that is not currently dedicated to serving survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking that meet the definition of homeless (24 CFR 578.3) to dedicate additional beds, units, persons served, or services provided to existing program participants to this population.

The new expansion project application must meet the project eligibility and project quality thresholds in Sections V.C.3.b and c of this NOFO. If the new expansion project exceeds the amount of funding available under the reallocation or Bonus processes, HUD will reduce the funding request to the available amount, which could affect the activities of the new expansion project. If both the new expansion project and the CoC Program renewal project it expands are conditionally selected for funding, one grant agreement incorporating both approved project applications will be executed. If the renewal project application is not conditionally selected for funding, the expansion project application will not be selected.

To apply for an expansion grant, project applicants must submit separate renewal and new project applications, and both must be ranked by the CoC with unique rank numbers.

- (7) Consolidation Project. Applicants intending to use the consolidation process to combine two or more (but no more than ten) eligible renewal projects (e.g., permanent housing-permanent supportive housing projects) may do so through the renewal project application, including renewing YHDP, and must ensure:
 - (a) Budget Line Items (BLIs) for the consolidated project application submitted exactly match the sum of the BLIs for each of the individual projects as they appear on the GIW located on HUD's website, or grant agreement as amended;
 - (b) inclusion of the expiring grant numbers with operating start and end dates for the projects that are consolidating;
 - (c) current operating end dates must end in CY 2022;
 - (d) are in good standing with HUD, meaning none of the projects have:
 - (i) outstanding audit or monitoring findings,
 - (ii) outstanding obligation to HUD that is in arrears,
 - (iii) unresolved construction delays,
 - (iv) a history of poor financial management/drawdown issues,
 - (v) history of low occupancy levels, or lack experience in administering the

project type, or (vi) other capacity issues.

(e) the projects have the same recipient and are for the same component.

The following cannot consolidate and if a project application meeting these characteristics attempts to consolidate, HUD will not consider the consolidation, but rather select the projects individual in their ranked position provided they pass project eligibility and project quality threshold requirements:

- a YHDP renewal project cannot consolidate with a non-YHDP project;
- a YHDP replacement project cannot consolidate;
- a transitional housing and a permanent housing project to consolidate to form a Joint TH and PH-RRH component project; and
- transition grants cannot consolidate with any other project.

To request the consolidation of eligible renewal projects, project applicants must submit renewal projects for the individual projects to be included in the consolidation and each project application will identify the grant number that will survive which must be the grant number with the earliest start date in CY 2022. Project applications for the grants that are proposed to be part of the consolidation must be ranked with a unique rank number for each project, and if all those grants are selected, HUD will conditionally award the single surviving grant based on its ranked position to include the amount of funding of all grants included in the consolidation. All other project applications included in the surviving grant will be removed from the CoC's ranking resulting in project applications below to slide up one ranked position. A project applicant cannot submit a consolidated project application that contains two different components (e.g., permanent housing and transitional housing).

The start date for the consolidated grant, if conditionally awarded, will be the day after the expiration date of the eligible renewal project with the earliest expiration date. The expiration date for the consolidated grant will be calculated by averaging the expiration dates for all expiring grants included in the consolidated grant weighted by the size of each expiring grant. If that date falls on the first through the fifteenth of a month, then the expiration date will be the last day of the previous month. If the date falls on the sixteenth through the end of the month, then the expiration date will be the last day of the month.

The expiration date for the consolidated grant will be calculated as follows: It will be X months after the end of the 12th month after the start date for the consolidated grant with X determined by calculating the sum for all grants of the total award times the number of months after the expiration of the first expiring grant that the grant expires and dividing that sum by the total award for the consolidated grant. If the calculation of X results in a partial month, if it is less than 0.5, then the consolidated grant will expire on the last day of the previous month, and if it is 0.5 or more, then the consolidated grant will expire on the last day of the calculated month.

Collaborative Applicants designated as UFAs have more flexibility in how they manage their CoC Program-funded projects making the consolidation of projects through the FY

2021 project application process unnecessary. A Collaborative Applicant with UFA designation can consolidate projects during the grant term, so long as the consolidations are not combining different component types and the projects are funded under the same grant (e.g., projects are currently funded under the same renewal grant). If a UFA designated Collaborative Applicant consolidates projects during the grant term, it can apply to renew them during the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition as consolidated projects.

(8) Renewal Grants Per Unit Cost. Applicants requesting renewal of grants for rental assistance are permitted to request a per-unit amount less than the Fair Market Rent (FMR) if the actual rent per unit under lease is less than the FMR. The applicants must provide copies of the leases to establish the actual rents. This will help reduce the number of projects receiving rental assistance that have large balances of unspent funds remaining at the end of the operating year. Renewal project applicants must ensure the amount requested will be sufficient to cover all eligible costs as HUD cannot provide funds beyond the amount awarded through this Competition. Project applications for rental assistance cannot request more than 100 percent of the published FMR. New project applications must adhere to 24 CFR 578.51(f) and must request the full FMR amount per unit. See Section VIII.B of this NOFO for additional information regarding FMR adjustments for projects receiving funds for rental assistance.

C. Rules that affect how HUD evaluates applications

1. Past Performance

In evaluating project applications for funding, HUD will consider a project applicant's past performance in managing funds. Items HUD will consider include, but are not limited to:

- the ability to account for funds in compliance with applicable reporting and recordkeeping requirements;
- timely use of funds received from HUD;
- timely submission and quality of reports submitted to HUD;
- meeting program requirements;
- meeting performance targets as established in the grant agreement;
- the project applicant's organizational capacity, including staffing structures and capabilities;
- timely completion of activities and receipt and expenditure of promised matching funds;
- the number of persons served or targeted for assistance;
- promoting self-sufficiency and economic independence;
- producing positive outcomes and results; and
- Encouraging participation with faith-based entities.

HUD may reduce scores based on the past performance review. Wherever possible, HUD will obtain past performance information and if this review results in an adverse funding related to integrity of performance, HUD reserves the right to take any of the remedies necessary.

2. Statutory and Regulatory Requirements.

To be eligible for funding under the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition NOFO, project

applicants must meet all statutory and regulatory requirements in the Act and the Rule. The FY 2021 YHDP noncompetitive renewals and replacements is administered under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 which permits YHDP projects to renew or replace non-competitively through the CoC Program (see Section II.B.7 of this NOFO). Project applicants can obtain a copy of the Act and the Rule on https://hubc.nlm.null.html website or by contacting the NOFO Information Center at 1-800-483-8929.

3. Threshold Requirements.

- a. Ineligible Applicants. HUD will not consider a project application from an ineligible project applicant, including an application submitted for CoC planning funds or UFA Costs from a project applicant other than the Collaborative Applicant.
- b. Project Eligibility Threshold. HUD will review all projects to determine if they meet the following project eligibility threshold requirements on a pass/fail standard. If HUD determines the applicable standards are not met for a project, the project will be rejected. Any project requesting renewal funding will be considered as having met these requirements through its previously approved grant application unless information to the contrary is received (e.g., monitoring findings, results from investigations by HUD's Office of Inspector General, the recipient routinely does not draw down funds from eLOCCS at least once per quarter, consistently late Annual Performance Report (APR) submissions). Approval of new and renewal projects is not a determination by HUD that a recipient is compliant with applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements.
 - (1) Project applicants and potential subrecipients must meet the eligibility requirements of the CoC Program as described in the Act and the Rule and provide evidence of eligibility required in the application (e.g., nonprofit documentation).
 - (2) Project applicants and subrecipients must demonstrate the financial and management capacity and experience to carry out the project as detailed in the project application and the capacity to administer federal funds. Demonstrating capacity may include a description of the applicant and subrecipient experience with similar projects and with successful administration of SHP, S+C, or CoC Program funds or other federal funds.
 - (3) Project applicants must submit the required certifications specified in this NOFO.
 - (4) The population to be served must meet program eligibility requirements as described in the Act, the Rule, and Section II.B.11.f of this NOFO.
 - (5) Project applicants, except Collaborative Applicants that only receive awards for CoC planning costs and, if applicable, UFA Costs, must agree to participate in a local HMIS system. However, in accordance with Section 407 of the Act, any victim service provider that is a recipient or subrecipient must not disclose, for purposes of HMIS, any personally identifying information about any client. Victim service providers must use a comparable database that meets the needs of the local HMIS.
- c. Project Quality Threshold. HUD will review all new project applications to determine if they meet the following project quality threshold requirements. HUD will not award funds to a new project unless the project was created through reallocation, or the CoC has demonstrated to HUD's satisfaction that projects are evaluated and ranked based on the degree to which they improve the CoC's system performance. Any project requesting renewal funding, including renewing YHDP, will be considered as having met these

requirements through its previously approved grant application unless information to the contrary is received (e.g., monitoring findings, results from investigations by HUD's Office of Inspector General, the recipient routinely does not draw down funds from eLOCCS at least once per quarter, consistently late APR submissions) and/or if the renewal project has compliance issues which results in the project not operating in accordance with the Rule. If awarded, a recipient is required to meet all the criteria listed in the criteria column for its component. Additionally, the housing and services proposed must be appropriate to the needs of the program participants and the community. A determination that a project meets the project quality threshold is not a determination by HUD that a recipient is compliant with applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements.

YHDP replacement project applications will be considered as having met project quality threshold requirements if the project application activities and costs are eligible under this NOFO. If a YHDP replacement project application is not for activities and costs that are eligible under this NOFO, it will not be rejected under this project quality threshold and HUD will work with the project applicant to correct or revise information submitted after the final FY 2021 award announcement before executing the grant agreement.

Permanent Housing: Permanent Supportive Housing or Rapid Rehousing			
New Project Application Rating Factors	Points Available	Criteria	
New permanent housing projects must receive at least 3 out of the 4 points available for this project type. New permanent housing projects that do not receive at least 3 points will be rejected.	1	The type of housing proposed, including the number and configuration of units, will fit the needs of the program participants (e.g., two or more bedrooms for families).	
	1	The type of supportive services that will be offered to program participants will ensure successful retention in or help to obtain permanent housing, including all supportive services regardless of funding source.	
	1	The proposed project has a specific plan for ensuring program participants will be individually assisted to obtain the benefits of mainstream health, social, and employment programs for which they are eligible to apply meets the needs of program participants (e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, SSI, Food Stamps, local Workforce office, early childhood education).	
	1	Program participants are assisted to obtain and remain in permanent housing in a manner that fits their needs (e.g., provides the participant with some type of transportation to access needed services, safety planning, case management, additional assistance to ensure retention of permanent housing).	

Joint TH and PH-RRH				
New Project Application Rating Factors	Points Available	Criteria		
New Joint TH and PH-RRH component project applications must receive at least 4 out of 6 points available for this project type. New Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects that do not receive at least 4 points will be rejected.	1	The type of housing proposed, including the number and configuration of units, will fit the needs of the program participants (e.g., two or more bedrooms for families.)		
	1	The proposed project will provide enough rapid rehousing assistance to ensure that at any given time a program participant may move from transitional housing to permanent housing. This may be demonstrated by identifying a budget that has twice as many resources for the rapid rehousing portion of the project than the TH portion, by having twice as many PH-RRH units at a point in time as TH units, or by demonstrating that the budget and units are appropriate for the population being served by the project.		
	1	The type of supportive services that will be offered to program participants will ensure successful retention or help to obtain permanent housing, including all supportive services regardless of funding source.		
	1	The proposed project has a specific plan for ensuring program participants will be individually assisted to obtain the benefits of mainstream health, social, and employment programs for which they are eligible to apply and which meets the needs of program participants (e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, SSI, Food Stamps, local Workforce office, early childhood education).		
	1	Program participants are assisted to obtain and remain in permanent housing in a manner that fits their needs (e.g., provides the participant with some type of transportation to access needed services, safety planning, case management, additional assistance to ensure retention of permanent housing).		
	1	The project adheres to a housing first model as defined in Section III.B.2.0 of this NOFO.		
SSO-Coordinated Entry				

New Project Application	Points	Criteria
Rating Factors	Available	
New SSO-Coordinated Entry project applications (also known as centralized or coordinated assessment) must receive at least 2 out of the 4 points available for this project type. New SSO-Coordinated Entry projects that do not receive at least 2 points will be rejected.	1	The centralized or coordinated assessment system is easily available/reachable for all persons within the CoC's geographic area who are seeking homelessness assistance. The system must also be accessible for persons with disabilities within the CoC's geographic area.
	1	There is a strategy for advertising that is designed specifically to reach homeless persons with the highest barriers within the CoC's geographic area.
	1	There is a standardized assessment process.
	1	Ensures program participants are directed to appropriate housing and services that fit their needs.
HMIS		
New Project Application Rating Factors	Points Available	Criteria
New HMIS project applications must receive at least 3 out of the 4 points available for this project type. New HMIS projects that do not receive at least 3 points will be rejected.	1	How the HMIS funds will be expended in a way that is consistent with the CoC's funding strategy for the HMIS and furthers the CoC's HMIS implementation.
	1	The HMIS collects all Universal Data Elements as set forth in the HMIS Data Standards.
	1	The ability of the HMIS to un-duplicate client records.
	1	The HMIS produces all HUD-required reports and provides data as needed for HUD reporting (e.g., APR, quarterly reports, data for CAPER/ESG reporting) and other reports required by other federal partners.
CoC Planning – Collaborativ	e Applicant	
New Project Application Rating Factors	Points Available	Criteria
New CoC planning projects, submitted only by the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant, must receive at least 3 out of the 5 points	1	Governance and Operations-The CoC conducts meetings of the entire CoC membership that are inclusive and open to members and demonstrates the CoC has a written governance charter in place that includes CoC policies.
available for this project type. CoC planning projects that do not receive at least 3	1	CoC Committees-The CoC has CoC-wide planning committees, subcommittees, or workgroups to address homeless needs in the

points will be rejected.		CoC's geographic area that recommends and sets policy priorities for the CoC.
	2	The proposed planning activities that will be carried out by the CoC with grant funds are compliant with the provisions of 24 CFR 578.7.
	1	The funds requested will improve the CoC's ability to evaluate the outcome of both CoC Program-funded and ESG-funded projects.

HUD will review the UFA Costs submitted by the UFA designated Collaborative Applicant to ensure appropriate match and eligibility of costs requested. Additionally, HUD will assess all new project applications for the following minimum project eligibility, capacity, timeliness, and performance standards. To be considered as meeting project quality threshold, all new projects must meet all the following criteria:

- (1) Project applicants and potential subrecipients must have satisfactory capacity, drawdowns, and performance for existing grant(s) that are funded under the CoC Program, as evidenced by timely reimbursement of subrecipients, regular drawdowns, and timely resolution of any monitoring findings; however, this does not apply to project applicants who have never received a CoC Program funded project;
- (2) For expansion project applications, project applicants must articulate the part of the project that is being expanded. Additionally, project applicants must demonstrate they are not replacing other funding sources; and
- (3) Project applicants must demonstrate they will be able to meet all timeliness standards per 24 CFR 578.85. Project applicants with existing projects must demonstrate that they have met all renewal project threshold requirements of this NOFO. HUD reserves the right to deny the funding request for a new project, if the request is made by an existing recipient that HUD finds to have significant issues related to capacity, performance, unresolved audit or monitoring findings related to one or more existing grants; or does not routinely draw down funds from *e*LOCCS at least once per quarter. Additionally, HUD reserves the right to withdraw funds if no APR is submitted on the prior grant.
- d. Project Renewal Threshold. A CoC must consider the need to continue funding for projects expiring in CY 2022 (January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022). Renewal projects must meet minimum project eligibility, capacity, timeliness, and performance standards identified in this NOFO or they will be rejected from consideration for funding:
- (1) When considering renewal projects for award; HUD will review information in *e*LOCCS, APRs, and information provided from the local HUD CPD field office; including monitoring reports and audit reports as applicable, and performance standards on prior grants, and will assess projects using the following criteria on a pass/fail basis:
 - (a) Whether the project applicant's performance met the plans and goals established in the initial application, as amended;
 - (b) Whether the project applicant demonstrated all timeliness standards for grants being renewed, including those standards for the expenditure of grant funds that have been met;
 - (c) The project applicant's performance in assisting program participants to achieve and

- maintain independent living and records of success, except dedicated HMIS projects that are not required to meet this standard; and
- (d) Whether there is evidence that a project applicant has been unwilling to accept technical assistance, has a history of inadequate financial accounting practices, has indications of project mismanagement, has a drastic reduction in the population served, has made program changes without prior HUD approval, or has lost a project site.
- (2) HUD reserves the right to reduce or reject a project application from the project applicant for the following reasons:
 - (a) outstanding obligation to HUD that is in arrears or for which a payment schedule has not been agreed upon;
 - (b) audit finding(s) for which a response is overdue or unsatisfactory;
 - (c) history of inadequate financial management accounting practices;
 - (d) evidence of untimely expenditures on prior award;
 - (e) history of other major capacity issues that have significantly affected the operation of the project and its performance;
 - (f) history of not reimbursing subrecipients for eligible costs in a timely manner, or at least quarterly; and
 - (g) history of serving ineligible program participants, expending funds on ineligible costs, or failing to expend funds within statutorily established timeframes.
- e. Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan. Each project applicant must submit a certification by the jurisdiction in which the proposed project(s) will be located that the applicant's project application for funding is consistent with the jurisdiction's HUD-approved consolidated plan. The certification must be made in accordance with the provisions of the consolidated plan regulations at 24 CFR part 91, subpart F. Form HUD-2991 must be completed and dated between August 17, 2021 and November 16, 2021. Additionally, applicants that propose to claim a reservation or trust land geographic area and to locate a project on a reservation or trust land must include a tribal resolution from the tribe authorizing the applicant to do so. Tribes do not need to include a tribal resolution to claim their own reservation or trust land or to site a project on their own reservation or trust land. A tribal resolution is the formal manner in which the tribal government expresses its legislative will in accordance with its organic documents. In the absence of such organic documents, a written expression adopted pursuant to tribal practices will be acceptable.
- *f. Environmental Requirements*. Notwithstanding 24 CFR 578.31 and 24 CFR 578.99(a) of the Rule, and in accordance with Section 100261(3) of MAP-21 (Pub. L. 112-141, 126 Stat. 405), activities under this NOFO are subject to environmental review by a responsible entity under HUD regulations at 24 CFR part 58.
 - (1) Two types of projects are Categorically Excluded from review under the National Environmental Policy Act and not subject to 24 CFR 58.5 (CENST): All scattered-site projects where program participants choose their own unit and are not restricted to units within a pre-determined specific project site or sites are categorized in 24 CFR 58.35(b)(1) as CENST. This includes both tenant-based rental assistance and tenant-based leasing projects where program participants choose their own unit. The Exempt/CENST form is only required for each project, not every unit.

- (2) For activities under a grant to a recipient other than a state or unit of general local government that generally would be subject to review under 24 CFR part 58, HUD may make a finding in accordance with 24 CFR 58.11(d) and may itself perform the environmental review under the provisions of 24 CFR part 50 if the recipient objects in writing to the responsible entity's performing the review under part 24 CFR part 58.

 (3) Irrespective of whether the responsible entity in accordance with 24 CFR part 58 (or HUD in accordance with 24 CFR part 50) performs the environmental review, the recipient must supply all available, relevant information necessary for the responsible entity (or HUD, if applicable) to perform for each property any required environmental review. The recipient also must carry out mitigating measures required by the responsible
- (4) The recipient, its project partners, and their contractors may not acquire, rehabilitate, convert, lease, repair, dispose of, demolish, or construct property for a project under this NOFO, or commit or expend HUD or local funds for such eligible activities under this NOFO, until the responsible entity (as defined by 24 CFR 58.2(a)(7)) has completed the environmental review procedures required by 24 CFR part 58 and the environmental certification and Request for Release of Funds (RROF) have been approved or HUD has performed an environmental review under 24 CFR part 50 and the recipient has received HUD approval of the property. HUD will not release grant funds if the recipient or any other party commits grant funds (i.e., incurs any costs or expenditures to be paid or reimbursed with such funds) before the recipient submits and HUD approves its RROF (where such submission is required).

VI. APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION

entity (or HUD, if applicable) or select alternative property.

A. Obtaining an Application

Authoritative Versions of HUD NOFOs. The version of this NOFO as posted on Grants.gov is the official document HUD uses to solicit applications. Applicants are advised to compare their application submission with the requirements in the Program NOFO. If there is a discrepancy in the Program NOFO posted on Grants.gov and other information provided in any other copy or version or supporting documentation, the Program NOFO located on Grants.gov prevails. If discrepancies are found, notify HUD immediately as indicated in Section XI of this NOFO. Persons with hearing, or speech impairments, may use the Federal Relay Service's teletype service at 1-800-877-8339. HUD will post any corrections or changes to a Program NOFO on Grants.gov. While the CoC Program NOFO is officially posted on Grants.gov, this program uses *e-snaps*, an electronic application system. HUD does not accept faxed applications or supportive documents.

B. Other Guidance and Notifications

- **1. Federalism.** E.O. 13132 prohibits, to the extent practicable and permitted by law, an agency from promulgating policies that have federalism implications and either impose substantial direct compliance costs on state and local governments and are not required by statute, or preempt state law, unless the relevant requirements of Section 6 of the executive order are met. This notice does not have federalism implications and does not impose substantial direct compliance costs on state and local governments or preempt state law within the meaning of the executive order.
- **2. Section 102 of the HUD Reform Act.** Section 102 of the Department of Housing and Urban Development Reform Act of 1989 (HUD Reform Act) (42 U.S.C. 3545) and the regulations codified at 24 CFR 4, subpart A, contain several requirements that are designed to ensure greater

accountability and integrity in the provision of certain types of assistance administered by HUD. On January 14, 1992, HUD published a notice that also provides information on the implementation of Section 102 (57 FR 1942). The documentation, public access, and disclosure requirements of Section 102 apply to assistance awarded under NOFOs published as described below:

- a. Documentation, Public Access, and Disclosure Requirements. HUD will ensure that documentation and other information regarding each application submitted pursuant to a FY 2021 NOFO are sufficient to indicate the basis upon which assistance was provided or denied. This material, including any letters of support, will be made available for public inspection for a 5-year period beginning not less than 30 days after the award of the assistance. Material will be made available in accordance with the FOIA and HUD's implementing regulations at 24 CFR 15.
- b. Form HUD 2880, "Applicant/Recipient Disclosure/Update Report". HUD will also make available to the public for a period of 5 years all applicant disclosure reports (form HUD 2880) submitted in connection with a FY 2021 NOFO. Updated reports (also reported on form HUD 2880) will be made available along with the applicant disclosure reports, but in no case for a period of less than 3 years. All reports will be made available in accordance with the FOIA and HUD's implementing regulations.
- c. Publication of Recipients of Funding. HUD's regulations at 24 CFR part 4 provide that HUD will publish a notice in the Federal Register to notify the public of all funding decisions made by HUD to provide:
- 1. Assistance subject to Section 102(a) of the HUD Reform Act; and
- 2. Assistance provided through grants or cooperative agreements on a discretionary (nonformula, non-demand) noncompetitive basis.
- **3. Section 103 of the HUD Reform Act.** Section 103 of the HUD Reform Act, codified at 24 CFR part 4, subpart B, applies to this funding competition until the announcement of selection of successful applicants. HUD's employees involved in the review of applications and in the making of funding decisions are prohibited by the regulations from providing advance information to any person (other than an authorized HUD employee) concerning funding decisions or from otherwise giving any applicant an unfair competitive advantage. Persons who apply for assistance must confine their inquiries to the subject areas HUD's employees are permitted to answer under 24 CFR part 4. Applicants who have ethics-related questions may contact HUD's Ethics Law Division at 202-708-3815 (this is not a toll-free number). Persons with speech or hearing impairments may access this number via TTY by calling the Federal Relay Service at 1-800-877-8339.
- **4. Digital Signatures and Recordkeeping.** HUD is increasing electronic recordkeeping where feasible
 - a. HUD plans to use digital signatures on grant award and modification documents to expedite awards and modification.
 - b. HUD will manage email records in an electronic format. Recipients need not print emails and file them if their email system and procedures meet records management and litigation requirements (e.g., identifying, retrieving, and retaining the records for as long as they are needed).
- **C. Application Package.** The submission summary in *e-snaps* provides the list of elements required to complete each type of project application. A Collaborative Applicant will not be able

to submit its application to HUD until all required parts are completed, including the project-level review and either accepting and ranking or rejecting the project applications. Once available, the CoC Application, Project Application, and CoC Priority Listing can be accessed at https://esnaps.hud.gov/.

- **D. Content and Form of Application Submission.** The CoC Consolidated Application for funds under this NOFO includes the FY 2021 CoC Application, which describes the CoC's plan for ending homelessness, its system-level performance, and addresses the selection criteria specified in Section VII of this NOFO; the FY 2021 Project Application completed by project applicants, the CoC Priority Listing which includes the reallocation forms, all project applications submitted to the CoC for funding consideration that are either approved and ranked or rejected; and the form HUD-2991, Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan.
- **E. CoC Consolidated Application.** An entire CoC Consolidated Application must be submitted by the Collaborative Applicant on behalf of the CoC. The application will include the parts listed below, all of which will be submitted electronically either through *e-snaps* or as an uploaded attachment (for more information see the project application, CoC Application, and CoC Priority Listing detailed instructions and *e-snaps* Navigational Guides located on <u>HUD's website</u>).
 - 1. The FY 2021 CoC Application, including:
 - a. The CoC plan with all charts and narratives completed as applicable;
 - b. All required attachments, including:
 - (1) CoC Review, Score, and Ranking Procedures. The CoC's written procedures that are publicly posted for all interested stakeholders and applicants that clearly describe the project-level review and ranking process that is used by the CoC to determine how CoC Program project applications submitted to the CoC are reviewed, scored, and ranked.
 - (2) CoC Public Notice. A screenshot(s) from the CoC's, or a partner's website, that includes the date the CoC notified the public of its local competition process, the due date for project applications, and the full CoC Application and CoC Priority Listing that includes all Project Listings of project applications submitted to HUD as ranked or rejected. For renewal and replacement YHDP, CoC planning, and UFA Costs projects the Project Listings should indicate the project application(s) were accepted, unless they were submitted by an ineligible applicant in which case, they should indicate rejected.
 - (3) CoC Review and Ranking Process. Documents the process used by the CoC in the local competition to review, assess, and score new and renewal project applications, a copy of one scored project application form used by most renewal project applicants that includes the objective criteria and system performance criteria and their respective maximum point values and the actual points your CoC awarded to the project applicant; and the final project scores for new and renewal project applications.

- (4) Notification to Project Applicants. The notification of the action (rejection or reduction) that must be sent to the project applicant at least 15-days prior to the HUD application submission deadline, if a new or renewal project application was submitted to the CoC in the local competition and was rejected or had its funding request reduced as part of the CoC's local process.
- (5) Public Notification of Ranked Project Applications. The notification of action that all project applicants who submitted new and renewal project applications in the local CoC competition are notified at least 15-days prior to the HUD application submission deadline of the CoC's acceptance that includes the ranked position of the project applications. This notification may be posted publicly or sent via email to individual project applicants.
- (6) PHA Administrative Plan. If the CoC is seeking points under Section VII.B.1.g of this NOFO, a copy, or the relevant excerpt, from the PHA(s) administrative planning document(s), or other document from the PHA(s) with the written policy, if any was developed between the CoC and the PHA(s) located within the CoC's geographic area that describes the PHA(s) homeless preference for housing. Instead of a relevant excerpt from the written plan, a letter from the PHA(s) may be attached that describes the PHA(s) homeless preference for housing.
- (7) Centralized or Coordinated Entry System Assessment Tool. The standardized assessment tool developed and used by the CoC's coordinated entry system.
- (8) Leveraging Healthcare Resources. A written commitment from a health care organization with the value of the commitment and the date(s) healthcare resources will be provided.
- (9) Projects to Serve Persons Defined as Homeless under paragraph (3) of 24 CFR 578.3. If the CoC is seeking to serve persons defined as homeless under paragraph (3) of the homeless definition, a list of projects that will serve persons defined as homeless under paragraph (3) of the homeless definition.
- 2. FY 2021 Project Application(s), including for each project application:
 - a. Project application, charts, narratives, and attachments.
 - b. Documentation of Applicant and Subrecipient Eligibility. All nonprofit project applicants must attach eligibility documentation to the Project Applicant Profile. If nonprofit sub-recipients are included in a project application, sub-recipient eligibility documentation must be attached to the project application.
 - c. Applicant Code of Conduct. All project applicants must ensure their organization has a Code of Conduct that complies with the requirements of 2 CFR part 200 and is on file with HUD at
 - https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/conduct. If the organization's Code of Conduct does not appear on HUD's website, the project applicant

must attach its Code of Conduct that includes all required information to its Project Applicant Profile in *e-snaps*.

- d. The following HUD required forms are built into *e-snaps* and must be fully completed and electronically signed before project applicants have access to the project application:
 - (1) SF-424 Application for Federal Assistance;
 - (2) SF-424 Supplement, Survey on Ensuring Equal Opportunities for Application required for nonprofit applicants only where completion and submission of this survey in voluntary;
 - (3) Form HUD-2880, Applicant/Recipient Update/Disclosure;
 - (4) SF LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (if applicable);
 - (5) Form HUD-50070, Certification for Drug-Free Workplace;
 - (6) Disclosure of Lobbying Activities; and
 - (7) Applicant Certifications.
- 3. The FY 2021 CoC Priority Listing, including:
 - a. Project reallocation forms (if applicable) that indicates the eligible renewal projects that are being reallocated in whole or part to create new project applications;
 - b. New Project Listing;
 - c. Renewal Project Listing;
 - d. UFA Costs Project Listing;
 - e. CoC Planning Project Listing;
 - f. YHDP Renewal Project Listing;
 - g. YHDP Replacement Project Listing; and
 - h. Form HUD-2991, Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan. The Collaborative Applicant must submit a certification signed by the local jurisdiction(s) official in which the proposed project(s) are or will be located for all project applications submitted as part of the CoC Consolidated Application dated between August 17, 2021 and November 16, 2021. This program requires a Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan under 24 CFR 91.2, and certifies the proposed activities in the project applications are consistent with the jurisdiction's strategic plan, and the location of the proposed activities is consistent with the geographic areas specified in the Consolidated Plan. Additionally, applicants that propose to claim a reservation or trust land geographic area and to locate a project on a reservation or trust land must include a tribal resolution from the tribe authorizing the applicant to do so. Tribes do not need to include a tribal resolution to claim their own reservation or trust land or to site a project on their own reservation or trust land. A tribal resolution is the formal manner in which the tribal government expresses its legislative will in accordance with its organic documents. In the absence of such organic documents, a written expression adopted pursuant to tribal practices will be acceptable.
- 4. Solo Applicants. Eligible project applicants that attempted to participate in the CoC planning process in the geographic area in which they operate, that believe they were denied the right to participate in a reasonable manner, may submit a solo project application to HUD and may be awarded a grant from HUD by following the procedure found in 24 CFR 578.35. Solo applicants must submit their solo project application in *e-snaps* to HUD by

8:00 PM EST, on November 16, 2021. See Section X.C of this NOFO for additional information regarding the Solo Applicant appeal process.

F. Submission Dates and Times.

- 1. Completed applications must be submitted to HUD on or before 8:00 PM EST on November 16, 2021.
- 2. 24 CFR 578.9 requires CoCs to design, operate, and follow a collaborative process for the development of an application in response to a NOFO issued by HUD (which, under this NOFO includes applications for noncompetitive YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects). As part of this collaborative process, CoCs must implement internal competition deadlines to ensure transparency and fairness at the local level. The implementation of deadlines that meet the standards outlined below for FY 2021 project applications are part of the scoring criteria as detailed in Section VII.B.2.g of this NOFO.
 - (a) Project Application. All project applications are required to be submitted to the CoC no later than 30 days before the application submission deadline to HUD of November 16, 2021 by 8:00 PM EST. CoCs failing to establish this deadline for local project application(s) will receive 0 points under Section VII.B.2.g of this NOFO.
 - (b) CoC Notification to Project Applicants. The CoC is required to notify, in writing outside of *e-snaps*, all project applicants who submitted their project applications to the CoC by the local CoC-established deadline whether their project application(s) will be accepted and ranked on the CoC Priority Listing, rejected, or reduced by the CoC no later than 15 days of the FY 2021 application submission deadline.

Where a project application is being rejected or reduced, the CoC must provide the project applicant with the reason(s) for the rejection or reduction. CoCs failing to provide this information to a project applicant that submits its project application by the local competition deadline will receive 0 points under Section VII.B.2.g of this NOFO.

- 3. For the CoC Consolidated Application to be considered complete and properly submitted for review by HUD in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition, the Collaborative Applicant must submit the entire CoC Consolidated Application by the application submission deadline which includes: CoC Application, the CoC Priority Listing, and the project applications on behalf of the CoC. Note that the "Submit" button will not be available on the Submission Summary of the CoC Application and CoC Priority Listing until all required sections of the application and all parts of the listings, including accepting and ranking with a unique rank number or rejecting project applications have been completed. Collaborative Applicants should review the Submission Summary form carefully to ensure that no sections state "Please Complete." The CoC Application and the CoC Priority Listing are separate submissions in *e-snaps*; therefore, Collaborative Applicants must ensure both the CoC Application and the CoC Priority Listing, that includes all project applications either approved and ranked or rejected, are submitted in *e-snaps* prior to the application submission deadline.
- 4. Collaborative Applicants should print a copy of the Submission Summary form from the

- CoC Application and the CoC Priority Listing before closing their internet browser after the CoC Consolidated Application has been submitted to HUD. This is the Collaborative Applicant's receipt of submission and proof of compliance with the application deadline. HUD will not give funding consideration to any Collaborative Applicant whose CoC Application or CoC Priority Listing is determined to be late and are unable to provide HUD with a record of submission that verifies the FY 2021 CoC Consolidated Application was submitted prior to the application deadline date and time.
- 5. HUD strongly suggests that applicants use the "Export to PDF" functionality of e-snaps to print a hard copy of all submission documents for their records. This can be completed prior to or after submission.
- 6. As stated in Section VI.F.1 of this NOFO, it is imperative that all Collaborative Applicants meet the application submission deadline of November 16, 2021 at 8:00 PM EST. Applications that are not received on time will not be funded. Also, failure to submit a complete CoC Consolidated Application may result in HUD finding that the CoC does not meet the requirements of the Act or its implementing regulations under 24 CFR 578.13. If the Secretary makes that finding, HUD may take remedial action to ensure fair distribution of grant funds to eligible entities within the CoC's geographic area, which includes the possibility that HUD will designate another eligible applicant to be the Collaborative Applicant for the CoC. In addition to the remedial actions listed in 24 CFR 578.13(a), HUD may also decide to impose another remedial action, such as requiring the CoC to create new policies and procedures to ensure that the Collaborative Applicant performs its duties.
- 7. CoC and project applicants experiencing technical difficulty with any part of the Consolidated Application should notify HUD immediately for assistance and document all attempts to obtain assistance. Notification of technical difficulties are to be sent to CoCNOFO@hud.gov. HUD will not provide assistance directly related to content, only to troubleshoot submission issues.
- 8. If after notice and reasonable opportunity to be heard, HUD finds pursuant to 24 CFR 578.13, that one or more Continuums have failed to comply with the requirements of the Act and the Rule, HUD may, solely at its discretion and only if sufficient funds become available by recapture, publish a new NOFO for eligible applicants in Continuums that HUD has determined do not meet the requirements of the Act and program regulations.
- G. Intergovernmental Review. Not Applicable.
- H. Funding Restrictions. Not Applicable.
- I. Other Submission Requirements
- **1. Application, Assurances, and Certifications.** Standard Form 424 (SF-424) Application for Federal Assistance Programs is the government-wide form required to apply for Application for Federal Assistance Programs, discretionary Federal grants, and other forms of financial assistance programs. Applicants for this Federal assistance program must submit all required forms in the SF-424 Family of forms, including SF-424B (Assurances of Non-construction

Programs) or SF-424D (Assurances for Construction Programs). Applications receiving funds for both non-construction programs and construction programs must submit both the SF-424B and SF-424D.

By signing the forms in the SF-424 either through electronic submission or in paper copy submission (for those granted a waiver), the applicant and the signing authorized representative affirm they have reviewed the certifications and assurances associated with the application for federal assistance and (1) are aware the submission of the SF-424 is an assertion that the relevant certifications and assurances are established and (2) acknowledge that the truthfulness of the certifications and assurances are material representations upon which HUD will rely when making an award to the applicant. If it is later determined the signing authorized representative to the application made a false certification or assurance, caused the submission of a false certification or assurance, or did not have the authority to make a legally binding commitment for the applicant, the applicant and the individual who signed the application may be subject to administrative, civil, or criminal action. Additionally, HUD may terminate the award to the applicant organization or pursue other available remedies. Each applicant is responsible for including the correct certifications and assurances with its application submission, including those applicable to all applicants, those applicable only to federally recognized Indian tribes, and those applicable to applicants other than federally-recognized Indian tribes. All program-specific certifications and assurances are included in the program Instructions Download on Grants.gov.

Assurances. By submitting your application, you provide assurances that, if selected to receive an award, you will comply with U.S. statutory and public policy requirements, including, but not limited to civil rights requirements. Applicants and recipients are required to submit assurances of compliance with federal civil rights requirements. See, e.g., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; see also 24 C.F.R. §§ 1.5; 3.115; 8.50; and 146.25. HUD accepts these assurances in the form of the SF-424B and SF-424D, which also require compliance with all general federal nondiscrimination requirements in the administration of the grant.

- **2. Waiver of Electronic Submission Requirements.** The regulatory framework of HUD's electronic submission requirement is the final rule established in 24 CFR 5.1005. CoCs seeking a waiver of the electronic submission requirement must request a waiver in accordance with 24 CFR 5.1005. HUD regulations allow for a waiver of the electronic submission requirement for good cause. For this NOFO, HUD is defining good cause as:
 - a. there are no computers that could be used by applicants or the Collaborative Applicant that are newer than 5 years old anywhere within the CoC's geographic area; or
 - b. there are no computers that could be used by applicants or the Collaborative Applicant anywhere within the CoC's geographic area; or
 - c. there is no internet access that could be used by applicants or the Collaborative Applicant anywhere within the CoC's geographic area.

HUD will grant waivers only at the CoC level and not at the individual project applicant level, and only to CoCs that were approved by HUD during the required CoC Registration process.

If the waiver is granted, the Office of Special Needs Assistance Programs' response will include instructions on how many copies of the paper application must be submitted, as well as where to submit them. CoCs that are granted a waiver of the electronic submission requirement will not be afforded additional time to submit their applications. Therefore, Collaborative Applicants seeking a waiver of the electronic submission requirement on behalf of the CoC should submit their waiver request with sufficient time to allow HUD to process and respond to the request. Collaborative Applicants should also allow themselves sufficient time to submit the application on behalf of the CoC so that HUD receives the application by the established deadline date. For this reason, HUD strongly recommends that if a Collaborative Applicant finds it cannot submit its application electronically and must seek a waiver of the electronic grant submission requirement, it should submit the waiver request to the Office of Special Needs Assistance Programs no later than 30 days after the publication date of this NOFO. To expedite the receipt and review of each request, Collaborative Applicants may fax their written requests to Norm Suchar. If HUD does not have sufficient time to process the waiver request, a waiver will not be granted. Paper applications received without a prior approved waiver and/or after the established deadline will not be considered.

VII. Application Review Information

While HUD encourages activities in support of the Secretary's Initiatives for any of the three (3) preferences (Opportunity Zone, Promise Zone or Historically Black Colleges or University), this NOFO does not those include preference points. However, Section VII.B.6 provides the information and points associated with the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 requirement to provide incentives to create projects that coordinate housing providers and healthcare organizations to provide permanent supportive housing and rapid rehousing services.

A. Criteria

A. Criteria for Applicants

CoC Consolidated Applications will be assessed on a 163-point scale. No Collaborative Applicants have exercised the authority under 422(j) of the Act; therefore, no selection criteria based on section 427(b)(1)(A)(viii) is included in this NOFO. Additionally, for purposes of the requirements of section 427 (b)(1)(B)(iv)(I) of the Act. HUD considers "all relevant subpopulations" to mean families, youth, veterans, persons fleeing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, persons who are unsheltered, and chronically homeless individuals and families.

- 1. Major Disaster Areas. If a major disaster impacts a CoC's geographic area, as declared by the President under the Stafford Act, during the FY 2021 CoC Program application process that will impact local competition deadlines as outlined in Section I.H of this NOFO, the CoC's Collaborative Applicant must send written notification to Norm Suchar, Director, Office of Special Needs Assistance Program at CoCDisaster@hud.gov. The email must include:
 - a. the nature of the disaster, date(s) the major disaster occurred, how the major disaster affected the Collaborative Applicant, the CoC, or its project(s);
 - b. the duration, and the impact on the Collaborative Applicant, the project applicants, or the CoC to meet the local competition deadline; and
 - c. the anticipated amount of time the CoC is requesting for an extension (e.g., number of days, weeks, or months). This does not mean HUD will allow the full amount of time

requested.

Based on the timing and the extent of the major disaster, HUD may extend the application deadline for the affected CoC(s). All requests received will be confirmed via the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) website, https://www.fema.gov/disasters.

- 2. Housing Inventory Count (HIC) and Point-in-Time (PIT) Data. CoCs were required to submit the FY 2021 HIC and PIT data directly to the HUD HDX website by May 14, 2021 by 8:00 PM EDT. CoCs that did not meet the established deadline for HIC and PIT count data submission and did not receive an extension from HUD will not receive the maximum number of points available as described in VII.B.3 and VII.B.4 of this NOFO.
- 3. Capital Costs. For a CoC to receive maximum points if a project applicant(s) request CoC Program funds for construction or rehabilitation, it must include information describing the actions that will be taken by project applicants to comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) (Section 3) and HUD's implementing rules at 24 CFR part 75 to provide employment and training opportunities for low- and very low-income persons, as well as contracting and other economic opportunities for business that provide economic opportunities to low- and very low-income persons. This does not affect applicants' existing responsibilities to provide training, employment, and other economic opportunities pursuant to Section 3 that result from their receipt of other HUD funding. YHDP replacement project applications cannot include capital costs. Grants to Indian tribes are subject to Indian Preference under Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b)) and are not subject to Section 3 requirements.

B. CoC Application Scoring.

The following chart describes the CoC Application criteria that will be used to establish CoC scores:

1. CoC Coordination and Engagement. HUD will award up to **96** points to CoCs that demonstrate coordination with other systems of care that serve homeless individuals and families, including sources of funding other than the CoC Program; an inclusive and outcome-oriented community process, including an organization structure(s) and decision-making process for developing and implementing a CoC strategy that is inclusive of representatives from both the private and public sectors, has a fair and impartial project review and selection process; and has created, maintained, and built upon a community-wide inventory of housing for homeless individuals and families.

Rating Factor	Maximum Points	To Receive Maximum Points	
a. Inclusive Structure and Participation.			
(1) Has an inclusive membership of a variety of stakeholders within the geographic area.	1	Demonstrate participation from a broad array of stakeholders, not limited to organizations listed in 24 CFR 578.5(a), within the geographic area, including at a minimum: • victim service organizations; • youth service providers;	

		 homeless or formerly homeless individuals; and organizations for CoCs where a tribal organization is present.
(2) Has an invitation process for new members to join.	1	Demonstrate: • a transparent process (e.g., communicated to the public on the CoC's website) is in place to invite new members to join and includes an invitation process for new members to join that is publicly available within the geographic area at least annually; and • how the CoC invites organizations serving culturally specific communities experiencing homelessness in the geographic area to addresses equity (e.g., Black, Latino, Indigenous, and persons with disabilities).
(3) Solicits and considers opinions from knowledgeable individuals and organizations.	1	Demonstrate a transparent process (e.g., communicated in a public manner on the CoC's website) is in place to solicit and consider opinions from individuals and organizations with knowledge of homelessness in the geographic area or an interest in preventing or ending homelessness in the geographic area.
(4) Accepts and considers proposals from organizations that have not previously received CoC Program funding.	1	Demonstrate a transparent process (e.g., communicated in a public manner on the CoC's website) is in place to accept and consider proposals from organizations that have not previously received CoC Program funding.
b. Coordination with Federal, State, Local, Private, and Other Organizations. Coordinates with other organizations that serve individuals, families, unaccompanied youth, and persons fleeing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking who	2	 CoCs must: demonstrate coordination with other federal, state, local, private, and other organizations are included in the planning or operation of projects; and actively consult with ESG recipients in the planning and allocation of ESG and ESG-CV funds and participate in the Consolidated Plan jurisdictions' process(s) by providing PIT and HIC

are experiencing or at risk of homelessness. CoCs must consult with Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) recipients within the geographic area on the plan for allocating ESG funds, including ESG-CV funds, and reporting on and evaluating the performance of ESG recipients and sub-recipients. Each CoC will be required to demonstrate how it is coordinating with ESG recipients.		data and ensuring local homelessness information is communicated and addressed in the Consolidated Plan updates.
c. Ensuring Families are not Separated. Ensure projects do not deny admission to or separate family members.	2	Demonstrate that the emergency shelters, transitional housing, and permanent housing projects within the CoC do not deny admission to or separate family members when they enter shelter or housing, including serving all family members together and in accordance with each family member's self-reported gender.
d. CoC Collaboration Related to Children and Youth. Demonstrate the CoC coordinates to provide education services to families with children between the ages of 0-5; and collaborates with education providers, local educational authorities, and school districts.	3	 Demonstrate there are written agreements in place between the CoC or its HUD-funded projects and educational supports and services for children ages 0-5, such as Public Pre-K, Head Start, Child Care (Child Care and Development Fund), and home visiting (including Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home and Visiting or MIECHV); Identify formal partnerships the CoC has with youth education providers, local educational authorities, and school districts; and Policies and procedures have been adopted to inform individuals and families who become homeless of their eligibility for educational services.
e. Addressing the Needs of Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual	5	CoCs must demonstrate:

1 1 10 10	<u> </u>	
Assault, and Stalking. Coordinate with victim service providers and operators of coordinated entry to address the unique needs for housing and services that prioritize safety that includes providing training for CoC recipients. This includes housing and services made available from the CoC Program, ESG Program, Department of Justice programs, and Department of Health and Human Services programs. The CoC must identify the current efforts to increase access to safe housing and services for survivors of domestic violence, adopting victim-centered practices that maximize client choice while maintaining safety and confidentiality. f. Addressing the Needs of LGBT Individuals. Demonstrates efforts to address the needs of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) individuals and their families experiencing homelessness.	5	 victim service providers are voting members of the CoC; annual training is provided to CoC providers and operators of Coordinated Entry that addresses best practices in serving survivors of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking; the CoC uses de-identified aggregate data from comparable databases as appropriate, to assess the specialized needs related to domestic violence and homelessness; safety, planning, and confidentiality protocols are included in the coordinated assessment; and how the CoC addressed possible increases in domestic violence calls for assistance due to requirements to stay at home, increased unemployment, etc. due to COVID-19. CoC must: demonstrate LGBT serving organizations or advocacy groups are included in the CoC membership; annually conduct training to providers about how to effectively implement the Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs
LGBT Individuals. Demonstrates efforts to address the needs of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) individuals and their families	2	 demonstrate LGBT serving organizations or advocacy groups are included in the CoC membership; annually conduct training to providers about how to effectively implement the Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity, including the Equal Access in Accordance with an Individual's Gender Identity in Community Planning and Development Programs; and have implemented a CoC-wide, antidiscrimination policy ensuring that
	10	LGBT individuals and families receive supportive services, shelter, and housing free from discrimination.
g. Public Housing Agencies.	10	CoCs must demonstrate how they work with

Housing Agencies (PHAs) located in their geographic area that resulted in admission preferences for households experiencing homelessness, including move-on strategy-which is a partnership between the CoC and one or more PHAs who have an admission preference for clients in PH-PSH who are able and want to move out of supportive housing with a rental subsidy.		 include PHA(s)-funded units in the CoC's coordinated entry; coordinate with the PHA(s) to apply for or implement funding provided for Housing Choice Vouchers dedicated to homelessness, including vouchers provided through the American Rescue Plan. prepare and submit a joint application for funding for individuals and families experiencing homelessness (e.g., applications for mainstream vouchers, Family Unification Program, other non-federal programs); established PHA(s) admission preferences for households experiencing homelessness which may include a preference for formerly homeless households residing in units of housing for persons experiencing homelessness (e.g., Move-on Program), or project-basing vouchers for households experiencing homelessness; and ensure at least 20 percent of new PHA admissions were homeless at admission.
h. Discharge Planning. Coordinates with and assists in state or local discharge planning efforts to ensure that those discharged do not become homeless.	3	CoCs must coordinate with state or local discharge planning efforts to ensure people exiting institutions (i.e., jails/prisons/hospitals, mental health facilities, or other institutional settings) are not released directly to the streets, emergency shelters, or other McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance programs. Works with discharge planning efforts to help identify affordable and integrated housing opportunities for individuals with disabilities transitioning from institutional settings, including providing reasonable accommodations that may be necessary for program participation, and ensuring housing options include

		housing that meets one's disability-related needs.
i. Housing First. Uses a Housing First approach. Any housing project application that indicates it will use a Housing First approach, that is awarded FY 2021 CoC Program funds will be required to operate as a Housing First project.	10	CoCs must demonstrate at least 75 percent of all project applications that include housing activities (e.g., permanent housing, safe haven) submitted under this NOFO are using the Housing First approach by providing low barrier projects that do not have service participation requirements or preconditions to entry and prioritize rapid placement and stabilization in permanent housing. This means the projects allow entry to program participants regardless of their income, current or past substance use, history of victimization (e.g., domestic violence, sexual assault, childhood abuse), and a criminal record—except restrictions imposed by federal, state, or local law or ordinance (e.g., restrictions on serving people who are listed on sex offender registries). Describe how the CoC regularly evaluates projects to ensure those that commit to following a Housing First approach are prioritizing rapid placement and stabilization
		in permanent housing and are not requiring service participation or preconditions for program participants.
<i>j. Street Outreach.</i> Has implemented outreach procedures to ensure all persons experiencing homelessness are aware of the housing and services providers within the CoC's geographic area.	3	CoCs must demonstrate: • the CoC's street outreach covers 100 percent of the CoC's geographic area; • outreach is conducted on a regular basis; and • outreach is tailored to reach those that are least likely to request assistance.
k. Criminalization. Implement specific strategies to prevent the criminalization of homelessness within the CoC's geographic area.	2	Indicate specific strategies to ensure homelessness is not criminalized such as engaging and educating local policymakers and law enforcement, implementing community plans, or engaging and educating businesses.
<i>l. Rapid Rehousing.</i> Demonstrate an increase, if	10	Demonstrate an increase in the number of rapid rehousing beds in the CoC geographic

needed, in the number of rapid		area as reported in HDX.
rehousing beds available as		area as reported in 11571.
recorded on the 2021 HIC data submitted to HUD.		OR
Submitted to 110D.		Clearly demonstrate the number of rapid rehousing beds in the CoC's geographic area sufficiently meets the need for this type of housing, which will be verified against information in the 2021 PIT and HIC data reported in HDX.
m. Mainstream Benefits and Other Assistance. The CoC provides information and training to CoC Programfunded projects to supplement CoC Program funds with resources from other public and private sources, including mainstream programs that assist program participants in applying for and receiving mainstream benefits or gaining employment. Additionally, during COVID-19, include how the CoC provides additional assistance to individuals and families experiencing homelessness.	4	 Systematically keeping program staff informed regarding mainstream resources available for program participants (e.g., Food Stamps, SSI, TANF, substance abuse programs, employment assistance) within the geographic area; how the CoC disseminates the availability of mainstream resources and other assistance information to projects and how often; how the CoC works with projects to collaborate with healthcare organizations to assist program participants with enrolling in health insurance; and it provides assistance with the effective utilization of state Medicaid programs, other health-related programs, voluntary supportive services, and other benefits.
n. Centralized or Coordinated Assessment System. The CoC has an effective Coordinated Entry System.	3	CoCs must demonstrate the centralized or coordinated entry system: • covers the entire CoC geographic area; • reaches people who are least likely to apply in the absence of special outreach; • prioritizes persons most in need of assistance and ensures they receive it in a timely manner; • engages with a broad range of organizations (e.g., local government,

		law enforcement, CDBG/HOME/ESG entitlement jurisdictions, affordable housing developers, early childhood programs, education authorities, mental health organizations.) that participate in the coordinated entry system; • made adjustments to account for rapid changes related to the onset and continuation of COVID-19; and • uses a standardized assessment process and assessment tools used in that process are attached to the CoC application (HUD is not opining on an individual assessment tool's compliance with applicable civil rights and fair housing laws).
o. Promoting Racial Equity in Homelessness. The CoC has assessed racial disparities in the provision or outcome of homeless assistance and taken the necessary steps to address such disparities.	7	 the CoC assessed within the past 3 years whether people of different races or ethnicities are less likely to receive homeless assistance or to receive a positive outcome from homeless assistance (1 point of 7); if racial or ethnic disparities are present, the CoC has identified the barriers faced by these populations that resulted in being less likely to receive assistance or receive a positive outcome (e.g., lack of outreach) and has taken or will take steps to eliminate the identified barriers faced by these populations (3 points of 7); and the CoC and homeless providers have identified and taken steps to improve racial equity in the provision and outcomes of assistance beyond just those areas identified in their assessment (3 points of 7).

		Any actions taken must be consistent with federal nondiscrimination requirements
p. Persons with Lived Experience. Persons with lived experience provide invaluable feedback related to housing and service needs for individuals and families experiencing homelessness.	1	CoCs must demonstrate persons with lived experience: • are included and provide input that is incorporated in the local planning process; • review and recommend revisions to local policies addressing homelessness related to coordinated entry, services, and housing; • participate in CoC committees, subcommittees, or workgroups; • are included in decision-making processes related to addressing homelessness; and • are included in the development, or revision, of the local competition rating factors.
		Persons with lived experience must have been homeless within the last 7 years or are currently program participants. Full points are available if there is more than one person engaged in local CoC planning and at least one person with lived experience came from an unsheltered situation.
q. Addressing COVID-19 in the CoC's Geographic Area. How CoCs addressed challenges resulting from the outbreak of COVID-19 affecting individuals and families experiencing homelessness.	20	 the CoC implemented safety protocols to address the immediate safety needs of individuals and families living in unsheltered situations or in congregate emergency shelters, transitional housing; the CoC improved readiness for future public health emergencies; the CoC coordinated with recipients of ESG Cares Act funds (ESG-CV) to distribute these funds to address safety measures, housing assistance, homelessness prevention, healthcare supplies, sanitary supplies; the CoC coordinated with mainstream health (e.g., local and state health agencies, hospitals) to decrease the

		spread of COVID-19, ensure safety measures were implemented (e.g., social distancing, hand washing/sanitizing, masks); and • the CoC communicated information to homeless service providers regarding safety measures, changing local restrictions, and vaccine implementation; and • the CoC identified eligible individuals and families experiencing homelessness for COVID-19 vaccination based on local protocol.
r. Promoting Volunteering and Community Service. The CoC actively promotes and supports volunteering and community engagement among persons experiencing homelessness.	2	Demonstrate that the CoC is taking steps to increase volunteer and community service among people experiencing homelessness, e.g., training provider organizations on volunteerism.
s. Section 3 Requirements for CoCs. CoCs submitting new project applications that include funding requests for new construction or rehabilitation activities must complete a series of questions that address the actions taken by project applicants to comply with Section 3 as described in the "To Receive Maximum Points" column. HUD will deduct 2 points from a CoC's overall score if the information provided is insufficient to meet the required criteria. If a CoC does not have new project applications that include new construction or rehabilitation, these criteria do not apply. Grants to Indian tribes are	-2	For project applicants that plan to use funding for construction or rehabilitation, HUD will deduct 2 points from the CoC's overall score, unless the CoC includes information that describes the actions that will be taken by project applicants that receive CoC funding to comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) (Section 3) and HUD's implementing rules at 24 CFR part 75 to provide employment and training opportunities for low- and very low-income persons (Section 3 residents), and to award contracts to businesses that are owned by or substantially employ those persons (Section 3 businesses). Self-certified Section 3 businesses in your locality may be found at www.hud.gov/sec3biz . This does not affect the applicants' existing responsibilities to provide training, employment, and other economic opportunities pursuant to Section 3 that result from their receipt of other HUD funding.

subject to Indian Preference		
under Section 7(b) of the		
Indian Self-Determination and		
Education Assistance Act (25		
U.S.C. 5307(b)) and are not		
subject to Section 3		
requirements.		

2. Project Capacity, Review, and Ranking. HUD will award up to 30 points to CoCs that demonstrate the existence of a coordinated, inclusive, and outcome-oriented community process for the solicitation, objective review, ranking, and selection of project applications, and a process by which renewal projects, except expiring YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement, are reviewed for performance and compliance with 24 CFR part 578. HUD may award maximum points for the Ranking and Selection Process in this section to CoCs with the project(s) that have been covered by a major disaster, as declared by the President under Title IV of the Robert T. Stafford Act, that occurred in the 12 months prior to the application deadline for the CoC Consolidated Application for FY 2021 funds. To receive consideration for such a major disaster, the Collaborative Applicant must notify HUD in writing before the application deadline and must include information about how the disaster affected the Collaborative Applicant's ability to meet the criteria in 2.g below. The notification must be sent to Norm Suchar, Director, Office of Special Needs Assistance Programs, at CoCDisaster@hud.gov.

8

a. Objective Criteria. Demonstrate the use of objective criteria to review project applications requesting CoC Program funding.

The CoC must demonstrate it publicly notified applicants and used local competition criteria based on objective criteria:

- Up to 2 of the 8 points for attaching the CoC's local scoring and rating criteria, including point values, that was publicly posted at the time the CoC notified the public it was accepting applications.
- Up to 2 of the 8 points based on the CoC's use of objective criteria (e.g., cost-effectiveness, type of population served, type of housing proposed; commitment to Housing First);
- Up to 2 of the 8 points where the use of the objective criteria accounted for at least 33 percent of the total points available for project applications;
- Up to 2 of the 8 points for use of more than one objective criterion.

CoCs may receive full points for this criterion if they only use system performance

b. Using System Performance Measures. Demonstrate the use of CoC Program required system performance measures to review project applications requesting CoC Program funding.	8	measures to meet the objective criteria for rating, selection, and ranking project applications provided it accounts for 33 percent of the total points available for project applications. The CoC must demonstrate it publicly notified applicants and used local competition criteria based on system performance measures: • Up to 2 of the 8 points for attaching the CoC's local scoring and rating criteria, including point values, that included outcome measures related to CoC system performance measures; • Up to 2 of the 8 points based on the CoC's use of measures related to system performance measures (e.g., returns to homelessness, first-time homeless, jobs and income growth) in its local review, selection, rating process; • Up to 2 of the 8 points where the use of the measures related to system performance accounted for at least 20 percent of the total points available for project applications; and • Up to 2 of the 8 points for use of more than one measure related to system performance criteria.
c. Use of a Comparable Database to Evaluate Domestic Violence Providers. Domestic Violence providers are required to use a comparable database in lieu of HMIS to collect the required Universal Data Elements and CoC Program system performance measures.	2	The CoC must demonstrate its public scoring information included the required use of a comparable database by domestic violence providers: • 1 of the 2 points for evaluating and scoring based on data generated from a comparable database; and • 1 of the 2 points where objective criteria were based on how the domestic violence project improved safety.
d. Rapid Return to Permanent Housing and Severity of Barriers Experienced by Program Participants. The	4	Up to 3 of the 4 points will be based on how the CoC's explanation of: • how the CoC collects and analyzes data regarding each project

CoC considers the severity of		that has successfully placed program
barriers when ranking project performance related to obtaining and maintaining permanent housing.		participants in permanent housing (1 point). • how the CoC considers the severity of barriers (e.g., substance use, history of domestic violence, criminal history), experienced by program participants preventing rapid placement in permanent housing or the ability to maintain permanent housing when rating, selecting, and ranking projects (up to 2 points). The CoC must include the severe barriers considered.
		Up to 1 of the 4 points for including information in the published scoring document stating how projects will be reviewed, scored, and selected based on: • the CoC's analysis of rapid return to permanent housing; and • how the CoC considered the severity of barriers when ranking projects.
e. Promote Racial Equity in the local CoC Process. Demonstrate how the CoC is promoting racial equity when reviewing applications.	1	 its efforts to obtain input and include persons of different races and ethnicities, particularly those overrepresented in the local homelessness population, when determining the rating factors used to review project applications; and it includes persons of different races and ethnicities, particularly those over-represented in the local homelessness population, in the review, selection, and ranking process; and projects are rated and ranked based on the degree to which their project has identified any barriers to participation (e.g., lack of outreach) faced by persons of different races and ethnicities, particularly those over-represented in the local homelessness population, and has

		taken or will take steps to eliminate the identified barriers.
f. Reallocating Projects. Demonstrate the ability to reallocate funding from lower performing projects to create new higher performing projects that is based on performance review of existing projects.	4	Demonstrate the CoC actively reviews the performance of existing CoC Programfunded projects and has a standard process for reallocating funding from lower performing projects to create new high performing projects. OR Have cumulatively reallocated at least 20 percent of the CoC's ARD between the FY 2016 and FY 2021 CoC Program Competitions.
g. Ranking and Selection Process. Demonstrate the use of an objective ranking and selection process for project applications that is publicly announced by the CoC.	3	 Post on their website, at least 2 days before the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition application submission deadline, all parts of the CoC Consolidated Application, including the CoC Application attachments and the Priority Listing, and notify community members and key stakeholders that the CoC Consolidated Application is available. CoCs that do not have a website must post this information to a partner website within the CoC (e.g., a city or county website); establish a deadline for project applications that is no later than 30 days before the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition application submission deadline of November 16, 2021; and notify project applicants, in writing outside of <i>e-snaps</i>, who submitted their project applications to the CoC by the CoC-established deadline, whether their project application(s) will be accepted and ranked, rejected, or reduced on the CoC Priority Listing no later than 15 days before the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition application submission

1								
		deadline, and where a project application is being rejected or reduced, the CoC must indicate the reason(s) for the rejection or reduction.						
3. Homeless Management Info	rmation Syste	em. HUD will award up to 11 points to CoCs						
that demonstrate the existence of a functioning HMIS, including a comparable database used by DV providers, that facilitates the collection of information on homelessness using residential and other homeless services and stores that data in an electronic format.								
a. Housing Inventory Count	1	Submitted 2021 HIC data in HDX by the						
(HIC). Submit complete HIC data in a timely manner.	•	submission deadline of 8:00 PM EDT on May 14, 2021.						
b. Comparable Database for DV Providers. Have in place, developing, or coordinating a comparable database with DV providers to collect required data elements for reporting deidentified information to the CoC.	2	Demonstrate the CoC and HMIS Lead have worked or are working with DV providers to: • ensure they have a comparable database that collects the same data elements required by an HMIS; and • ensure de-identified system performance measures are provided to the CoC and HMIS Lead.						
c. Bed Coverage. The bed coverage rate for the housing types within the CoC that includes emergency shelter, Safe Haven, transitional housing, rapid rehousing, and permanent supportive housing.	6	At least 85 percent of the beds in the CoC's geographic area are covered in HMIS and comparable databases. The bed coverage rate is the number of HMIS and comparable database participating beds divided by the number of year-round beds dedicated to homeless persons in the geographic area covered by the CoC. Beds funded by victim services providers must only be included in the calculation if they are covered by a comparable database that complies with HUD's HMIS requirements. To receive partial credit, if the bed coverage rate is below 85 percent, the CoC must provide alear steps on how it intends to						
		provide clear steps on how it intends to increase this percentage over the next 12 months. A CoC that merged between the FY 2020 CoC Program Registration process and the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process will have its bed coverage rate calculated based on the higher of:						

	1	Г
		the bed coverage rate reported by the combined, newly merged CoC in the 2020 or 2021 HIC;
		OR
		the highest bed coverage rate reported by one of the merged CoCs as constituted before the merger in the FY 2020 CoC Program Competition.
		To receive consideration as a merged CoC, the new CoC must contain all the geographic area of at least two CoCs that submitted separate applications in the FY 2019 CoC Program Competition and were awarded FY 2020 CoC Program funds under the CoC Program Non-competitive Notice.
d. Longitudinal Systems	2	LSA data was submitted to HUD by the
Analysis (LSA)		deadline of January 15, 2021 by 8:00 PM
Submission. Submit 2019 and		EST.
2020 LSA data in a complete		OR If an extension was requested and approved
and timely manner.		If an extension was requested and approved by HUD, the LSA data was submitted by the due date in the written approval.
4. Point-in-Time Count. HUD and submitting a sheltered and u		to 3 points to CoCs that commit to conducting Γ count in CY 2022.
a. PIT Count and Data Submission.	2	CoCs commit to conducting a sheltered and unsheltered PIT count in the last 10 days in January 2022.
b. Effectively Count Youth.	1	CoCs will commit to implementing an
Will commit to implementing		unsheltered youth PIT count in CY 2022 that
specific measures to identify		includes consultation and participation from
and count youth (18 to 24) in the CoC's 2022 PIT count.		youth serving organizations and youth with lived experience.
	will award un	to 23 points to CoCs that have CoC system-
wide performance related to redu	-	•
a. Reducing the Number of	1	Demonstrate a decrease of at least 5 percent
Homeless Individuals and		in the number of sheltered homeless
Families. Up to 1 point to		individuals and families in the most recent
CoCs that demonstrate an		PIT count compared to the 2019 PIT, if one

overall reduction of at least 5 percent in the number of individuals and families who experience homelessness.		was done in 2019, and to the 2018 PIT count if no 2019 PIT count was done, count as recorded in HDX, excluding emergency shelter beds added for a Presidentially declared disaster and recorded as such in HDX.
b. Reduction in the Number of First Time Homeless. Demonstrate how the CoC works to reduce the number of individuals and families who become homeless for the first time.	3	 Demonstrate a reduction in the number of first-time homeless as reported in HDX (1 of the 3 points); Identify the process by which risk factors are identified in its community for becoming homeless for the first time; Describe the strategies in place to address individuals and families at risk of becoming homeless; and Identify the organization or position that is responsible for overseeing the CoC strategy to reduce or end the number of people experiencing homelessness for the first time.
c. Length of Time Homeless. Reduce the length of time individuals and families remain homeless and describe how they will reduce the length of time individuals and families remain homeless in the future.	6	 Demonstrate a reduction in the length of time individuals and families remain homeless in the CoC's geographic area of at least 5 percent as reported in HDX (1 of 6 points); Describe the CoC's strategy to reduce the length of time individuals and families remain homeless; Describe how the CoC identifies and houses individuals and families with the longest length of time homeless; and Identify the organization or position that is responsible for overseeing the CoC's strategy to reduce the length of time individuals and families remain homeless.
d. Successful Permanent Housing Placement or Retention. Demonstrate an increase in the rate in which individuals and families move to permanent housing	5	Demonstrate an increase in the rate at which persons exit to permanent housing destinations (and retain permanent housing if they are currently in a permanent housing project) of at least 5 percent as

destinations or continue to reside in permanent housing projects and describe how the CoC will improve their rate of permanent housing placement.		reported in HDX (up to 1 of the 5 points); and • Describe the strategy the CoC is taking to improve permanent housing placement and retention.
e. Returns to Homelessness. Reduce the extent to which individuals and families leaving homelessness experience additional spells of homelessness and describe how the number of individuals and families who return to homelessness will be reduced in the community.	4	 Demonstrate a reduction in the rate at which persons who exited to permanent housing destinations experienced additional spells of homelessness of at least 5 percent over a 6- and 12-months period as reported in HDX (up to 1 of the 4 points): Describe the strategy that has been implemented to identify individuals and families who return to homelessness; Describe the strategy that will reduce returns to homelessness; and Identify the organization or position that is responsible for overseeing the CoC's strategy to reduce returns to homelessness.
f. Jobs and Income Growth. Increase program participants' incomes from employment and non- employment cash sources and describe specific strategies to assist program participants' incomes.	4	 Demonstrate an increase in income from employment and non-employment cash sources for persons served in CoC Program-funded projects as reported in HDX (0.5 of the 4 points); Describe the strategy that has been implemented to access employment and non-employment cash sources (0.5 of the 4 points); Describe how the CoC is working with mainstream employment organizations to help individuals and families experiencing homelessness increase their cash income; and Identify the organization or position that is responsible for overseeing the CoC's strategy to increase jobs and income growth from employment and non-employment cash sources,

		including mainstream employment organizations.
of this NOFO, HUD will award	up to 10 bonus	re Bonus Points. As stated in Section II.B.4 spoints to CoCs that submit new permanent tapplications demonstrating coordination with states. CoC's will receive full points by demonstrating that they have applied for at least one permanent supportive housing or rapid re-housing project that utilizes housing subsidies or subsidized housing units not funded through the CoC or ESG programs. The CoC must demonstrate that these housing units, which are not funded through the CoC or ESG programs, will: (i) in the case of a permanent supportive housing project, provide at least 25 percent of the units included in the project; or (ii) in the case of a rapid re-housing project, serve at least 25 percent of the program participants anticipated to be served by the project. CoCs must attach letters of commitment, contracts, or other formal written documents that demonstrate the number of subsidies or units being provided to support the project. CoCs can receive less than full points for demonstrating commitments less than the threshold described above.
b. Leveraging Healthcare Resources. These points are available for CoCs that apply for at least one permanent supportive housing or rapid re-	5	CoCs must demonstrate through a written commitment from a health care organization that the value of assistance being provided is at least:
housing project that utilizes healthcare resources to help		(i) in the case of a substance abuse treatment or recovery provider, it will provide access to

individuals and families experiencing homelessness. Sources of health care resources include: • Direct contributions from a public or private health insurance provider to the project, and • Provision of health care services by a private or public organization tailored to the program participants of the project. • Eligibility for the project must comply with HUD program and fair housing requirements. Eligibility criteria cannot be restricted by the eligibility requirements of the health care service provider.	treatment or recovery services for all program participants who quality and choose those services; or (ii) an amount that is equivalent to 25 percent of the funding being requested for the project will be covered by the healthcare organization. Acceptable forms of commitment are formal written agreements and must include: • value of the commitment, and • dates the healthcare resources will be provided. In-kind resources must be valued at the local rates consistent with the amount paid for services not supported by grant funds. CoCs can receive less than full points for demonstrating commitments less than the threshold described above.
up to a possible 15 bonus points to 2021 CoC Program Registration d	s stated in Section III.B.2.f of this NOFO, HUD will award o CoCs that merged in the period between FY 2020 and FY deadlines based on the following structure. The minimum CoC may receive is 5 with the maximum number of points

available at 15.

a. Merged CoCs between FY 2020 CoC Program Registration and FY 2021 CoC Program Registration.	5	Merged CoCs - all CoCs that merged will receive this minimum number of points.
b. CoC Application score in FY 2018 or FY 2019.	10	One or more of the merged CoCs had a CoC Application score of 140 points or below in the FY 2018 or FY 2019 CoC Program Competitions. HUD will review the FY 2018 and FY 2019 CoC Applications and award 10 bonus points if at least one of the merged CoCs meet this criterion.

C. Other Federal Statutes.

CoCs may request, in the FY 2021 CoC Application, up to 10 percent of funding for the fiscal year awarded under this NOFO be approved to serve homeless households with children and

youth defined as homeless under other federal statutes who are unstably housed (paragraph 3 of the definition of homeless found at 24 CFR 578.3). Approved CoCs are limited to using only up to 10 percent of the total amount awarded for each fiscal year appropriation to the CoC to serve this population and must determine which project(s) will be permitted to use some or all their funding for this purpose. The only project types that will be funded in this Competition to serve this population are Transitional Housing, Supportive Services Only, and the Joint TH and PH-RRH component projects. Non-competitive YHDP renewal and YHDP replacement projects and awards will not be included in the up to 10 percent of the CoC's funding approved to serve homeless youth defined under other federal statutes who are unstably housed.

To be approved to serve this population, CoCs making this request must demonstrate serving this population is of equal or greater priority, which means that it is equally or more cost effective in meeting the overall goals and objectives of the plan submitted under Section 427(b)(1)(B) of the Act, especially with respect to children and unaccompanied youth, than serving the homeless as defined under paragraphs (1), (2), and (4) of the definition of homeless in 24 CFR 578.3. CoCs must thoroughly describe how the requirements described in Section 427(b)(1)(F) of the Act will be met. CoCs must identify the specific project(s) that will use funding for this purpose (up to 10 percent of the CoC's total award) by submitting an attachment to the CoC Application in *e-snaps* that must include the following:

- 1. project name(s) as listed on the CoC Priority Listing; and
- 2. amount of funding in the project or per project that will be used for this purpose.

If HUD approves a CoC's request, the grant agreement will reflect the ability to serve this population. See 24 CFR 578.89 for more information about this limitation.

D. CoCs That Have Claimed the Same Geographic Area (Competing CoCs).

While there were no CoCs that claimed the same geographic area as determined by the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process; should two or more CoCs claim the same geographic codes associated with formula areas, HUD will use the competing CoC process at 24 CFR 578.35(d).

E. Other Program Requirements

Environmental Justice. HUD may consider environmental justice in evaluating applications. Under E.O.12898, each Federal agency is directed to identify and address disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects of its programs, policies, and activities on minority populations and low-income populations. <u>Click here</u> to view E.O. 12898.

Conflict of Interest of Consultants or Technical Experts Assisting HUD. Consultants and technical experts who assist HUD in rating and ranking applications for funding under published FY 2021 Program NOFOs are subject to 18 U.S.C. 208, the Federal criminal conflict-of-interest statute, and the Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the Executive Branch regulation published at 5 CFR 2635. Thus, consultants and technical experts who have assisted or plan to assist applicants with preparing applications for FY 2021 Program NOFOs may not serve on a selection panel and may not serve as a technical advisor to HUD. Anyone involved in rating and ranking FY 2021 Program NOFO applications, including departmental staff, experts, and consultants, must avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of such conflicts. These

individuals must also disclose to HUD's Office of General Counsel Ethics Law Division the following information, if applicable:

- a. How the selection or non-selection of any applicant under a FY Program NOFO will affect the individual's financial interests, as provided in 18 U.S.C. 208, or
- b. How the application process involves a party with whom the individual has a covered relationship under 5CFR 2635.502.

The consultant or technical expert assisting HUD must disclose this information before participating in any matter regarding a program NOFO. Applicants with questions regarding these provisions or concerning a conflict of interest should call the Office of General Counsel Ethics Law Division, at (202)708-3815 (this is not a toll-free number). The phone number above may also be reached by individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing, or with speech disabilities, through the Federal Relay Service's Text Telephone (TTY) service at 1-800-877-8339.

VIII. Project Review and Selection Process

A. Review, Rating, and Ranking. In addition to the selection criteria rating for the overall CoC Application, described in Section VII of this NOFO, a project eligibility and project quality threshold review will be conducted for project applicants and project applications. For new project applications, the review process will consider project applicant and subrecipient eligibility and capacity, project eligibility, and project quality as part of the threshold review, see Sections V.C.3.b. and c of this NOFO. The renewal project application threshold review will consider project applicant and subrecipient capacity and eligibility. The renewal project threshold reviews are explained in Section V.C.3.d of this NOFO. Section V of this NOFO covers eligible project applicants and project applications.

HUD may employ rating panels to review and rate all or part of the CoC Applications according to the rating criteria in Section VII of this NOFO.

- 1. Threshold Review. Project applicant and subrecipient eligibility, capacity, and quality. HUD will review project applications to determine whether project applicants and subrecipients meet the project eligibility in Section V.B.3.c, and whether the project applications meet the project eligibility and project quality thresholds detailed in Sections V.C.3.b and c of this NOFO. Renewal projects will be reviewed to determine if project applicants and subrecipients meet the project quality threshold requirements detailed in Section V.C.3.d of this NOFO. If HUD determines these standards are not met, the project application will be rejected, unless otherwise provided in this NOFO. If a new project application passes the project eligibility threshold review in Section V.C.3.b and receives enough points to pass the project quality threshold review in Section V.C.3.c of this NOFO but does not receive all the points available for its project type, HUD may place conditions on the grant award that must be satisfied before HUD will execute a grant agreement with the applicant for the project. If an applicant is unable to satisfy the condition(s) within the time frame specified by HUD, HUD reserves the right to withdraw the conditionally awarded funds.
- 2. Conditional Selection and Adjustments to Funding. HUD will conditionally select project applications for funding using the following process:

- a. As authorized under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2017 (Public Law 115-31; 131 Stat. 135) for fiscal year 2017 and hereafter, HUD will conditionally select a renewal grant that exceeds \$10 million that was originally awarded pursuant to the matter under the heading "Department of Housing and Urban Development–Permanent Supportive Housing" in chapter 6 of title III of the Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2008 (Public Law 110-252; 122 Stat. 2351).
- b. CoC planning projects. HUD will conditionally select all CoC planning projects that pass project eligibility and project quality threshold review.
- c. UFA Costs projects. HUD will conditionally select all UFA Costs projects that pass project eligibility and project quality threshold review and are submitted from Collaborative Applicants designated UFAs by HUD in the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process.
- d. YHDP Renewal and YHDP Replacement projects. HUD will conditionally select all renewal and replacement YHDP projects.
- e. DV Bonus. HUD will conditionally select new DV Bonus projects (including new DV Bonus projects that are part of an expansion) that pass project eligibility and project quality threshold in accordance with the criteria established in this NOFO (see Section II.B.11.e of this NOFO).
- f. Project Applications Fully in Tier 1. HUD will conditionally select new project applications created through reallocation or the CoC Bonus and renewal project applications, including renewals of previously funded DV Bonus projects, that are fully within Tier 1, that pass project eligibility, project quality, and if applicable, project renewal threshold review, based on CoC score, beginning with the highest scoring CoC to the lowest scoring CoC. As stated in Section II.B.11.a of this NOFO, if the available funding under this NOFO is reduced, a reduction will be made to all CoC's Tier 1 amount proportionately which would result in lower ranked Tier 1 project applications falling into Tier 2.
- g. Projects in Tier 2. HUD will conditionally select new project applications created through reallocation and the CoC Bonus and renewal project applications, including renewals of previously funded DV Bonus projects that pass project eligibility, project quality, and if applicable, project renewal threshold review in Tier 2 using the criteria in Section II.B.11.b of this NOFO. HUD will select projects in order of point value until there are no more funds available. In the case of a tie, HUD will fund the projects in the order of CoC application score. In case there is still a tie, HUD will select the project from the CoC that has the highest score on the rating factors described in Section II.B.11.b of this NOFO.
- h. Projects that are partially in Tier 1. If a project application straddles the Tier 1 and Tier 2 funding line, HUD will conditionally select the project application up to the amount of funding that falls within Tier 1. Using the CoC score and other factors

described in Section II.B.11 of this NOFO, HUD may then fund the Tier 2 portion of the project. If HUD does not fund the Tier 2 portion of the project, HUD may award the project at the reduced amount, provided the project is still feasible with the reduced funding (e.g., is able to continue serving homeless program participants effectively).

- **B.** Adjustments to Projects. HUD may adjust the selection of competitive projects as follows: *1. Geographic Diversity*. HUD has determined that geographic diversity is an appropriate consideration in selecting homeless assistance projects in the CoC Program Competition. HUD believes that geographic diversity can be achieved best by awarding grants to as many CoCs as possible. To this end, in instances where any of the 50 States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Northern Mariana Islands, the Virgin Islands, and American Samoa do not have at least one funded CoC, HUD reserves the right to fund eligible project(s) with the highest total score in the CoC.
- 2. Funding Diversity. HUD reserves the right to reduce the amount of a grant, if necessary, to ensure that no more than 10 percent of assistance made available under this NOFO will be awarded for projects located within any one unit of general local government or within the geographic area covered by any one CoC.
- 3. Tie-breaking Rules. In the case of a tie, HUD will fund the projects in the order of CoC Application score. In case there is still a tie, HUD will select the project from the CoC that has the highest score on the rating factors described in Section VII.B.1 of this NOFO. If HUD exercises a right it has reserved under this NOFO, that right will be exercised uniformly across all applications received in response to this NOFO.
- C. Corrections to Deficient Applications. Deficiency is information missing or omitted within a submitted application. Deficiencies typically involve missing documents, information on a form, or some other type of unsatisfied information requirement (e.g., an unsigned form, unchecked box, etc.). As described in Section III.A.3 of this NOFO, deficiencies may be either curable or non-curable. Correction of technical deficiencies must be received by HUD within 7 calendar days after notification is received by the applicant from HUD via email. The start of the cure period will be the date stamp on the email HUD sends to the authorized representative as noted in the Project Applicant Profile in *e-snaps*; therefore, it is critical the project applicant's authorized representative's information is accurate. Additionally, HUD reserves the right to respond to unanticipated system defects, ambiguities, and technical difficulties in application submissions in *e-snaps* through a flexible implementation of its authority to cure application deficiencies through written inquires seeking clarification and additional information (also known as callbacks). Upon proper publication in the Federal Register, HUD reserves the right to extend the Competition deadline for good cause.

IX. Award Administration Information

A. Award Notices. Following the evaluation process, HUD will notify successful applicants of their selection for funding. HUD will also notify all other applicants, whose applications were received by the deadline, but have not been chosen for award. Award information will be sent by email to the authorized representative in item 8F of the SF-424 and to the person listed as authorized representative in item 21 of the SF-424.

Conditional Selection. Action on Conditionally Selected Application. HUD will notify conditionally selected applicants in writing. HUD may subsequently request conditionally selected applicants to submit additional project information—which may include documentation to show the project is financially feasible; documentation of firm commitments for match; documentation showing site control; information necessary for HUD to perform an environmental review, where HUD determines to do so in accordance with 24 CFR 58.11(d); a copy of the organization's Code of Conduct; and such other documentation as specified by HUD in writing—that confirms or clarifies information provided in the application. HUD will require the submission of the additional project information no later than 30 days after the date of the letter, except as otherwise provided in 24 CFR 578.21(c). If an applicant is unable to meet any conditions for the award within the specified time frame, HUD reserves the right not to award funds to the applicant and add those funds to the funds available for the next competition.

Adjustments to Funding. To ensure the fair distribution of funds and enable the purposes or requirements of a specific program to be met, HUD reserves the right to fund less than the amount requested in an application.

- a. HUD will fund no portion of an application that:
- (1) Is not eligible for funding under applicable statutory or regulatory requirements;
- (2) Does not meet the requirements of this notice; or
- (3) Duplicates other funded programs or activities from prior year awards or other selected applicants.
- b. If, after announcement of awards made under the current NOFO, additional funds become available either through the current appropriations, a supplemental appropriation, other appropriations or recapture of funds, HUD may use the additional funds to provide additional funding to an applicant awarded less than the requested amount of funds to make the full award, and/or to fund additional applicants that were eligible to receive an award but for which there were no funds available.

Funding Errors. If HUD commits an error that when corrected would cause selection of an applicant during the funding round of a Program NOFO, HUD may select that applicant for funding, subject to the availability of funds.

B. Administrative, National and Department Policy Requirements for HUD recipients

For this NOFO, the following <u>Administrative</u>, <u>National and Department Policy Requirements</u> and <u>Terms for HUD Financial Assistance Awards</u> apply. (Select the linked text to read the detailed description of each applicable requirement).

- 1. Compliance with Non-discrimination and Related Requirements.
- Unless otherwise specified, these non-discrimination and equal opportunity authorities and other requirements apply to all NOFAs. Please read the following requirements carefully as the requirements are different among HUD's programs.
- Compliance with Fair Housing and Civil Rights Laws, Which Encompass the Fair Housing Act and Related Authorities (cf. 24 CFR 5.105(a)).
- See 24 CFR 578.93(c) for specific Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing requirements that apply to the CoC program.
 - Economic Opportunities for Low-and Very Low-income Persons (Section 3).
 - Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).
 - Accessible Technology.

- 2. Equal Access to Housing Regardless of Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity Requirements.
- 3. Ensuring the Participation of Small Disadvantaged Business, and Women-Owned Business.
- 4. Equal Participation of Faith-Based Organizations in HUD Programs and Activities.
- 5. Uniform Relocation Act Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Requirements.
- 6. Participation in HUD-Sponsored Program Evaluation.
- 7. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.
- 8. Drug-Free Workplace.
- 9. Safeguarding Resident/Client Files.
- 10. Compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Pub. L. 100, 282) (Transparence Act), as a great of
- L.109-282) (Transparency Act), as amended.
- 11. Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities.
- 12. Violence Against Women Act.
- 13. Conducting Business in Accordance with Ethical Standards/Code of Conduct.
- 14. Environmental Requirements, which include compliance with environmental justice requirements under Executive Order 12898.

C. Reporting.

HUD requires recipients to submit performance and financial reports under OMB guidance and program instructions.

- **1. Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters**. Applicants should be aware that if the total Federal share of their Federal award includes more than \$500,000 over the period of performance, you may be subject to post award reporting requirements reflected in <u>Appendix XII to Part 200</u>-Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters.
- **2. Race, Ethnicity and Other Data Reporting.** HUD requires recipients that provide HUD-funded program benefits to individuals or families to report data on the race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, and family characteristics of persons and households who are applicants for, participants in, or beneficiaries or potential beneficiaries of HUD programs in order to carry out the Department's responsibilities under the Fair Housing Act, Executive Order 11063, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Section 562 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1987.
- **3. Performance Reporting.** All HUD funded programs, including this program, require recipients to submit, not less than annually, a report documenting achievement of outcomes under the purpose of the program and the work plan in the award agreement.
- **4.** Compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA) (Pub. L. 109-282) (Transparency Act) as amended. FFATA requires information on Federal awards be made available to the public via a single, searchable website, which is www.USASpending.gov. Accordingly, each award HUD makes under this NOFO will be subject to the requirements provided by the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170, "REPORTING SUBAWARD AND EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION INFORMATION," unless the Federal funding for the award (including funding that may be added through amendments) is not expected to equal or exceed \$30,000. Requirements under this Award Term include filing subaward information in the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Sub-award Reporting System (FSRS.gov) by the end of the month following the

month in which the recipient awards any sub-grant equal to or greater than \$30,000. Each applicant under this NOFO must have the necessary processes and systems in place to comply with this Award Term, in the event that they receive an award, unless an exception applies under 2 CFR 170.110.

D. Debriefing. For a period of at least 120 days, beginning 30 days after the final public announcement of awards under this NOFO, HUD will provide a debriefing related to their application to requesting Collaborative Applicants. A request for debriefing must be made in writing or by email by the Primary Contact listed in the Collaborative Applicant Profile in esnaps or by his or her successor in office and be submitted to the POC in Section XI.C.3. Information provided during a debriefing may include the final score the Collaborative Applicant received for each rating factor, final evaluator comments for each rating factor, and the final assessment indicating the basis upon which funding was approved or denied for the CoC.

E. Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

- 1. Administrative and Other Program Requirements. Federal agencies are required to measure the performance of their programs. HUD captures this information not only from monitoring visits and APRs, but also on the data gathered in annual Competitions. HUD's homeless assistance programs are being measured in FY 2021 by the objective to "end chronic homelessness and to move homeless individuals and families to permanent housing," measures based on system performance, and the ability of CoCs that have the capacity to reallocate funds from lower performing projects to higher performing projects.
- 2. Timeliness Standards. All conditional funds awarded in the FY 2021 CoC Program Competition must be obligated by HUD by September 30, 2022 for FY 2020 funds and September 30, 2023 for FY 2021 funds. Obligated funds remain available for expenditure until September 30, 2027 for FY 2020 funds and September 30, 2028 for FY 2021 funds. However, in no case will HUD authorize expenditures or drawdown of FY 2020 DV Bonus funds or FY 2021 CoC Program funds beyond the dates HUD's FY 2020 DV Bonus and FY 2021 CoC Program accounts must be closed under applicable law or for administrative purposes (approximately September 15, 2027 (FY 2020 DV Bonus) and September 15, 2028 (FY 2021 CoC Program). HUD reserves the right to require an earlier expenditure deadline under a grant agreement. The project applicant is expected to initiate the approved projects promptly in accordance with the requirements of this section of this NOFO. Grant terms, and associated grant operations, may not extend beyond the availability of funds. Project applicants must plan accordingly and only submit project applications that can start operations in a timely manner with sufficient time to complete the post award process within the awarded grant term. Additionally, HUD will take action if the recipient fails to satisfy the timeliness standards found in 24 CFR 578.85.

3. Reporting

a. In accordance with program regulations at 24 CFR 578.103, project recipients must maintain records within the time frame required, make any reports, including those pertaining to race, ethnicity, gender, and disability status that HUD may require. Project recipients may report the data as part of their APR submission to HUD. Also, project recipients who expend \$750,000 or more in 1 year in federal awards must have a single

or program-specific audit for that year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.

- b. Section 3 Reporting Regulations. Recipients are required to report their Section 3 activities per 24 CFR 75.25 if funds were awarded for housing rehabilitation, housing construction, and other public constructions. See <u>HUD's Section</u>
 <u>3https://www.hud.gov/section3</u> website for additional information including annual reporting requirements.
- c. Award notices may also include requirements for sub-award reporting in compliance with the requirements of the Federal Financial Assistance Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Pub. L. 109-282) (FFATA) and Section 872 of the Duncan Hunter National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2009 (Pub. L. 110-417), referred to as "Section 872." See the General Section for further information.

X. Appeals

A. Description. 24 CFR 578.35 provides the appeal process options. Sections 578.35(b)(3), (b)(4), (c)(1), and (d)(2) authorize HUD to establish requirements for the form and manner of submissions for appeals by Solo Applicants, applicants with denied or decreased funding, and from competing CoCs. For HUD to consider an appeal under 24 CFR 578.35(b) or (c), the solo project applicant must follow the applicable application process set forth in this NOFO. This NOFO also provides guidance to CoCs and applicants regarding appeals of a jurisdiction's refusal to sign the Consolidated Plan certification for a project under 24 CFR 578.35(c).

Additionally, HUD is clarifying the impact that Solo Applicant appeals will have on HUD signing grant agreements for FY 2021 funds awarded under this NOFO. If HUD receives one or more Solo Applicant appeals from a CoC for FY 2021 funds, HUD will determine the amount of funding the Solo Applicant(s) have requested which may delay signing grant agreements for the awarded project(s) listed at the bottom of the CoC's Priority Listing that has requested funding for FY 2021 equal to double the amount requested by the Solo Applicant(s). Refer to the Solo Applicant appeal process in Section X.C of this NOFO for additional information about the Solo Application appeal process.

Finally, for the purposes of the appeals identified in this NOFO where 24 CFR 578.35 requires that all evidence be sent to the CoC and that the CoC respond to evidence, this means that correspondence to the CoC should be addressed to the CoC-designated Collaborative Applicant and all correspondence to HUD from the CoC should be addressed from the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant. If the CoC has authorized another entity other than the Collaborative Applicant to respond to the appeals identified in this NOFO on its behalf, it should notify HUD by sending an email to snapsappeals@hud.gov.

- **B.** Types of Appeals. The provision at 24 CFR part 578 set forth the following types of appeals:
 - 1. Solo Applicants. A process for eligible project applicants that attempted to participate in their CoC planning process and believe they were denied the right to participate in a reasonable manner.
 - 2. Denied or Decreased Funding. A process for eligible applicants that are denied funds by

HUD or that requested more funds than HUD awarded to them.

- 3. Consolidated Plan Certification. A process for eligible applicants whose jurisdiction refused to provide a Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan (form HUD-2990).
- 4. Competing CoCs. A process when more than one CoC claims the same geographic area for eligible applicants of lower-scoring CoCs, to appeal to HUD's decision to fund the competing CoC. While there were no CoCs that claimed the same geographic area as determined by the FY 2021 CoC Program Registration process; should two or more CoCs claim the same geographic codes associated with formula areas, HUD will use the competing CoC process at 24 CFR 578.35(d).
- **C. Solo Applicant.** Per the Act, "A solo applicant may submit an application to the Secretary for a grant under subsection (a) and be awarded such grant on the same basis as such grants are awarded to other applicants based on the criteria described in section 427, but only if the Secretary determines that the solo applicant has attempted to participate in the continuum of care process but was not permitted to participate in a reasonable manner. The Secretary may award such grants directly to such applicants in a manner determined to be appropriate by the Secretary."

To apply as a solo applicant, the project applicant must submit a Solo Applicant Project Application in *e-snaps* by the application submission deadline of November 16, 2021 at 8:00 PM EST. Additionally, the solo applicant, Collaborative Applicant, and HUD must take the following steps (See 24 CFR 578.35 for more information):

- 1. Written Notice of Intent to Appeal. The solo applicant must submit a written notice of intent to appeal, with a copy to the CoC, with their funding application.
- 2. No later than 30 days after the date that HUD announces the awards, the solo applicant shall submit in writing, with a copy to the Collaborative Applicant, all relevant evidence supporting its claim. The submission shall be emailed to snapsappeals@hud.gov.
- 3. The CoC shall have 30 days from the date of its receipt of the solo applicant's evidence to respond to HUD in writing, with a copy to the solo applicant. The submission shall be emailed to snapsappeals@hud.gov.
- 4. HUD will notify the solo applicant and the CoC of its decision within 60 days of receipt of the CoC's response.
- 5. If HUD finds that the solo applicant was not permitted to participate in the Continuum of Care planning process in a reasonable manner, then HUD may award a grant to the solo applicant when funds next become available and may direct the Continuum of Care to take remedial steps to ensure reasonable participation in the future. HUD may also reduce the award to the Continuum's applicant(s).
- **D. Denied or Decreased Funding.** Eligible applicants, including project applicants and Collaborative Applicants, that submitted an application to HUD in response to this NOFO, that were either not awarded funds by HUD, or that requested more funds than HUD awarded, may appeal HUD's decision within 45 days after the final funding announcement. Only those applicants with projects that were ranked within the CoC's maximum amount available will be considered for funding or additional funding. Collaborative Applicants that submitted CoC planning, and if applicable, UFA Costs project applications can appeal decreased funding if they can demonstrate HUD decreased the submitted project application's funding request to less than

3 percent of the CoC's FPRN or \$1,250,000; whichever is less. To appeal HUD's decision, the applicant must submit a written appeal to HUD, with a copy to the authorized representative from the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant. The written appeal must include evidence demonstrating HUD error and follow the instructions in this section.

The applicant must submit its written appeal by email to <u>snapsappeals@hud.gov</u>, from the organization's email address on the organization's letterhead and signed by the authorized representative.

- 1. Denied Funding. To appeal HUD's decision, the applicant must submit a written appeal to HUD using the process outlined in Section X.F of this NOFO within 45 days of the date of the funding announcement of the conditional awards from HUD, with a copy to the authorized representative from the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant. Projects, including projects for CoC planning funds and Unified Funding Agency (UFA) costs, could have been rejected by HUD because:
 - (1) the individual project application failed to meet project eligibility, project quality, and project renewal thresholds set forth in this NOFO;
 - (2) the individual project application met project eligibility, project quality, and project renewal thresholds set forth in this NOFO, but was ranked in a position where a portion of the grant funds was outside the CoC's maximum award amount, and after HUD reduced its funding to fit within the CoC's maximum award amount, HUD determined that the project was no longer feasible; or
 - (3) HUD did not have sufficient funding to fund all eligible projects ranked within the CoC's maximum award amount.
- b. For applicants that were fully denied funding for a grant, the applicant must provide evidence that demonstrates HUD error in not awarding the grant. Documentation submitted by the applicant must include:
 - (1) documentation that the project was ranked within the maximum award amount available to the CoC;
 - (2) evidence from the project application supporting the applicant's claim that the project application met project eligibility, project quality, and project renewal thresholds set forth in this NOFO; and
 - (3) evidence that the applicant believes HUD failed to follow its selection priorities set forth in this NOFO which resulted in the project not being funded (e.g., selecting a lower-scored project within the CoC or a similar project from another CoC).
- c. For applicants that were denied funding due to the individual project's funding being decreased to such a level that the project was no longer feasible, documentation submitted by the applicant must include:
 - (1) documentation that the project was ranked within the maximum award amount available to the CoC;
 - (2) evidence from the project application supporting the applicant's claim that the project application met project eligibility and project quality thresholds set forth in this NOFO;
 - (3) evidence that the applicant believes HUD failed to follow its selection priorities set forth in this NOFO which resulted in the project not being funded (e.g., selecting a

- lower-scored project within the CoC or a similar project from another CoC); and (4) the evidence in Section I.H of this NOFO as well as evidence for decreased funding in Section X.D.2 of this NOFO.
- d. For CoCs that were denied funding due to the score of the CoC Application or the score of the project application not being high enough to result in the funding of project(s) within the CoC, and the lower score for one or both application types was the result of HUD error, the CoC may appeal the CoC or project application score and request funding for affected projects. Documentation submitted by the Collaborative Applicant on behalf of the CoC must include evidence of HUD error when calculating the CoC Application or project application score.

Note: HUD can only consider information submitted with the CoC Application. HUD will not consider additional information in support of the CoC Application.

- 2. Decreased Funding. To appeal HUD's decision, the applicant must submit a written appeal to HUD using the process outlined in Section X.F of this NOFO within 45 days of the date of the final funding announcement of the conditional awards from HUD, with a copy to the authorized representative of the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant. Documentation submitted by the applicant must include evidence of the HUD error the applicant believes was made.
- 3. HUD Decision and Notification of Decision. Where HUD determines that HUD error occurred, and the applicant should have been awarded additional funding, HUD will provide funding from the next available funds and make necessary adjustments by amending the award. HUD will reverse a decision only when the applicant can show that HUD error caused the denial or decrease.
- **E. Consolidated Plan Certification.** An applicant may appeal to HUD a jurisdiction's refusal to provide a certification of consistency with the Consolidated Plan. The appeals process is as follows:
 - 1. Written Appeal. With the project application that is submitted by the application deadline, the applicant must submit a written appeal. Project applicants may submit its appeal in *e-snaps* with its project application. When submitted with the project application in *e-snaps*, the applicant must also email a copy of this appeal to the jurisdiction that denied the Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan and should send a copy to the authorized representative from the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant, unless it is the Collaborative Applicant that is filing the appeal. Otherwise, the project applicant or Collaborative Applicant may submit the appeal to HUD using one of the methods in Section X.F of this NOFO. The written appeal must include the following information:
 - a. a copy of the applicant's request to the jurisdiction for the Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan;
 - b. a copy of the jurisdiction's response stating the reasons for denial, including the reasons the proposed project is not consistent with the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan in accordance with 24 CFR 91.510(c); and
 - c. a statement of the reasons why the applicant believes its project is consistent with the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan.

The appeal may include additional information the applicant believes supports its appeal, including:

- (1) any additional communication between the applicant and the jurisdiction regarding the request for certification of consistency; and
- (2) documentation that identifies to whom within the jurisdiction the evidence was sent and the date on which it was sent.
- 2. Jurisdiction Response. The jurisdiction will have 10 days after the receipt of the applicant's written appeal to submit a written response to HUD. The response must be sent by email to snapsappeals@hud.gov on the organization's letterhead, with a copy to the project applicant and the authorized representative of the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant. The response must include the following information:
 - a. an explanation of the reasons originally given for refusing to provide the Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan; and
 - b. written rebuttal to any claims made by the applicant in the written appeal.
- 3. HUD Decision and Notification of Decision.
 - a. HUD will review the submissions and will provide written notification, by email, of its decision to the applicant and the jurisdiction, with a copy to the authorized representative from the CoC's designated Collaborative Applicant within 45 days of the date of the receipt of the jurisdiction's response. In making its decision, HUD will consider whether the applicant submitted the request to the appropriate certifying jurisdiction and the reasonableness of the jurisdiction's refusal to provide the certificate.
 - b. If HUD finds that the certifying jurisdiction's refusal to provide a certification of consistency with the Consolidated Plan was reasonable, then HUD will automatically reject the project application. If HUD finds that the certifying jurisdiction's refusal to provide a certification of consistency with the Consolidated Plan was not reasonable, then HUD will consider the project application for funding in the respective FY CoC Program Competition in accordance with the review standards set forth in this NOFO. c. If the jurisdiction failed to provide written reasons for refusal, including the reasons why the project is not consistent with the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan in its initial response to the applicant's request for a certification, HUD will find for the applicant
 - without further inquiry or response from the political jurisdiction.
 d. HUD will provide written notification of its decision within 45 days of the date of HUD's receipt of the jurisdiction's response. Where the jurisdiction failed to provide a written response, HUD will provide written notification of its decision within 55 days of the date of HUD's receipt of the project applicant's response.

F. Appeals Submission.

- 1. Submission of Appeals by Email. Appeals must be submitted via email to snapsappeals@hud.gov. The subject line of your email must include the CoC Number, "Appeal Notice," and type of appeal, i.e., Participation, HUD Error, or Consolidated Plan Certification. A sample email Subject Line is, Subject: XX-500 Appeal Notice—Consolidated Plan Certification.
- 2. HUD Response. HUD will respond to all appeals via email. HUD will not consider

any requests to reconsider funding for FY 2021 funds except for those appeals outlined in this NOFO.

XI. Agency Contacts

- **A. For Further Information**. Individuals who are hearing- or speech-impaired should use the Information Relay Services at 1-800-877-8339 (these are toll-free numbers). Recipients and individuals can use the locator on HUD's website to find contact information for the local HUD CPD Field Office serving the CoC's geographic area.
- **B. For Technical Assistance.** HUD will make appropriate resources available for technical assistance related to *e-snaps*, the electronic CoC program application and grants management system. Local HUD CPD Field Office staff will also be available to help citizens identify organizations in the community that are involved in developing the CoC system. All of HUD's responses to *e-snaps* technical assistance and other questions received will be made publicly available for review by any applicant or potential applicant. HUD staff and HUD contractors are prohibited from providing CoCs, Collaborative Applicants, and project applicants with guidance that will result in a competitive advantage for any CoC or project application. Following conditional selection of applications, HUD staff will be available to assist conditionally awarded applicants in clarifying or confirming information that is a prerequisite to the offer of a grant agreement by HUD. However, between the application deadline and the announcement of conditional selections, HUD is prohibited from and will not accept any information that would improve the substantive quality of a CoC's application pertinent to HUD's funding decision.
- **C. General Clarification.** HUD staff will be available to provide general clarification on the content of this NOFO; however, HUD staff are prohibited from assisting any applicant in preparing the application(s) in *e-snaps*.
 - 1. Local HUD Community Planning Development (CPD) Office. Questions regarding specific program requirements should be directed to the local HUD CPD field office, a directory of which can be found at https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/field_policy_mgt/localoffices.
 - 2. Training and Resources. Collaborative Applicants and project applicants that need assistance completing the applications in *e-snaps* or understanding the program requirements under the CoC Program may access the Rule, training materials, and program resources via https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc.
 - 3. Questions. CoCs, Collaborative Applicants, and project applicants that require information and technical support concerning this NOFO and the application in *e-snaps* may submit an inquiry to CoCNOFA@hud.gov. Starting 2 days prior to the application deadline for FY 2021 funds, this email address will respond only to emergency technical support questions up to the deadline of 8:00 PM EST. Applicants experiencing technical difficulty should contact CoCNOFA@hud.gov immediately for assistance and document their attempts to obtain assistance

XII. Other Information

National Environmental Policy Act. A Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) with respect to the environment has been made for this notice, in accordance with HUD regulations at 24

CFR part 50 that implement section 102(2)(C) of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. 4332(2)(C)).

The Finding of No Significant Impact FONSI is made available with the posting of this NOFO at HUD's Funding Opportunities Page web page.

Web Resources.

- Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (See 24 CFR 578.93(c) for specific Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing requirements that apply to the CoC program.)
- Code of Conduct list
- CFDA
- Dun & Bradstreet
- Equal Participation of Faith-Based Organizations
- Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System
- FFATA Subaward Reporting System
- Grants.gov
- HBCUs
- Healthy Homes Strategic Plan
- Healthy Housing Reference Manual
- HUD's Strategic Plan
- **HUD Grants**
- Limited English Proficiency
- NOFO Webcasts
- Opportunity Zone
- Procurement of Recovered Materials
- Promise Zones
- Section 3 Business Registry
- State Point of Contact List
- System for Award Management (SAM)
- <u>Uniform Relocation Act Real Property Acquisition and Relocation</u> RequirementsUSA Spending



Del Seymour -Co-Chair

James Loyce -Co-Chair

Kelley Cutler

Erick Brown

Brenda Jewett

Andrea Evans

Sophia Isom

Charles Minor, Staff

SAN FRANCISCO LOCAL HOMELESSNESS COORDINATING BOARD

Wednesday, October 27, 2021

To whom it may concern,

The Local Homeless Coordinating Board (LHCB) is pleased to submit this letter in support of the 2021 Continuum of Care (CoC) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Priority Listing. The CoC Priority Listing ranks all project applications in order of priority based on HUD CoC NOFO Priorities that were previously approved by the LHCB.

On Tuesday, October 25, 2021 The LHCB unanimously approved the Priority Listing for inclusion into the CoC CA-501 NOFO Collaborative Application. The 2021 CoC NOFO Application total is \$57,830,598 with a contingency for HUD Fair Market Rent (FMR) adjustments of \$1,469,402 for a total not to exceed amount of \$59,300,000.

The LHCB is a nine-member advisory body that is appointed by the Board of Supervisors, Mayor, and the Controller. The LHCB is the governing body for the San Francisco Continuum of Care (CoC CA-501). The LHCB serves as the lead independent body for coordinating homeless policy, McKinney funding, and San Francisco's Continuum of Care implementation.

In partnership with HSH, The LHCB works to ensure a unified homeless strategy that is supported by the Mayor, the Board of Supervisors, City departments, nonprofit agencies, people who are homeless or formerly homeless, and the community at large.

Operating within a "Housing First" model, The LHCB envisions developing a continuum of services whose ultimate goal is to prevent and eradicate homelessness in the City and County of San Francisco. All efforts of The LHCB are aimed at permanent solutions, and the range of services is designed to meet the unique and complex needs of individuals who are threatened with or currently experiencing homelessness.

Sincerely,

James Loyce and Del Seymour

Co-Chairs San Francisco Local Homelessness Coordinating Board

Form 126 - Grant Information Form - HSH Application for FY21-22 CoC



									SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
Program	Agency Name	Agency Address	Phone	2021-2022 Funding	Project Description	Chief Executive Officer (o	r Chief Financial Officer	Chief Operating Officer	Board Members
rd Street Homeless Youth	and Clinic	1728 Bancroft Ave, San Francisco, CA 94124	415-822-1707	\$578,904.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Joi Jackson-Morgan	Jackie Relyea	Joi-Jackson Morgan	Michelle Magee Lyslynn Lacoste Jackkie Relyea Laura Fallon Savitha Moorthy Misty Patton Herschel Lelaind Glen Kunene Vanessa Eng
AWS Rapid Rehousing	Asian Women's Shelter	3543 18th Street #19 San Francisco CA 94110	415-751-0880	\$1,477,590.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Orchid Pusey	Kit Quan	Huong Le	Christine Wang Noz Nozawa Jennifer Tapken Nancy Wan Aparna Ramakrishnan Edit Hong
				\$283,523.00					
Hazel Betsey (Consolidated)	Bernal Heights Neighborhood Corporation	515 Cortland Ave San Francisco CA 94110	415-206-2140		Permanent Supportive Housing	Gina Dacus	Renee Eshun	Maria Castro Noboa	Ulysses Espinosa Alan Fisher Laurel Muniz Buck Bagot Cynthia Cevallos Esperanza Arab Bobby Cocharn Carren Shagley Barbara Bagot
		1555 39th Avenue							
Rita da Cascia-Positive MATCH	Catholic Charities San Francisco	San Francisco 94122	415-972-1200	\$188,775.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Jilma Meneses, JD	Cheryl Ewers	Ellen Hammerle	Salvatore Cordileone
Treasure Island	Catholic Charities San			\$2,835,560.00	Permanent Supportive				La a Danasia
(Consolidated) CCCYO Scattered Sites	Francisco Catholic Charities San			\$1,740,164.00	Housing Permanent Supportive				Joe Boerio Theodore Borromeo
	Francisco				Housing				George B. Sundby Jilma Meneses, JD Philip Clark Joe Boerio Dr. Diana I. Bojorquez Martha Brigham Gregory A. Bullian Susan Frimel Timothy Connors Adriana Dahik Kathleen A. Grogan, CP David R. Hultman Lisa Ikeda Jerilyn Gelt Steven Kane Elizabeth Ida Keith Sister Maureen McIner O.P. Jay Paul Leupp Lori P. Mirek Simon S. Manning Reverend Daniel Nasciamento

Louis Reynaud Jack Pohlman

Reverened Raymund Reyes
Jim Sangiacomo
Patrick Woody

									Patrick Woody
ary Helen Rogers Senior nter	Development Corporation	663 Clay Street San Francisco CA 94111	415-929-5258	\$359,287.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Malcom Yeung	Cindy Louie	Tammy Hung	Phil Chin
6 Shotwell	Chinatown Community Development Corporation			\$429,442.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Dion Jay Brookter Fady Zoubi Claudine Cheng Jane Chin Terence Cordero Cathy Craig Jim Falger Ben Golvin Clayton Jew Julie Leadbetter Olson Lee Winston Lee Barbara Lin Wendell Lin Dr. James McCray Irma Poe Lindsey Quock Nils Rosenquest Guy Hollins Nigel Tse Susie Wong Jade Wu Mary Zhang Aron Lim
		20 Jones Street, Suite		\$158,804.00					
uois Residence	Partnership (Homerise) Community Housing	200 San Francisco, CA 94102	415-852-5300	\$1,043,454.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Rick Aubry	Jenny Lo	Christy Saxton	Gregg Miller
	Partnership (Homerise) Community Housing Partnership (Homerise)			\$1,611,450.00					John Fisher Sheila Aharoni Chris Amos Steve Bowdry Devra Edelman Mark Eshman Sam Lew Lauren Maddock Julia Reed Neil Sims
mpass RRH insolidated)	Compass Family Services	37 Grove Street San Francisco CA 94102	415-644-0504	\$980,317.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Erica Kisch	Carrie Hook	Easter Calvit	Chad Dyer Adam Tait Chad Dyer Tim Moffet Dalana Brand Alison Engel Robert Daoro Steven Dinkelspiel Dennis Gibbons Doug Goelz Meghan Harris Valerie Garcia Houts Robert Daoro Beth Roy Jenkyn Michael McCarthy

									Anne Parish Laurel Severt Adam Tait Stephanie Zeppa Katie Traina
El Dorado/Midori	Conard	1385 Mission St #200, San Francisco, CA 94103	415-864-7833	\$393,206.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Anne Quintance	Robyn Neither-Gold	Liliana Suarez	Eddie Rodriguez
Lyric	Conard			\$1,266,998.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Ali Raheem Joel Outten Zahid Jafry Ben Moerman Wendy Yu Savita Raina Sophie Wu
	Department of			\$225,000.00					
	Homelessness and	1360 Mission Street San	628-652-7700	7223,000.00					
Youth Coordinated Entry	Supportive Housing	Francisco CA 94103			Support Services	Jeff Kositsky	Gigi Whitley	Kerry Abbott	n\a
	Department of			\$993,797.00					
Integrated Services	Homelessness and				Permanent Supportive				•
Network	Supportive Housing			¢1 200 656 00	Housing				n\a
Direct Access to Housing:	Department of Homelessness and			\$1,309,656.00	Permanent Supportive				
Empress/Folsom Dore	Supportive Housing				Housing				n∖a
	Department of			\$1,593,319.00	_				
Direct Access to Housing:	Homelessness and				Permanent Supportive				
Chronic Alcoholics	Supportive Housing				Housing				n\a
Can Francisco LINAIS	Department of			\$320,712.00					
San Francisco HMIS Expansion	Homelessness and Supportive Housing				Other				n\a
San Francisco HMIS 2015	Homelessness and			\$396,000.00	Other				n\a
	Department of			\$33,909.00					(
	Homelessness and								
San Francisco HMIS 2016					Other				n\a
	Department of			\$1,250,000.00					
CoC Planning 2019	Homelessness and Supportive Housing				Other				
COCT farming 2013	Department of			\$882,911.00	Other				
	Homelessness and			, ,					
Coordinated Entry DV	Supportive Housing				Support Services				n\a
	Department of			\$997,570.00					
San Francisco Coordinated					Support Somions				m\ a
Entry	Supportive Housing				Support Services				n\a
	Episcopal Community	165 8th Street San	(445) 407 2200		Permanent Supportive				The Rt. Rev. Marc Handley
Canon Kip	Services	Francisco CA 94103	(415) 487-3300	\$2,031,352.00	Housing	Beth Stokes	Eric Larra	Chris Callandrillo	Andrus
Bishop Swing Community				\$496,407.00	Permanent Supportive				
House	Services			¢760,006,00	Housing				Kate Harley
Canon Barcus	Episcopal Community Services			\$769,086.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Todd Clayter
Carrott Bareas	Episcopal Community			\$1,204,213.00	Permanent Supportive				rodd Clayter
Henry Hotel	Services				Housing				Sedgwick C. Dienst Keith Geeslin Heidi Ho Dr. Martin C. Jones Susan Ketcham Megan McTieran Gordon Leong Rita Mouton-Patterson Megan Robershotte The Rev. Susanna Singer
									Richard Springwater Beth Stokes

Brian McInerney

Krista Moatz

Lisa Odyniec

Anne Parish

Yvonne Tatsuno					
Kirby Brooks Todd					
S. Hassan Zaidi					

									S. Hassan Zaidi
ilide Cecil Williams community House lamilton Families Rapid Re	Glide e. Hamilton Families	330 Ellis St, San Francisco, CA 94102 273 9th St, San Francisco, CA 94103	415-321-2612	\$640,599.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Kyriell Noon	Erby L. Foster, Jr. Rosa Martinez	Kate Farnday Timothy Evans	Kaye Foster Mary Glide Michael L. Warren Ime Archibong Emily Cohen Paula R. Collins Cheryl Flick Phyllis Kaplan Lin-Hua Wu Laura Thompson Janice Mirikitani Donald Tamaki Phillip Zackler Richard Blum Ebony Beckwith David Goldin
									Jason Mandell DJ Kurte Jessica Lane Julian Basler Ruth Bernstein Paige Miller Buck Ebony Frelix Ann Iannuccillo Karina Moreno Rene Picazo Susan Toland
HPP Housing Plus	Homeless Prenatal Program	2500 18th St, San Francisco, CA 94110	415-546-6756	\$583,884.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Martha Ryan	Beverly Ashworth	Lili Milton	John Koeppel Emily Reuter Linda Griffith Rick Matcovich Ashish Agarwal Sunya Berkelman-Rosad Vince Carey Aneesha Capur Charmaine Curtis Donna James Debbie Landres Rita Louh Sunita Mohanty Jonathan Moscone Cheri Pies Lorie Rice Erica Trejo Pamela Wilson-Ryckman
Larkin Street YAC Collaborative Geary House Consolidated) Rapid Re-Housing for TAY	Larkin Street Youth Services Larkin Street Youth Services Larkin Street Youth Services	134 Golden Gate Ave, San Francisco, CA 94102	415-673-0911	\$443,708.00 \$445,538.00 \$294,480.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Transitional Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Sherilyn Adams	Carol Hunter	Martha Mar	Susan Alexander Eric Roos D Valentine Cecily Cameron Daniel A. Cody Conor Famulener Jeff Garelick Blake Grossman Sherilyn Adams

									Eric Roos Philip Schlein Aaron C. Schwartz Sally Shapiro John Viola Micael Matlock
LGBT Center Host Home Program	LGBT Center	1800 Market Street San Francisco	415-865-5555	\$368,177.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Rebecca Rolfe	Mathew Rizzie	Nathalie Thompson	Sophie Wu Chris Paul Carlos Gutierrez Jonathan Millard Jeff Riles Sally Jesmonth Robert De La O Genesis Hernandez Michelle J. King Hrishi Kulkarni Jane Natoli Maceo Persson Pamela Rice Jeff Sun
95 Laguna Bayview Hill Gardens Richardson Hall / 55 Laguna	Mercy Housing Mercy Housing Mercy Housing	1390 Misson Street San Francisco 94103	415-355-7100	\$543,916.00 \$508,270.00 \$284,241.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Ismael Guerro	Dee Walsh	Parag Gupta	Diane Hejna David Jackson Doug Jutte Barbara Kelley Ed Madell Paul Neumann Sam Ross Will Snyder Susanne Swift Bob Tetrault Linda Werthman Carol Wetmore
Juan Pifarre Plaza Mission Housing South Park Residences	Mission Housing Development Corporation Mission Housing Development Corporation		415-864-6432	\$157,848.00 \$327,672.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Sam Moss	Kate Ouyang	Marcia Contreras	Joshua Arce Irving Gonzales F. Gómez-Benítez Eddie Ahn Jon Layman Marisela Esparza Pete Gallegos Toby Levine Shirley Wang Rhosie Tolentino
Cadillac/William Penn	Reality House West-Curry Senior Center	380 Eddy Street San Francisco CA 94102	415-920-1351	\$1,747,584.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	David Knego	Arlo Bushnell	Daniel Hill	Jonrie Davila Shirley Quitugua Alycia Norton Ja Eun Guerrero Huh

John W. Hicks

Anne Hoecker

Richard Kerzic

Willis Newton

Patrick Kiss

Adamar Kassahun

Eric Johnson

									Julie Barmeyer Valente Alice Zhang Wendy Zachary David Bickham
Veterans Commons	Swords to Plowshares	1060 Howard St, San Francisco, CA 94103	415 727-8387	\$440,791.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Michael Blecker	Karen Frost	Tramecia Garner	Julie Cane
Mission Bay	Swords to Plowshares			\$289,518.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Michael Dekshenieks
Veterans Academy at the				\$358,694.00	Permanent Supportive				
Presidio Rental Assistance for	Swords to Plowshares			\$544,594.00	Housing Permanent Supportive				Michael Fassler
Homeless Veterans II Rental Assistance for	Swords to Plowshares			\$682,215.00	Housing Permanent Supportive				Deleano 'Del' Seymour
Homeless Veterans I	Swords to Plowshares			φυσε, ε 13.00	Housing				Stephen Plath Paul Cox Rick Houlberg Robert Trevorrow Michael Thiel Erik Edwards John Marquez Kate Richardson Jared Schulman Placido Ordona Dottie Guy
	Tenderlion Development	201 Eddy St, San Francisco,	415-776-2151	\$530,064.00	Permanent Supportive				
1300 Fourth	Corporation Tenderlion Development	CA 94102	110 770 1101	\$319,836.00	Housing Permanent Supportive	Donald Falk	Ron Lathouwers	Delene Rankin	Lisa Blakely
Eddy and Taylor	Corporation Tenderlion Development			\$1,087,411.00	Housing Permanent Supportive				Susan Johnson
1036 Mission	Corporation				Housing				Chris Gouig
Franciscan Towers	Tenderlion Development Corporation			\$1,155,045.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Tracey Edwards
TNDC Scattered Sites	Tenderlion Development Corporation			\$1,048,062.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Dave Kroot
TNDC Folsom Dore	Tenderlion Development Corporation			\$639,588.00	Permanent Supportive Housing				Peter Wilson
	Tenderlion Development			\$1,155,045.00	Permanent Supportive				
Franciscan Towers 2	Corporation Tenderlion Development			\$1,092,240.00	Housing Permanent Supportive				Luis Barahona
Ambassador Hotel 681 Florida (New Project	Corporation tenderlion Development			\$968,019.00	Housing Permanent Supportive				Tiffany Bohee
Proposal)	Corporation				Housing				Jim Cervantes Mark Cloutier Freddie Martin Jim McLean Fernando Pujals Jennifer Siswandi Birute Skurdenis Kathy Wolfe Kathy Wolfe Kathy Rock Amy Tharpe Greg Vilkin Dr. Kennth Kim Cynthia Wong Cheryl Young

Hannah Lincecum

John McKinnnon

Pattie Pritchett

Zack Schiller

Sasha Selvam

Diane Sklar

Arielle Slam

Robert A. Razzo

Richard Sullivan

Knox Hotel Isabel	TODCO Development Co TODCO Development Co	230 4th St, San Francisco, CA 94103	415-896-1880	\$393,206.00 \$218,448.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Jean Phillips	Anne Kufman	Elizabeth Roberts	April Ang Denis Henmi Alicia Duke Bernadette Sy Michael Pacia Dora Lee Karen Gansen Al Gilbert Allan Manalo Alicia John Elberling Anna Yee Albert Gilbert Karen Gansen Henry Izumizaki
Hope House for Veterans Hope House (Consolidated	United Council of Human	2111 Jennings St, San Francisco, CA 94124	415-671-1100	\$1,029,208.00 \$2,106,439.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Gwendolyn Westbrook	Brian Burgland	vacant	Alonzo Bennett George Perkins Margie Stokes Brenda Jackson Brian Burgland Mary Thomas Fredrick Sumante Kelvin Flowers
Baldwin House National Crown Winton	Tenderlion Housing Clinic Tenderlion Housing Clinic		415-885-3286	\$3,407,976.00 \$3,836,593.00	Permanent Supportive Housing Permanent Supportive Housing	Randy Shaw	Wynne Tang	Tabitha Allen	Chris Tiedemann Ken Brophy Fernando Pujals Jodie Medeiros Enrique Aguilar Randy Wilson
Safe House (New Project Proposal)	San Francisco Safe House	P.O. Box 40369 San Francisco, CA 94140	415-643-7861	\$2,411,770.00	Permanent Supportive Housing	Toni Eby	n\a	Kristen Moore	Julietta Hua Sister Rosina Conrotto Alan Becker Gabriella Ruiz Juliann Sum June Faison Mattison Ly Sandra Nunez Susie Monson Susan Philip Timothy Foster



Approval: HSH Application to the 2021 HUD Continuum of Care Competition

Board of Supervisors | Budget and Finance Committee
November 3, 2021

2021 HUD Continuum of Care Competition

2

- Resolution to authorize HSH to apply for funds through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)'s 2021 Continuum of Care Competition.
- Grant amount not to exceed \$59,300,000, including:
 - Annual Renewal Funds: \$50 million
 - Youth Funds: \$1.6 million
 - Bonus funds for new projects: \$2.6 million
 - Bonus funds for projects for DV survivors: \$2.4 million
 - Planning: \$1.3 million
 - Contingency for HUD Fair Market Rent (FMR) Adjustments: \$1.4 million



Continuum of Care Application Timeline

- **∽**Summer/Fall 2021:
 - LHCB met monthly to advise on the City's CoC processes and programs.
 - HSH worked to created list of projects for prioritization.
 - Grants proposed for 23 provider partners with a focus on housing.
- Cotober 25, 2021: LHCB approval of priority listing & application.
- ►November 16, 2021: Application due to HUD



Questions?

Thank you.

From: <u>Kittler, Sophia (MYR)</u>
To: <u>BOS Legislation, (BOS)</u>

Cc: Schneider, Dylan (HOM): Peacock, Rebecca (MYR)

Subject: Mayor - Resolution - COC Application Approval

Date: Tuesday, October 5, 2021 5:44:14 PM

Attachments: 08. FY21 Continuum of Care Competition.pdf

01. Resolution HSH CoC Apply For Resolution 2021.doc 02. 2021 HSH CoC Apply For Resolution FINAL.pdf

03. HSH 2021 CoC Grant Resolution Information and Disability Form Final Executed.pdf

04. CoC Registration and Application FY2021.pdf 05. 2021 CoC - Grant Budget Overview.pdf

06. 2021 CoC Funding - Form 126 (BOS Submission).pdf

07. 2021 CoC Funding Form 126 Attachment Proposed Expenditures.pdf

Dear Clerks,

Please find attached for introduction to the Board of Supervisors a **Resolution** approving the 2021 grant application for the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed \$59,300,000; and fulfilling the Board of Supervisors review and approval process for all annual or otherwise recurring grants of \$5,000,000 or more.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Sophia

Sophia Kittler
Liaison to the Board of Supervisors
Office of Mayor London N. Breed
(415) 554 6153 | Sophia.kittler@sfgov.org



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	v.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	0

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD						
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER					
Board of Supervisors	Members					

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT						
NAME OF DEP	PARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER				
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875				
FULL DEPARTM	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL				
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org				

* A						
5. CONTRACTOR						
NAME OF CONTRACTOR	TELEPHONE N	IUMBER				
3rd Street Youth Center and Clinic	415-822-	1707				
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL				
1728 Bancroft Ave, San Francisco, CA 94124						
6. CONTRACT						
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable)			
			211050			
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT						
\$578,904.00						
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)						
FY21-22 funds proposed for the provider for pe	rmanent supp	portive ho	using.			
	.0	A SOLV	J			
	0.7.					
	×c					
	9	3				
		0				
		'.				
		· Q	S			
7. COMMENTS						
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL						
This contract was approved by:						
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM						
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(C) CERVES						
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES						
□□ Board of Supervisors						

THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

con	tract.		T
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ
1	Jackson-Morgan	Joi	CEO
2	Relyea	Jackie	CF0
3	Magee	Michelle	Board of Directors
4	Lacoste	Lslynn	Board of Directors
5	Fallon	Laura	Board of Directors
6	Moorthy	Savitha	Board of Directors
7	Patton	Misty	Board of Directors
8	Lelaind	Herschel	Board of Directors
9	Kunene	Glen	Board of Directors
10	Eng	Vanessa	Board of Directors
11			
12			
13			
14			
15			
16			
17			
18			
19			

COIIC	contract.			
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ	
20	6			
21		>		
22				
23		· O.		
24		30		
25		S.		
26		9,7		
27		Q	Č.	
28			TO O	
29				
30				
31				
32				
33				
34				
35				
36				
37				
38				

#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ	
39	-0			
40		A		
41				
42		· (0),		
43		.30		
44		S	*	
45			90	
46			94	
47			740	
48				
49				
50				
	Check this box if you need to include ac Select "Supplemental" for filing type.	lditional names. Please submi	a separate form with complete info	rmation.
		uitional names. Please submi	a separate form with complete info	mation.

I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK BOS Clerk of the Board



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

<u> </u>			
1. FILING INFORMATION			
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)		
	.0		
Original	03.		
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment			
	1		
	X		
	YA COMPANY		

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT		
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL	
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org	

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Asian Women's Shelter		415-751-	0880
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
3543 18th Street #19 San Francisco CA 94110			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable)
₹ <mark>S</mark>			211050
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$1,477,590.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 funds proposed for the provider for Pe			
	\$		
	G		
2			
St. Orto Killy			
		`\	
			<u> </u>
7. COMMENTS			
S CONTRACT ADDROVAL			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	'E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS
니			

con	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Pusey	Orchid	CEO		
2	Quan	Kit	CF0		
3	Le	Huong	C00		
4	Wang	Christine	Board of Directors		
5	Nozawa	Noz	Board of Directors		
6	Tapken	Jennifer	Board of Directors		
7	Wan	Nancy	Board of Directors		
8	Ramakrishnan	Aparna	Board of Directors		
9	Hong	Edit	Board of Directors		
10					
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					
19					

#	ract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ
20	ČO		_
21			
22		O.	
23		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
24		30	
25		v,	
26		9,	
27		9	Č,
28			740
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my

I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK BOS Clerk of the Board



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

<u> </u>			
1. FILING INFORMATION			
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)		
	.0		
Original	03.		
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment			
	1		
	X		
	YA COMPANY		

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR				
NAME OF CONTRACTOR			TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bernal Heights Neighborhood Corporation			415-206-2140	
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL		
515 Cortland Ave San Francisco CA 94110				
6. CONTRACT				
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable)	
			211050	
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT				
\$283,523.00				
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe))_			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo				
	<i>S</i>			
	Y			
	S	3		
St. Othor Killy				
			6	
7. COMMENTS				
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL				
This contract was approved by:				
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM				
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES				
Board of Supervisors				
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS	

con	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Dacus	Gina	CEO		
2	Eshun	Renee	CF0		
3	Noboa	Maria	C00		
4	Espinosa	Ulysses	Board of Directors		
5	Fisher	Alan	Board of Directors		
6	Muniz	Laurel	Board of Directors		
7	Bagot	Buck	Board of Directors		
8	Cevallos	Cynthia	Board of Directors		
9	Arab	Esperanza	Board of Directors		
10	Cocharn	Bobby	Board of Directors		
11	Shagley	Carren	Board of Directors		
12	Bagot	Barbara	Board of Directors		
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					
19					

COIIC	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	6				
21		>			
22					
23		· O.			
24		30			
25		S.			
26		9,7			
27		Q	Č.		
28			TO O		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION			
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.			
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.			
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK DATE SIGNED			
BOS Clerk of the Board			



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD			
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members		

3. FILER'S CONTACT				
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER			
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184			
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL			
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org			

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR					
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE NUMBER			
Catholic Charities San Francisco		415-972-1200			
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL			
1555 39th Avenue San Francisco 94122					
6. CONTRACT					
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050		
			211030		
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT					
\$4,764,499.00					
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)					
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo					
	40				
	,C				
		3			
S. Ond Kure					
7. COMMENTS					
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL					
This contract was approved by:					
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM					
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES					
Board of Supervisors					
Board of Supervisors					
THE BOARD OF A STATE ACENCY ON WHICH AN ADDOUGLES OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER/C\ ''	DENITIES ON THE FORM SITE		
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	E OFFICER(S) II	DEMITTED ON THIS FORM SITS		

COIII	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Meneses	Jilma	CEO		
2	Ewers	Cheryl	CF0		
3	Hammerle	Ellen	C00		
4	Cordileone	Salvatore	Board of Directors		
5	Boerio	Joe	Board of Directors		
6	Borromeo	Theodore	Board of Directors		
7	Sundby	George	Board of Directors		
8	Clark	Philip	Board of Directors		
9	Bojorquez	Diana	Board of Directors		
10	Brigham	Martha	Board of Directors		
11	Bullian	Gregory	Board of Directors		
12	Frimel	Susan	Board of Directors		
13	Connors	Timothy	Board of Directors		
14	Dahik	Adriana	Board of Directors		
15	Grogan	Kathleen	Board of Directors		
16	Hultman	David	Board of Directors		
17	Ikeda	Lisa	Board of Directors		
18	Gelt	Jerilyn	Board of Directors		
19	Kane	Steven	Board of Directors		

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	Keith	Elizabeth	Board of Directors		
21	McInerney	Maureen	Board of Directors		
22	Leupp	Jay	Board of Directors		
23	Mirek	Lori	Board of Directors		
24	Manning	Simon	Board of Directors		
25	Nasciamento	Daniel	Board of Directors		
26	Paulter	Michael	Board of Directors		
27	Reynaud	Louis	Board of Directors		
28	Pohlman	Jack	Board of Directors		
29	Reyes	Raymund	Board of Directors		
30	Sangiacomo	Jim	Board of Directors		
31	Woody	Patrick	Board of Directors		
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-		

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State o	f California that the foregoing is true and correct.	
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)
A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	20
Original	Sy
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	•
	20
	33,4

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD			
OFFICE OR BOARD		NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	7,	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEP	ARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPARTN	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR	TE	LEPHONE N	UMBER
Chinatown Community Development Corporation	4	115-929-	5258
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)	EN	//AIL	
663 Clay Street San Francisco CA 94111			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/RFP	NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (<i>If applicable</i>) 211050

663	Clay Street San Francisco CA 94111			
	NTRACT			
DATE	CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESCR	EIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$78	8,729.00			X'D'
NATUI	RE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			0
FY2	1-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo		Supportiv	e Housing.
		38,170		
	Q ^O			
7. COMMENTS				
0.00	NEDACT ADDROVAL			
	NTRACT APPROVAL ontract was approved by:			
	THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
	A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors				
	THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	'E OFFICER(S) I	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

COIIL	ract.		
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ
1	Yeung	Malcom	CEO
2	Louie	Cindy	CF0
3	Hung	Tammy	C00
4	Chin	Phil	Board of Directors
5	Brookter	Dion	Board of Directors
6	Cheng	Claudine	Board of Directors
7	Chin	Jane	Board of Directors
8	Cordero	Terence	Board of Directors
9	Craig	Cathy	Board of Directors
10	Falger	Jfm	Board of Directors
11	Golvin	Ben	Board of Directors
12	Jew	Clayton	Board of Directors
13	Leadbetter	Julie	Board of Directors
14	Lee	Olson	Board of Directors
15	Lee	Winston	Board of Directors
16	Lin	Barbara	Board of Directors
17	Lin	Wendell	Board of Directors
18	McCray	James	Board of Directors
19	Poe	Irma	Board of Directors

20 Quo	name/entity/subcontractor ock enquest lins	FIRST NAME Lindsey Nils Guy	Board of Directors Board of Directors
21 Ros	enquest	Nils	
			Board of Directors
22 Ho1	lins	GUV	
		duy	Board of Directors
23 Tse		Nigel	Board of Directors
24 Wor	g	Susie	Board of Directors
25 Wu		Jade	Board of Directors
26 Zha	ng	Mary	Board of Directors
27 Lim	ı	Aron	Board of Directors
28			
29		*	
30	_@	,	
31			
32			
33			
34		-	
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS				
List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME		ТУРЕ
39				
40				
41				Z.O
42				
43				60
44			S	>
45			رض	
46				
47				
48				
49				
50				
	Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.			
	VERIFICATION		11 1 22 2	
	ve used all reasonable diligence in prepari wledge the information I have provided h			tatement and to the best of my
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.				
SIGI	NATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD	SECRETARY OR	DATE SIGNED	

BOS Clerk of the Board



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	S.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	' O
	Y _X
	\mathbf{Q}_{λ}

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT		
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL	
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org	

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEP	PARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPARTN	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
ном	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Community Housing Partnership (Homerise)		415-852-5300	
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
20 Jones Street, Suite 200 San Francisco, CA S	4102		
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
₹ <mark>0</mark>			211030
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$2,813,708.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo			
	S		
	7		
		3	
Sy. Ond Kura			
			Co
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL			
This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
1	Aubry	Rick	CEO		
2	Lo	Jenny	CF0		
3	Saxton	Christy	C00		
4	Miller	Gregg	Board of Directors		
5	wyler	Jonathan	Board of Directors		
6	Fisher	John	Board of Directors		
7	Aharoni	Sheila	Board of Directors		
8	Amos	Chris	Board of Directors		
9	Bowdry	Steve	Board of Directors		
10	Edelman	Devra	Board of Directors		
11	Eshman	Mark	Board of Directors		
12	Lew	Sam	Board of Directors		
13	Maddock	Lauren	Board of Directors		
14	Reed	Julia	Board of Directors		
15	Sims	Neil	Board of Directors		
16					
17					
18					
19					

cont	contract.			
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ	
20				
21		A		
22				
23		0,.		
24		30		
25		S.		
26		9,		
27		Q	Č.	
28			70	
29				
30				
31				
32				
33				
34				
35				
36				
37				
38				

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEP	ARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPARTN	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CC	ONTRACTOR			
NAM	IE OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Со	mpass Family Services		415-644-	0504
STRE	ET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
37	Grove Street San Francisco CA 94102			
	-0			
6. CC	ONTRACT			
DATE	E CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable)
	₹ <mark>Ò</mark>			211050
DESC	CRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$9	80,317.00			
NATU	URE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY	21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	Permanent	Supportive	e Housing.
		10		
		,C		
			3	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Signature				
				À
				<u>`0</u>
7. CC	OMMENTS			
8. CC	ONTRACT APPROVAL			
This	contract was approved by:			
	THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
Ш				
	A DOADD ON WITHOUT THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE DESCRIPTION			
	A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
	Board of Supervisors			
	THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS
$ \sqcup $				

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Kisch	Erica	CEO		
2	Hook	Carrie	CF0		
3	Calvitt	Easter	C00		
4	Dyer	Chad	Board of Directors		
5	Tait	Adam	Board of Directors		
6	Moffet	Tim	Board of Directors		
7	Brand	Dalana	Board of Directors		
8	Engel	Allison	Board of Directors		
9	Daoro	Robert	Board of Directors		
10	Dinkelspiel	Steven	Board of Directors		
11	Gibbons	Dennis	Board of Directors		
12	Goelz	Doug	Board of Directors		
13	Harris	Meghan	Board of Directors		
14	Garcia Houts	Valerie	Board of Directors		
15	Jenkyn	Beth	Board of Directors		
16	McCarthy	Michael	Board of Directors		
17	McInerney	Brian	Board of Directors		
18	Moatz	Krista	Board of Directors		
19	Odyniec	Lisa	Board of Directors		

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
20	Parish	Anne	Board of Directors		
21	Severt	Laurel	Board of Directors		
22	Zeppa	Stephanie	Board of Directors		
23	Traina	Kate	Board of Directors		
24		30			
25		S.			
26		9,			
27		9	Č,		
28			10		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Miller		9784602875
FULL DEPART	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Conard		415-864-	7833
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
1385 Mission St #200, San Francisco, CA 94103			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$1,660,204.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for	rPermanent	Supportive	e Housing.
		JON CO.	
			<u> </u>
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL			
This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE ROADD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN ADDOINTEE OF	THE CITY EI ECTIV	E UEEICED(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORIN 3113

con	contract.					
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ			
1	Quintance	Anne	CEO			
2	Nether-Gold	Robyn	CF0			
3	Suarez	Liliana	C00			
4	Rodriguez	Eddie	Board of Directors			
5	Raheem	Ali	Board of Directors			
6	Outten	Joel	Board of Directors			
7	Jafry	Zahid	Board of Directors			
8	Moerman	Ben	Board of Directors			
9	Yu	Wendy	Board of Directors			
10	Raina	Savita	Board of Directors			
11	Wu	Sophie	Board of Directors			
12						
13						
14						
15						
16						
17						
18						
19						

COIIC	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	6				
21		>			
22					
23		· O.			
24		30			
25		S.			
26		9,7			
27		Q	Č.		
28			TO O		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.

I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK BOS Clerk of the Board



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Miller		9784602875
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

``^		
5. CONTRACTOR		
NAME OF CONTRACTOR	TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Episcopal Community Services	(415) 487-3300	
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)	EMAIL	
165 8th Street San Francisco CA 94103		
6. CONTRACT		
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/RFP NUMBER FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050)
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT	1	
\$4,501,058.00		
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)		
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	Permanent Supportive Housing.	
	St. Othor Killy	
	7	
	· Cy.	
	YA COMPANY	
	`0	
7. COMMENTS		
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL		
This contract was approved by:		
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM		
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES		
Board of Supervisors		
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SIT	s

contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ	
1	Stokes	Beth	CEO	
2	Larra	Eric	CF0	
3	Callandrillo	Chris	C00	
4	Handley Andrus	Marc	Board of Directors	
5	Harley	Kate	Board of Directors	
6	Clayter	Todd	Board of Directors	
7	Dienst	Sedgwick	Board of Directors	
8	Geeslin	Keith	Board of Directors	
9	Но	неidi	Board of Directors	
10	Jones	Martin	Board of Directors	
11	Ketcham	Susan	Board of Directors	
12	McTieran	Megan	Board of Directors	
13	Leong	Gordon	Board of Directors	
14	Mouton-Patterson	Rita	Board of Directors	
15	Robershotte	Megan	Board of Directors	
16	Singer	Susanna	Board of Directors	
17	Springwater	Richard	Board of Directors	
18	Tatsuno	Yvonne	Board of Directors	
19	Brooks Todd	Kirby	Board of Directors	

#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ
20	Zaidi	Hassan	Board of Directors
21		>	
22	•		
23		· 0,	
24			
25		S.	
26		9,	
27		9	Č,
28			10
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

1

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	v,
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	0

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Miller		9784602875
FULL DEPART	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Glide		415-674-	6070
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
330 Ellis St, San Francisco, CA 94102			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$640,599.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)	_		
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	rPermanent	Supportive	e Housing.
	40		
	9,		
	`,C		
		3	
Short Charles and the second s			
		5	
			À
7 COMMENTS			
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL			
This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

anrahan	FIRST NAME Karen	ТҮРЕ
	Karen	
		CE0
oster	Erby	CF0
arnday	Kate	C00
oster	Кауе	Board of Directors
lide	Mary	Board of Directors
arren	Michael	Board of Directors
rchibong	Ime	Board of Directors
ohen	Emily	Board of Directors
ollins	Paula	Board of Directors
lick	Cheryl	Board of Directors
aplan	Phyllis	Board of Directors
u	Lin-Hua	Board of Directors
hompson	Laura	Board of Directors
irikitani	Janice	Board of Directors
amaki	Donald	Board of Directors
ackler	Phillip	Board of Directors
lum	Richard	Board of Directors
	rchibong ohen ollins lick aplan u hompson irikitani amaki	rchibong Ime ohen Emily ollins Paula lick Cheryl aplan Phyllis u Lin-Hua hompson Laura irikitani Janice amaki Donald ackler Phillip

#	ract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ
20	ČO		_
21			
22		O.	
23		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
24		30	
25		v,	
26		9,	
27		9	Č,
28			740
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

1

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEP	PARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPARTM	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR				
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE NUMBER		
Hamilton Families		415-321-2612		
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL		
273 9th St, San Francisco, CA 94103				
6. CONTRACT				
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (<i>If applicable</i>) 211050	
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT				
\$1,205,912				
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)				
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for	rPermanent	Supportive	e Housing.	
	40			
	67.			
	` C			
		3		
			Č.	
7. COMMENTS		_		
7 COMMENTS				
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL This contract was approved by:				
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM				
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES				
Board of Supervisors				
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	'E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS	

con	contract.					
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ			
1	Noon	Kyriell	CEO			
2	Martinez	Rosa	CF0			
3	Evans	Timothy	C00			
4	Beckwith	Ebony	Board of Directors			
5	Goldin	David	Board of Directors			
6	Mandell	Jason	Board of Directors			
7	Kurte	DJ	Board of Directors			
8	Lane	Jessica	Board of Directors			
9	Basler	Julian	Board of Directors			
10	Bernstein	Ruth	Board of Directors			
11	Miller Buck	Paige	Board of Directors			
12	Frelix	Ebony	Board of Directors			
13	Iannuccillo	Ann	Board of Directors			
14	Moreno	Karina	Board of Directors			
15	Picazo	Rene	Board of Directors			
16	Toland	Susan	Board of Directors			
17						
18						
19						

COIIC	ract.		T
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ
20	6		
21		>	
22			
23		· O.	
24		30	
25		S.	
26		9,7	
27		Q	Č.
28			TO O
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEP	ARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPARTN	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRA	ACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE NUMBER		
Homeles	ss Prenatal Program		415-546-	6756
STREET ADI	ORESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
2500 18	3th St, San Francisco, CA 94110			
6. CONTRA	ACT			
DATE CONT	RACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable)
	₹ <mark>o</mark>			211050
DESCRIPTIO	ON OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$583,88	34.00			
NATURE OF	THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22	2 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	r Permanent	Supportiv	e Housing.
		S		
		S	3	
			6	
				6
7. COMME	ENTS			
8. CONTRA	ACT APPROVAL			
	act was approved by:			
THE C	CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BO	ARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
\square	ard of Supervisors			
	214 01 Super v 15015			
	CARD OF A STATE ASSESSOR ON WHILE AN ADDRESS OF	THE CITY E: 505	/E OFFICES/6\ ::	DENITIFIED ON THUS FORMS SITE
	SOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	LE OFFICER(S) I	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS
ı l				

List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract.

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Ryan	Martha	CEO		
2	Ashworth	Beverly	CF0		
3	Milton	Lili	C00		
4	Koeppel	John	Board of Directors		
5	Reuter	Emily	Board of Directors		
6	Griffith	Linda	Board of Directors		
7	Matcovich	Rick	Board of Directors		
8	Agarwal	Ashish	Board of Directors		
9	Berkelman-Rosado	Sunya	Board of Directors		
10	Carey	Vince	Board of Directors		
11	Capur	Aneesha	Board of Directors		
12	Curtis	Charmaine	Board of Directors		
13	James	Donna	Board of Directors		
14	Landres	Debbie	Board of Directors		
15	Louh	Rita	Board of Directors		
16	Mohanty	Sunita	Board of Directors		
17	Moscone	Jonathan	Board of Directors		
18	Pies	Cheri	Board of Directors		
19	Rice	Lorie	Board of Directors		

3

#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ	
20	Trejo	Erica	Board of Directors	
21	Wilson-Ryckman	Pamela	Board of Directors	
22	Chang	Tina	Board of Directors	
23		'		
24				
25		S.		
26		9,		
27		9	٢,	
28			10	
29				
30				
31				
32				
33				
34				
35				
36				
37				
38				

10. VERIFICATION			
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.			
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.			
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED		
BOS Clerk of the Board			



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	40
Original	0',
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	
	7 8
	X.

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT			
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER		
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184		
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL		
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org		

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT				
NAME OF DEP	PARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER		
Bryn Miller		9784602875		
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL		
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org		

5. CONTRACTOR				
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER	
Larkin Street Youth Services		415-673-	0911	
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL		
134 Golden Gate Ave, San Francisco, CA 94102				
6. CONTRACT				
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050	
R			211030	
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT				
\$1,183,726.00				
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)				
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for Transitional Housing.		Supportive		
	, C			
		3		
		X		
		ر '		
			<u> </u>	
7. COMMENTS				
7. 651				
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL This contract was approved by:				
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM				
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES				
Board of Supervisors				
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS	
니				

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Adams	Sherilyn	CEO		
2	Hunter	Carol	CF0		
3	Mar	Martha	C00		
4	Alexander	Susan	Board of Directors		
5	Roos	Eric	Board of Directors		
6	Valentine	D	Board of Directors		
7	Cameron	Cecily	Board of Directors		
8	Cody	Daniel A.	Board of Directors		
9	Famulener	Conor	Board of Directors		
10	Garelick	Jeff	Board of Directors		
11	Grossman	вlake	Board of Directors		
12	Hicks	John W.	Board of Directors		
13	Hoecker	Anne	Board of Directors		
14	Johnson	Eric	Board of Directors		
15	Kassahun	Adamar	Board of Directors		
16	Kerzic	Richard	Board of Directors		
17	Kiss	Patrick	Board of Directors		
18	Newton	Willis	Board of Directors		
19	Roos	Eric	Board of Directors		

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	Schlein	Philip	Board of Directors		
21	Schwartz	Aaron C.	Board of Directors		
22	Shapiro	sally	Board of Directors		
23	Viola	John	Board of Directors		
24	Matlock	Micael	Board of Directors		
25		S.			
26		9,7			
27		9	Š,		
28			160		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR

DATE SIGNED

SAN FRANCISCO ETHICS COMMISSION – SFEC Form 126(f)4 v.12.7.18

BOS Clerk of the Board

CLERK



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

1

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mill	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
LGBT Center		415-865-	5555
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
1800 Market Street San Francisco			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$368,177.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	Permanent	Supportive	e Housing.
	.0		J
	0,		
	,C		
		A CA	
		, OX	
		~	À
7. CONANAENTS			
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL This contract was approved by:			
This contract was approved by: THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
1	Rolfe	Rebecca	CEO		
2	Rizzie	Mathew	CF0		
3	Thompson	Nathalie	C00		
4	Wu	Sophie	Board of Directors		
5	Paul	Chris	Board of Directors		
6	Gutierrez	Carlos	Board of Directors		
7	Millard	Jonathan	Board of Directors		
8	Riles	Jeff	Board of Directors		
9	Jesmonth	Sally	Board of Directors		
10	De La O	Robert	Board of Directors		
11	Hernandez	Genesis	Board of Directors		
12	King	Michelle J.	Board of Directors		
13	Kulkarni	Hrishi	Board of Directors		
14	Natoli	Jane	Board of Directors		
15	Persson	Maceo	Board of Directors		
16	Rice	Pamela	Board of Directors		
17	Sun	Jeff	Board of Directors		
18					
19					

,	ract.		T
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ
20	6		
21		A	
22		0	
23		7	
24		30	
25		S.	
26		37	
27		9	Č,
28			10
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR

DATE SIGNED

SAN FRANCISCO ETHICS COMMISSION – SFEC Form 126(f)4 v.12.7.18

BOS Clerk of the Board

CLERK



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	v.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	0

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Mil	ler	9784602875	
FULL DEPART	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Mercy Housing		415-355-	7100
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)	1	EMAIL	
1390 Misson Street San Francisco 94103			
	•		
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/RI	FP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$1,336,427.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	r Permanent S	Supportive	e Housing.
	S.		
	YO		
		5	
		Q'X	
			6
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL			
This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A DOADD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICED(S) SERVES			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIVE	OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

cont	contract.					
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ			
1	Guerro	Ismael	CEO			
2	walsh	Dee	CF0			
3	Gupta	Parag	C00			
4	Нејпа	Diane	Board of Directors			
5	Jackson	David	Board of Directors			
6	Jutte	Doug	Board of Directors			
7	Kelley	Barbara	Board of Directors			
8	Madell	Ed	Board of Directors			
9	Neumann	Paul	Board of Directors			
10	Ross	Sam	Board of Directors			
11	Snyder	will	Board of Directors			
12	Swift	Susanne	Board of Directors			
13	Tetrault	вор	Board of Directors			
14	Werthman	Linda	Board of Directors			
15	Wetmore	Carol	Board of Directors			
16						
17						
18						
19						

COIIC	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	6				
21		>			
22					
23		· O.			
24		30			
25		S.			
26		9,7			
27		Q	Č.		
28			TO O		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS				
List t exec who	the names of (A) members of the contract cutive officer, chief financial officer, chief has an ownership interest of 10 percent rract.	operating officer, or other persons with	similar titles; (C) any individual or entity	
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ	
39				
40		A		
41	,	PO ₂		
42		, O.		
43		30		
44		S.		
45		, O.		
46		9	Č,	
47			T'e	
48				
49				
50				
	Check this box if you need to include ad Select "Supplemental" for filing type.	ditional names. Please submit a separate	form with complete information.	
	VERIFICATION			
	ve used all reasonable diligence in prepar wledge the information I have provided h	_	statement and to the best of my	
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.				
SIGI	SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR DATE SIGNED			

BOS Clerk of the Board

CLERK



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD			
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members		

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Mil	ler	9784602875
FULL DEPART	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR	
NAME OF CONTRACTOR	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Mission Housing Development Corporation	415-864-6432
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)	EMAIL
474 Valencia St # 280, San Francisco, CA 94103	

47	4 Valencia St # 280, San Francisco, CA 94103	3		
	70		1	
6. C	ONTRACT			
DAT	E CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESC	CRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT	1		<u> </u>
\$4	85,520.00			
NAT	URE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
	21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo		Supportiv	
7. 0	JIVIIVIENTS			
	ONTRACT APPROVAL contract was approved by:			
	THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
K	A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES Board of Supervisors			
	THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) I	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

con	contract.					
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ			
1	Moss	Sam	CEO			
2	Ouyang	Kate	CF0			
3	Contreras	Marcia	C00			
4	Arce	Joshua	Board of Directors			
5	Gonzales	Irving	Board of Directors			
6	Gómez-Benítez	F.	Board of Directors			
7	Ahn	Eddie	Board of Directors			
8	Layman	Jon	Board of Directors			
9	Esparza	Marisela	Board of Directors			
10	Gallegos	Pete	Board of Directors			
11	Levine	Тору	Board of Directors			
12	Wang	Shirley	Board of Directors			
13	Tolentino	Rhosie	Board of Directors			
14						
15						
16						
17						
18						
19						

COIIC	ract.		T
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ
20	6		
21		>	
22	•		
23		· O.	
24		30	
25		S.	
26		9,7	
27		Q	Č.
28			TO O
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

1. FILING INFORMATION	4
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	S.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	* O
	36
	Q_{λ}

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT		
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL	
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org	

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEP	ARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Miller		9784602875
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CONTRACTOR			
AME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Reality House West-Curry Senior Center		415-920-1351	
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
380 Eddy Street San Francisco CA 94102			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$1,747,584.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	r Permanent	Supportive	e Housing.
	40		
	9,3		
),	Support Civi	
		3	
		X	
		ري	
			Č.
			0
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL			
This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
□ Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

COM	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Knego	David	CEO		
2	Bushnell	Arlo	CF0		
3	Hill	Daniel	C00		
4	Davila	Jonrie	Board of Directors		
5	Quitugua	Shirley	Board of Directors		
6	Norton	Alycia	Board of Directors		
7	Guerrero Huh	Ja Eun	Board of Directors		
8	Lincecum	Hannah	Board of Directors		
9	McKinnnon	John	Board of Directors		
10	Pritchett	Pattie	Board of Directors		
11	Schiller	Zack	Board of Directors		
12	Selvam	Sasha	Board of Directors		
13	Razzo	Robert A.	Board of Directors		
14	Sklar	Diane	Board of Directors		
15	Slam	Arielle	Board of Directors		
16	Sullivan	Richard	Board of Directors		
17	Barmeyer Valente	Julie	Board of Directors		
18	Zhang	Alice	Board of Directors		
19	Zachary	Wendy	Board of Directors		

COIT	ract.	T	I
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ
20	Bickham	David	Board of Directors
21		A	
22	,		
23		70 .	
24			
25		S.	
26		9,	
27		9	Č,
28			160
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

DATE SIGNED

SAN FRANCISCO ETHICS COMMISSION – SFEC Form 126(f)4 v.12.7.18

SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR

BOS Clerk of the Board

CLERK



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

1

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

1. FILING INFORMATION	4
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	S.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	* O
	36
	Q_{λ}

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD	
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER
Board of Supervisors	Members

3. FILER'S CONTACT		
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL	
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org	

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR				
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE NUMBER		
San Francisco Safe House		415-643-7861		
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL		
P.O. Box 40369 San Francisco, CA 94140				
6. CONTRACT				
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050	
			211030	
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT				
\$2,411,770.00				
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)				
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo				
	10			
	G			
		3		
St. Othor Kills				
			Co	
7. COMMENTS				
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL				
This contract was approved by:				
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM				
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES				
Board of Supervisors				
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS	
			- 2.2	

cont	contract.					
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ			
1	Eby	Toni	CEO			
2	Moore	Kristen	C00			
3	Hua	Julietta	Board of Directors			
4	Conrotto	Sister Rosina	Board of Directors			
5	Becker	Alan	Board of Directors			
6	Ruiz	Gabriella	Board of Directors			
7	Sum	Juliann	Board of Directors			
8	Faison	June	Board of Directors			
9	Ly	Mattison	Board of Directors			
10	Nunez	Sandra	Board of Directors			
11	Monson	Susie	Board of Directors			
12	Philip	Susan	Board of Directors			
13	Foster	Timothy	Board of Directors			
14						
15						
16						
17						
18						
19						
	<u> </u>	1	<u> </u>			

COIIC	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	6				
21		>			
22					
23		· O.			
24		30			
25		S.			
26		9,7			
27		Q	Č.		
28			TO O		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION			
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.			
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.			
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED		
BOS Clerk of the Board			



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

1

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>			
1. FILING INFORMATION			
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)		
	.0		
Original	03.		
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment			
	1		
	X		
	YA COMPANY		

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD			
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members		

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR					
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER		
Swords to Plowshares		415 727-	8387		
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL			
1060 Howard St, San Francisco, СА 94103					
6. CONTRACT					
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050		
Z.			211030		
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT					
\$2,315,812.00					
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)					
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo	Permanent	Supportiv	e Housing.		
	S				
	Y				
		3			
		· ·	እ		
			<u>`0</u>		
7. COMMENTS					
7. COMMENTS					
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL					
This contract was approved by:					
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM					
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES					
Board of Supervisors					
550. 0 5. 50001 7.5515					
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS		

COIII	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Blecker	Michael	CEO		
2	Frost	Karen	CF0		
3	Garner	Tramecia	C00		
4	Cane	Julie	Board of Directors		
5	Dekshenieks	Michael	Board of Directors		
6	Fassler	Michael	Board of Directors		
7	Seymour	Deleano 'Del'	Board of Directors		
8	Plath	Stephen	Board of Directors		
9	Cox	Paul	Board of Directors		
10	Houlberg	Rick	Board of Directors		
11	Robert Trevorrow	Robert	Board of Directors		
12	Michael Thiel	Michael	Board of Directors		
13	Edwards	Erik	Board of Directors		
14	Marquez	John	Board of Directors		
15	Richardson	Kate	Board of Directors		
16	Schulman	Jared	Board of Directors		
17	Ordona	Placido	Board of Directors		
18	Guy	Dottie	Board of Directors		
19					

#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ
20			
21		A	
22		6	
23		· Q.	
24		30	
25		S.	
26		9,	
27		9	٢,
28			10
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION			
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.			
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.			
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED		
BOS Clerk of the Board			



25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	40
Original	0',
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	
	10
	X.

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD	NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER	
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEF	PARTMENTAL CONTACT	DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Mil	ler	9784602875	
FULL DEPART	MENT NAME	DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR				
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE NUMBER		
Tenderloin Development Corporation		415-776	-2151	
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL		
201 Eddy St, San Francisco, CA 94102				
6. CONTRACT				
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050	
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			<u>I</u>	
\$7,995,310.00				
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)				
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for	Permanent	Supportive	e Housing.	
	S.			
	S	A CO		
		10		
		AX.		
		`\		
7. COMMENTS				
7.66				
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL				
This contract was approved by:				
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM				
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES				
Board of Supervisors				
Board of Supervisors				
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS	

COM	contract.					
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ			
1	Falk	Donald	CEO			
2	Lathouwers	Ron	CF0			
3	Rankin	Delene	C00			
4	Blakely	Lisa	Board of Directors			
5	Johnson	Susan	Board of Directors			
6	Gouig	Chris	Board of Directors			
7	Edwards	Tracey	Board of Directors			
8	Kroot	Dave	Board of Directors			
9	Wilson	Peter	Board of Directors			
10	Barahona	Luis	Board of Directors			
11	Bohee	Tiffany	Board of Directors			
12	Cervantes	Jim	Board of Directors			
13	Cloutier	Mark	Board of Directors			
14	Martin	Freddie	Board of Directors			
15	McLean	Jim	Board of Directors			
16	Pujals	Fernando	Board of Directors			
17	Siswandi	Jennifer	Board of Directors			
18	Skurdenis	Birute	Board of Directors			
19	Wolfe	Kathy	Board of Directors			

con	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
20	Rock	Kathy	Board of Directors		
21	Tharpe	Amy	Board of Directors		
22	Vilkin	Greg	Board of Directors		
23	Kim	Dr. Kennth	Board of Directors		
24	Wong	Cynthia	Board of Directors		
25	Young	Cheryl	Board of Directors		
26		9,			
27		9	Š,		
28			160		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION		
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.		
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.		
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK	DATE SIGNED	
BOS Clerk of the Board		



San Francisco Ethics Commission

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

<u> </u>	
1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	.0
Original	03.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	***
	1
	X
	YA COMPANY

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT		
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL	
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org	

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT		
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER
Bryn Miller		9784602875
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org

5. CO	ONTRACTOR			
NAM	E OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
Ter	nderloin Housing Clinic		415-885-	3286
STREE	ET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
126	6 Hyde Street, San Francisco, СА 94102			
6. CO	ONTRACT			
DATE	CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
DESC	RIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$7,	,244,569.00			
NATU	IRE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY2	21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for	Permanent	Supportive	e Housing.
		₩,	DO ST	
		Y		
			?	
			Q'X	
			'	
				Co
7. CO	DMMENTS			
	NTRACT APPROVAL			
	contract was approved by:			
	THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
	A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
	Board of Supervisors			
	THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF T	HE CITY ELECTIV	'E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

con	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Shaw	Randy	CEO		
2	Tang	Wynne	CF0		
3	Allen	Tabitha	C00		
4	Tiedemann	Chris	Board of Directors		
5	Brophy	Ken	Board of Directors		
6	Pujals	Fernando	Board of Directors		
7	Medeiros	Jodie	Board of Directors		
8	Aguilar	Enrique	Board of Directors		
9	Wilson	Randy	Board of Directors		
10					
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					
19					

#	ract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ
20	ČO		_
21			
22		O.	
23		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
24		30	
25		v,	
26		9,	
27		9	Č,
28			740
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			
35			
36			
37			
38			

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.

10. VERIFICATION I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK BOS Clerk of the Board



San Francisco Ethics Commission

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

1

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
Original	v.
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	0

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT	
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR			
NAME OF CONTRACTOR		TELEPHONE N	IUMBER
TODCO Development Co		415-896-	1880
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)		EMAIL	
230 4th St, San Francisco, CA 94103			
6. CONTRACT			
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S)	ORIGINAL BID/	RFP NUMBER	FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050
₹ <mark>2</mark>			211030
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT			
\$611,654.00			
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)			
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider fo			
	10		
	G		
St. Othor Killy			
		`\Q	2
7. COMMENTS			
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL			
This contract was approved by:			
THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM			
A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES			
Board of Supervisors			
THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF	THE CITY ELECTIV	/E OFFICER(S) II	DENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS
	 		

cont	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Phillips	Jean	CEO		
2	Kufman	Anne	CF0		
3	Roberts	Elizabeth	C00		
4	Ang	April	Board of Directors		
5	Henmi	Denis	Board of Directors		
6	Duke	Alicia	Board of Directors		
7	Sy	Bernadette	Board of Directors		
8	Pacia	Michael	Board of Directors		
9	Lee	Dora	Board of Directors		
10	Gansen	Karen	Board of Directors		
11	Gilbert	АТ	Board of Directors		
12	Manalo	Allan	Board of Directors		
13	Alicia	Alicia	Board of Directors		
14	Elberling	John	Board of Directors		
15	Yee	Anna	Board of Directors		
16	Gilbert	Albert	Board of Directors		
17	Gansen	Karen	Board of Directors		
18	Izumizaki	Henry	Board of Directors		
19					

COIIC	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ		
20	6				
21		>			
22					
23		· O.			
24		30			
25		S.			
26		9,7			
27		Q	Č.		
28			TO O		
29					
30					
31					
32					
33					
34					
35					
36					
37					
38					

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type. **10. VERIFICATION** I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.

I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete. I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR CLERK BOS Clerk of the Board



San Francisco Ethics Commission

25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: 415.252.3100 . Fax: 415.252.3112 ethics.commission@sfgov.org . www.sfethics.org

Received On:

File #: 211050

Bid/RFP #:

Notification of Contract Approval

SFEC Form 126(f)4
(S.F. Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code § 1.126(f)4)

A Public Document

Each City elective officer who approves a contract that has a total anticipated or actual value of \$100,000 or more must file this form with the Ethics Commission within five business days of approval by: (a) the City elective officer, (b) any board on which the City elective officer serves, or (c) the board of any state agency on which an appointee of the City elective officer serves. For more information, see: https://sfethics.org/compliance/city-officers/contract-approval-city-officers

1. FILING INFORMATION	
TYPE OF FILING	DATE OF ORIGINAL FILING (for amendment only)
	40
Original	3 ,
AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION – Explain reason for amendment	
	9 ,
	C,
	' O.

2. CITY ELECTIVE OFFICE OR BOARD		
OFFICE OR BOARD NAME OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER		
Board of Supervisors	Members	

3. FILER'S CONTACT			
NAME OF FILER'S CONTACT	TELEPHONE NUMBER		
Angela Calvillo	415-554-5184		
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME	EMAIL		
Office of the Clerk of the Board	Board.of.Supervisors@sfgov.org		

4. CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT CONTACT			
NAME OF DEPARTMENTAL CONTACT		DEPARTMENT CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER	
Bryn Miller		9784602875	
FULL DEPARTMENT NAME		DEPARTMENT CONTACT EMAIL	
НОМ	Homelessness and Supportive Housing	bryn.miller@sfgov.org	

5. CONTRACTOR				
NAME OF CONTRACTOR	TELEPHONE NUMBER			
United Council of Human Sevices	2111 Jennings St, San Francisco			
STREET ADDRESS (including City, State and Zip Code)	EMAIL			
2111 Jennings St, San Francisco, CA 94124				
6. CONTRACT				
DATE CONTRACT WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) ORIGINAL BID	/RFP NUMBER FILE NUMBER (If applicable) 211050			
DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF CONTRACT				
\$3,135,647.00				
NATURE OF THE CONTRACT (Please describe)				
FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for Permanent	t Supportive Housing.			
	3			
0%	FY21-22 CoC funds proposed for the provider for Permanent Supportive Housing.			
× C				
	(3)			
	60			
	`C,			
	Q ₂			
	1			
7. COMMENTS				
8. CONTRACT APPROVAL This contract was approved by:				

8. C	ONTRACT APPROVAL
This	contract was approved by:
	THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM
	A BOARD ON WHICH THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) SERVES Board of Supervisors
	THE BOARD OF A STATE AGENCY ON WHICH AN APPOINTEE OF THE CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER(S) IDENTIFIED ON THIS FORM SITS

con	contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТҮРЕ		
1	Westbrook	Gwendolyn	CEO		
2	Burgland	Brian	CF0		
3	Bennett	Alonzo	Board of Directors		
4	Perkins	George	Board of Directors		
5	Stokes	Margie	Board of Directors		
6	Jackson	Brenda	Board of Directors		
7	Burgland	Brian	Board of Directors		
8	Thomas	Mary	Board of Directors		
9	Sumante	Fredrick	Board of Directors		
10	Flowers	Kelvin	Board of Directors		
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					
19					

contract.				
#	LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR	FIRST NAME	ТУРЕ	
20	6			
21		A		
22		Co.		
23		7		
24		30		
25		S.		
26		37		
27		9	Č,	
28			10	
29				
30				
31				
32				
33				
34				
35				
36				
37				
38				

9. AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS List the names of (A) members of the contractor's board of directors; (B) the contractor's principal officers, including chief executive officer, chief financial officer, chief operating officer, or other persons with similar titles; (C) any individual or entity who has an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the contractor; and (D) any subcontractor listed in the bid or contract. LAST NAME/ENTITY/SUBCONTRACTOR **FIRST NAME** TYPE 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 Check this box if you need to include additional names. Please submit a separate form with complete information. Select "Supplemental" for filing type.

10. VERIFICATION	
I have used all reasonable diligence in preparing this statement. I have reviewed this statement and to the best of my	
knowledge the information I have provided here is true and complete.	
I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.	
SIGNATURE OF CITY ELECTIVE OFFICER OR BOARD SECRETARY OR	DATE SIGNED
CLERK	
BOS Clerk of the Board	
bos cicik of the board	